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PMLSMINARY STATEMENT 

On February 16, 1983, these five defendants were 

convicted of the crime of criminal contempt after a trial 

by jury. In addition to the verdict of guilty, the jury 

returned a special verdict that their contempt was a 

derious, not petty, offense. All five (5) defendants had 

refused to obey a court order that they testify before a 

grand jury investigating the terrorist group known as the 

Fuerzas Armadas de Liberacion Nacional (Armed Forces of 

National Liberation; hereafter ''FALN''). Except for the 

defendant Guerra, each defendant had served a period of 

incarceration for civil contempt in 1977 for refusing to 

obey court orders to testify before federal grand juries in 

Manhattan and Chicago investigating the FALN. 

This memorandum is submitted in support of the 

governmentls motion to revoke the bail of these defendants 

and in support of the governmentls sentence recommendation. 

The defendants1 failure to comply with this 

Court's order to provide information to the grand jury is a 

matter of such national importance that, in order to deter 

others from similar conduct purposely designed to block an 

investigation into crimes of the most serious nature and to 

punish these defendants for contributing t o  a w e l l  

constructed wall of silence, a substantial term of 

imprisonment is warranted. 



This memorandum has three purposes. First, to 

set forth the background of the FALN so that the Court will 

fully appreciate the scope and gravity of its activities 

and, in turn, the seriousness of the defendants1 refusal to 

respond to questions before the grand jury. Second, to set 

forth the method of operation of the FALN to demonstrate 

why routine methods of investigation have not been 

successful and therefore why it is necessary to compel 

witnesses to provide information to the grand jury. Third, 

to set forth the basis for the government's contention that 

each of the five defendants are members of the FALN and in 

a position to supply information concerning the FALN. 

Finally, their bail should be revoked immediately because 

they are a danger to the community. 

The information contained in this memorandum is 

based on a review of files of the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation, the New York City Police Department and 

other police departments and on personal interviews with 

Alfredo Mendez, a former member of the FALN now cooperating 

with the Government, as well as interviews with other 

persons. We have written this memorandum in unusual detail 

in direct response to defense denials of factual assertions 

contained in the pre-sentence report prepared by the 

probation department, wherein the government stated 



that  each defendant played a functional role in  the FALN 

which explains their refusal t o  t e s t i f y  here. 

In sum, we suggest that this memorandum answers 

the question, "What i s  the sentence which f i t s  the crime of 

these defendants?" 



STATEMENT OF FACTS 

The FALN is a clandestine organization composed 

of individuals who have dedicated themselves to the 

overthrow of the United States government in Puerto Rico. 

The group's members claim that armed violence is the only 

vehicle through which independence for Puerto Rico can be 

achieved. They also seek the release of convicted FALN 

members whom they consider to be prisoners of war and the 

removal of all United States military installations from 

the island of Puerto Rico. Unlike other independence 

groups that engage in acts of terrorism on the island of 

Puerto Rico itself, the FALN has elected to stage its 

violent actions within the continental United States. 

Since late 1974, the FALN has been responsible for over one 

hundred forty-six (146) bombing and incendiary attacks, in 

addition to armed takeovers and a series of armed robberies 

nationwide. 



Like other terrorist groups operating in this country, the 

FALN traces its lineage to predecessor organizations, in 

this instance, Movimiento Independencia Revolucionario 

Armado (hereafter "MIRA). MIRA and its predecessors were 

responsible for about two hundred (200) incendiary bombings 

in New York City beginning in 1968 and continuing until the 

emergence of the FALN in 1974. When the defendant Andres 

Rosado attempted to purchase incendiary materials from an 

FBI undercover agent in 1970, MIRA posed a real threat to 

the people of New York and other places. 

The Attempted Purchase of Incendiary . 
Materials by Andres Rosado 

In May, 1970, an FBI source in New York City was 

in contact with Martin Crespo Feliciano who had shown an 

interest in purchasing explosives and firearms for shipmknt 

to Puerto Rico. Crespo introduced other persons to the 

source. 

On May 8, 1970, the source met with one of these 

persons, whom we shall refer to as "AQ1, who requested the 

source to have the source's "Mafia" contact call him at a 

certain telephone number. In order to remove the FBI 

source from the operation, this call was made by an FBI 

agent who arranged a meeting with A.  

This meeting was subsequently held and A outlined 

the type of explosives he desired. He indicated that he 



I .. , had one thousand dol la rs  ($1000) t o  spend. A second 

meeting was t o  occur about a week l a t e r  a t  which t i m e  A 

would be informed t h a t  the  amount involved was too small 

f o r  a big  operator t o  handle and a subsequent meeting would 

hopefully be arranged between a second FBI agent and 

Rivera. Before these l a t e r  meetings t ranspired,  Carlos 

Feliciano,  a Puerto Rican Nat ional i s t  was arrested by the  - 
New York City Police for  a s e r i e s  of bombings and A made no 

fu r the r  e f f o r t  t o  contact the  "Mafia" man. 1/ 

On June 26, 1970, a conf ident ia l  source of the  

Federal Bureau of Investigation,  who had furnished r e l i a b l e  

information i n  the pas t ,  reported t h a t  Martin'Crespo 

Feliciano,  known a s  an ardent advocate of independence of 

Puerto Rico, was anxious t h a t  contacts  between the Mafia 

and the  Puerto Rican independence movement be resumed i n  

order t o  continue discussions regarding the  procurement of 

explosives and armaments. As a r e s u l t  of t h i s  information, 

Joseph Stabi le ,  a Special Agent of t h e  FBI ,  acting i n  an 

undercover capacity, met with t h e  defendant Andres Rosado, 

and iden t i f i ed  himself as  ltAngeloll, a man w i t h  Mafia 

connections. Several negotiations over the  s a l e  of 

incendiaries then ensued. 

At about 8:00 p .m. ,  on June 30, 1970, Agent 

S tab i l e  was seated on a bench on a downtown platform of t h e  

Spring S t r e e t  s t a t i o n  of the  Lexington Avenue IRT Subway 



was b u i l t  t o  s ea t  s i x  individuals qui te  comfortably. 

Agent Stabile observed a then unidentified 

individual approach and si t  on the  same bench on which 

Agent Stabile was seated. While t h i s  individual, l a t e r  

ident if ied as the defendant Andres Rosado, s a t  on the 

bench, he appeared t o  be reading a copy of the  New York 

Times. After a t r a i n  entered the  s ta t ion ,  stopped and 

continued on i ts  way, Rosado stood up, approached Stabi le  

and asked, "Do you think the  Mets w i l l  win this year?" 

Stabi le  responded, UWell, I think they ' l l  w i l l  this year ."  

Then, Rosado s a t  down on the  bench i n  a position near Agent 

Stabile,  so t h a t  they could converse i n  confidence. 

Special Agent Stabi le  extended h i s  hand t o  Rosado 

and stated,  ltI1rn Ange1o.I' Rosado shook hands with Stabi le  

and said " I ' m  Tony." Stabile asked Rosado i f  he could do 

anything for  him. Tony replied,  'lWetd l i k e  t o  get  some 

potassium chlorate.It Stabile suggested t h a t  they leave the  

subway s ta t ion  i n  order t o  discuss t h i s  matter more fu l ly  

and more privately.  They l e f t  the s t a t i on  and proceeded t o  

the northwest corner of Spring and Lafayette Streets ,  then 

walked slowly uptown for  about three blocks. 

Rosado informed Stabi le  t h a t  he represented a 

group which wanted t o  buy materials which could be used for  

explosives. Stabi le  responded that he was quite disturbed 



because this meeting was made by someone other than the 

individual who had previously discussed these matters with 

him. Stabile pointed out that the possibility of something 

going wrong was increased tremendously each time an 

additional person was included in the negotiations. Rosado 

replied that he knew nothing about ''any other guy," nor did 

he know of any arrangements which may have been previously 

made. Rosado emphasized that he spoke for his group and 

that he wanted to talk business on that basis. 

Rosado explained that his group wanted to obtain 

one hundred pounds of potassium chlorate to be delivered in 

two bags, each bag containing fifty pounds of potassium 

chlorate. Rosado added that his group did not desire to 

purchase machine guns, hand grenades, C-3 plastic 

explosive, blasting wire, blasting fuses and/or blasting 

caps. Rosado commented that his group had available fifteen 

hundred dollars ($1,500) for the purchase of required 

material with the possibility that up to twenty-five 

thousand dollars ($25,000) might be available for future 

purchases. Stabile assured Rosado that the required amount 

of potassium chlorate could be obtained and that he would 

find out what one hundred pounds of potassium chlorate 

would cost. 

It was agreed that Stabile would communicate with 

Rosado by dialing telephone number 684-9870 in New York 



City a t  1:00 P.M. on Thursday, July 2 ,  1970, and then 

asking for  "Tony1'. Rosado assured Stabi le  t h a t  t h i s  was a 

s a f e  contact.  Rosado added t h a t  t h i s  telephone was located 

i n  a s to re  operated by Americans, "nice people, and t h a t  

he would be there  t o  take the  c a l l .  A t  t h a t  time, t h i s  

phone was l i s t e d  t o  the  Royal Latex Company, Inc. ,  375 

Third Avenue i n  Manhattan. 

A t  about 8:25 p.m., Agent S tabi le  and Rosado 

returned t o  the  northwest corner of Spring and Lafayette 

S t ree t s  where they went t h e i r  separate ways. 

A t  about 8:00 p.m., on July 30, 1970, on t h e  

downtown platform of the Spring Street Stat ion of the  IRT 

. Lexington Avenue Subway l i n e ,  Agent S tabi le  met Rosado 

again. They both emerged from the  subway s t a t i o n  through 

t h e  kiosk located on Lafayette Street north of Spring 

S t ree t ,  then walked north on the  west s ide  of Lafayette 

S t ree t ,  ta lking as they walked. 

Rosado advised Agent S tabi le  t h a t  h i s  group had 

avai lable  th i r t een  hundred do l l a r s  ($1,300) fo r  the  

purchase of 300 pounds of potassium chlorate .  Agent 

S tabi le  t o l d  Rosado t h a t  t h e  amount of money involved was 

so small t h a t  h i s  Mafia super iors  probably would not accept 

t h e  "contract.  I' 

Rosado gave Stabi le  the  telephone number 561-5783 

and requested t h a t  s t a b i l e  c a l l  t h a t  number a t  about 7:00 



p.m., Sunday, August 2 ,  1970, and ask fo r  I l T ~ n y . ~ ~  Rosado 

emphasized t h a t  it would n o t  be possible t o  contact  him a t  

t h a t  number a t  any other time. A t  t h a t  time, t h i s  phone 

number was l i s t e d  t o  the psychia t r ic  ward of Bellevue 

Hospital where Rosado worked a t  t h e  time. 

S tab i le  offered t o  n p ~ t  the  word outg1 for  a 

smaller operator t o  pick up the  contract .  Rosado was 

chagrined a t  t h i s  tu rn  of events and protested t h a t  he 

(Rosado) would have t o  discuss t h i s  proposal with h i s  

leaders.  I f  they agreed, then Stabi le  would be contacted 

through the  usual means. Rosado firmly, but  po l i t e ly ,  

declined t o  give S tabi le  any method whereby Stabi le  might 

contact  him i n  a d i r ec t  manner. 

The two met again on August 28, 1970 a t  about 

8:00 p.m. on the  downtown subway platform a t  t h e  Spring 

S t r e e t  Stat ion.  Agent S tab i l e  advised the  defendant Rosado 

t h a t  h i s  Mafia superiors I1definitelyg1 refused t o  deal with 

Rosado and h i s  group, but  S tab i le  offered t o  "put the  word 

outM fo r  a smaller operater  t o  pick up the  contract .  

The defendant Rosado responded t h a t  he would have 

t o  consult  with h i s  group and t h a t  he would contact  Agent 

S tabi le  i n  the usual manner, i f  authorized by h i s  group. 

The defendant Rosado declined t o  give any d i r e c t  means by 

which Agent Stabi le  could contact  the  defendant Rosado. 



There was no further contact between Agent Stabile and 

Rosado . 
s 

The meetings between Agent Stabile and the 

defendant Rosado were observed and photographed by other 

FBI agents. (See - photos annexed as exhibit A ) .  

It is important to recall that Sergeant Charles 

Wells of the Bomb Squad (NYPD) found a bottle of potassium 

chlorate and three hundred twenty-nine (329) pounds of 

sodium chlorate and related materials during a search of 

the Morales bomb factory on July 12, 1978 in Queens. 

Potassium and sodium chlorate were used in fifty-eight (58) 

incendiary devices itilized by the FALN over the years 

1974-1978 (957). According to Sergeant Wells, the three 

hundred (300) pounds of potassium chlorate which the defen- 

dant Rosado sought to buy from Agent Stabile could have 

been used to construct, at least two thousand four hundred 

(2400) incendiary devices of the type customarily employed 

by the FALN. 

The response of Andres Rosado to the testimony of 

Sergeant Wells is of striking significance. 1n.a symbolic 

gesture during trial, all of the defendants removed 

themselves from the counsel table and sat in the first row 

of benches. (49). When Sergeant Wells testified to some 

very technical matters relating to the construction of 

explosive devices, Andres Rosado resumed his seat at the 



end of the counsel table and, for the first time, took 

notes. Rosado also personally reviewed the investigative 

file of Sergeant Wells relating to the bomb factory 

seizures, which was furnished to the defense in the 

courtroom. (976-977; 3500 exhibits 1,2,3). 

The training received by the defendant Andres 

Rosado in the military prepared him well for his 

negotiations with Agent Stabile. While serving in the U.S. 

Army during the years 1962-1964, the defendant Rosado was 

qualified in two military occupation specialities 

(hereafter uMOS1t). In his primary MOS, he was designated a 

heavy weapons specialist (MOS 112.1) which required him, 

among other things, to direct deployment of personnel and 

select sites for employment of crew-served weapons, to 

supervise fire direction activities and to compute firing 

data, to serve as gunner and assistant gunner on indirect 

fire crew-served weapons and to know how to prepare these 

weapons and ammunition for firing. In his secondary MOS, 

the defendant Rosado was trained as an ammunition storage 

specialist (MOS 411.1) which required him, among other 

things, to receive, store and issue various types of 

ammunition, including chemical ammunition, ammunition 

components and military explosives and to know techniques 

for destroying and neutralizing unserviceable and 

irreparable ammunition, ammunition components and 



explosives. (See - Army Regulation 611-201 dated 15 June 
1960 annexed as exhibit B). Also, a U-S. Army manual 

entitled Wperation and Maintenance Instructions for 

Sniperscopes" bearing the name ItP . F . C. Andrew Rosadott was 
found in the Queens bomb factory described later. From 

these and other facts, we submit that Andres Rosado is an 

FALN bomb technician, ample explanation for his refusal to 

testify before the grand jury. 

The National Commission on Hispanic Affairs 

The National Commission on Hispanic Affairs 

(hereafter ItNCHAtt) was created at the General Convention of 

the Episcopal Church in 1970. Between 1971 and 1976, the 

NCHA disbursed over one million dollars ($1,000,000) in 

grants of funds provided by the Episcopal Church which 

limited the purpose for which these funds could be used as 

follows : 

Provided, that no grant under this 
program shall be made to any 
organization if such organization or 
any officer or agent thereof advocates 
the use of physical violence as a means 
of carrying out the program of the 
organization, and Provided further, 
that the funding of any grant shall be 
discontinued if the grantee or any 
officer or agent of the grantee shall 
be finally convicted of a crime which 
involves physical violence perpetrated 
in carrying out the program of the 
organization. 



; -  , 
Maria Cueto had full and sole responsibility for financial 

matters of the NCHA and the purchase of equipment 

(653-654). ~ l l  told, during her tenure, the NCHA expended 

over three million dollars ($3,000,000), a good portion of 

which was used to fund the travel of later convicted FALN 

members. Three of these defendants and other members of the 

FALN were also members of the NCHA while the defendant 

Cueto served as its director during the periods indicated: 

NAME - PERIOD CONVICTED SENTENCE (YEARS) 

Maria Cueto 5/1/71-9/1/76 Criminal Contempt - 
Julio Rosado 4/17/72-8/23/72 Criminal Contempt - 
Ricardo Romero 5/1/71-11/15/74 Criminal Contempt - 
Pedro Archuleta 5/1/71-5/23/74 Civil contempt - 
William Morales 2/4/75-7/15/76 explosives and arson ninety-nine 

violations (EDNY ) ; and two-thirds 
Queens County (99 2/31 

Luis Rosado 2/4/75-12/1/75 fugitive (Illinois; - 
EDNY ) 

Oscar Lopez 11/13/72-11/6/75 seditious conspiracy; fifty-five ( 55 )  
Hobbs Act (N.D. Ill.) 

Carlos Torres 1/14/76-7/15/76 seditious conspiracy; seventy-eight 
Hobbs Act (N.D. Ill.) (78) 

On at least one occasion, the defendant Cueto 

caused a fraudulent disbursement of one hundred thousand 

dollars ($100,000) of NCHA funds which were laundered 

through the Crusade for Justice organization. (See cash 

flow chart annexed as exhibit C). 



In early 1975, one Edward R. Lucero was chairman 

of the board of an organization known as the Colorado 

Economic Development ~ssociation (CEDA) located in Denver. 

At about that time, Lucero met with the defendant Cueto, 

Nita Marquez and Ernesto Vigil, the latter two of whom were 

affiliated with a Colorado organization known as the 

Crusade for Justice (hereafter 88CFJ18) which had been 

founded by the defendant Romero (488). 

On January 28, 1975, Lucero, at the request of 

Cueto, submitted a proposal for a fifty thousand dollar 

($50,000) grant from the ~ational Commission on Hispanic 

~ffairs (see letter, annexed as exhibit D). The CEDA board 

of directors turned down the proposal and so advised Lucero 

who, in turn, informed the defendant Cueto. Cueto told 

Lucero to stall for awhile, which he did, eventually 

accepting the fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) check which 

he then deposited into a CEDA account. In turn, at Cueto's 

direction, Lucero provided Vigil with a CEDA check, also in 

the amount of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000). 

Although Lucero did not know how this fifty 

thousand dollar ($50,000) check was expended, Nita Marquez 

provided him with a report detailing its disposition 

(annexed as exhibit E) and requested that he provide it to 

Cueto. Cueto advised Lucero that he should sign this 

financial statement reflecting the disbursement of the 



funds because CEDA had contracted the proposal out to 

another agency. Lucero signed the financial statement in 

the presence of Marquez and Cueto, even though he had no 

personal knowledge of what happened to the money. 

In fact, the CEDA board of directors turned down 

not only this first fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) check, 

but also a second one in 1976, and did not "contract out" 

the grant to another agency as the defendant Cueto had 

claimed. The process was repeated in 1976 when Lucero 

exchanged a second fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) NCHA 

check for a CEDA check at Cuetots request. Once each fifty 

thousand dollar ($50,000) CEDA check was deposited into a 

CFJ account, it was withdrawn over months by Ernest Vigil 

in 1975, and over months by Nita Marquez in 1976. Vigil 

was also a member of the NCHA in 1975 and 1976. Both Vigil 

and Marquez have long arrest records and refused to be 

interviewed by the FBI. The result is that the ultimate 

recipient of these two fifty thousand dollar ($50,000) 

amounts is, at present, unknown. 

According to its treasurer, Matthew Costigan, the 

Episcopal Church approved each apparent $50,000 grant to 

CEDA based on Cueto's representation that CEDA had 

authorized Lucero to apply for and accept each grant. The 

Episcopal Church would not have authorized disbursement of 

either $50,000 check had it been known that Lucero was 



acting without the knowledge or approval of CEDA. For its 

part, CEDA asserts that Lucero acted on his own, ultra 

vires . 
The FBI has attempted without success to trace 

other grants disbursed by the NCHA. On several occasions, 

grants were made to apparently fictitious organizations, 

either not listed in the phone book or else located at 

non-existent addresses. One check in the amount of twenty 

five thousand dollars ($25,000) dated May 31, 1976 was 

endorsed by FALN member Roberto Caldero, who later was 

adjudged in civil contempt for refusing to testify before 

the grand jury. 

The Gestetner Equipment 

The Hispanic Institute of Theology (hereafter 

llHIT1l) was formed in March of 1974 as an offshoot of the 

NCHA. The HIT received funding from the NCHA under the 

direction of Maria Cueto. 

On August 30, 1974, Maria Cueto ordered a 

Gestetner stencil making machine and a Gestetner 

duplicating machine to be delivered to the HIT at 175 9th 

Avenue, New York City. The price of the two'machines was 

$4,692.00. On September 5, 1974, Maria Cueto ordered 

paper, ink and other material for use with the Gestetner 

equipment. 



On September 11, 1974, an attempt was made to 

deliver the equipment. However, the HIT office was closed. 

Delivery was finally made to the defendant Cueto on 

September 23, 1974 as evidenced by her signature on the 

delivery notice and her name on other documents annexed as 

exhibit F. 

On October 26, 1974, five bombs exploded in New 

York City, and the FALN was heard from for the first time. 

The FALN claimed responsibility through a communique and 

through telephone calls to Associated Press. The 

communique was printed on Gestetner paper of the same type 

purchased by Maria Cueto and delivered to the HIT just 

thirty-three (33) days earlier. Notably, service records 

of the Gestetner Corporation indicate that the equipment 

remained at the office of the HIT until at least April 16, 

1975, four bombings later. 

i On July 12, 1978, the two Gestetner machines were 

found in the Queens bomb factory described below. Also 

found were Gestetner paper, stencils and ink, all similar 

to the supplies ordered by Maria Cueto in 1974. Following 

an examination by FBI and NYPD experts, it was determined 

that defects noted on the October 26, 1974 FALN communique 

were consistent with defects in the Gestetner duplicating 

I 
i machine, which also bore an ink impression of the FALN 

1 logo. Communiques in sixty-three (63) separate bombings 



were produced from the stencil which also produced several 

hundred blank communiques bearing the FALN logo which were 

also found in the apartment. 
I 

The Typewriter ~eceipt 

In August of 1977, an official of the NCHA 

notified the FBI that a receipt dated October 19, 1974 had 

been found taped underneath the desk used by Maria Cueto. 

typewriter. The receipt, for the purchase of a 

Smith-Corona Classic XII, was in the name "Elizabeth 

Belmonte, 176 Smith Street, Brooklyn, New York". FBI 

investigation determined that the name was fictitious. 

Moreover, the NCHA knew nothing about the typewriter. 

Examination by the FBI crime laboratory concluded 

that the first five New York FALN communiques, including 

the one claiming responsibility for the Fraunces Tavern 

bombing where four persons were murdered, were typed on a 

typewriter with characters consistent with those of a 

Smith-Corona Classic XI1 typewriter. The typewriter 

corresponding to the NCHA receipt has never been found. 

At the trial of this case, a joint defense was 

mounted whereby the defendants sought to convince the jury 

that their positions with the NCHA made them lay ministers 

of the Episcopal ~hurch.y Their ministry would be a£ fected 

by their appearance before the grand jury, or so the 

argument went. Although issues of canon law are beyond the 



scope of t h i s  memorandum, w e  do note t h a t  the  Episcopal 

Church as an i n s t i t u t i o n  did not  intervene when a grand 

jury subpoena was f i r s t  served on t h e  defendant Cueto, In - 
t he  Matter of Wood 430 F.Supp. 41 (S.D.N.Y.  1977) and - - - 
t h a t  the Episcopal Church has never considered the 

defendants as clergy for  t a x  o r  soc ia l  securi ty  purposes, 

o r  any other purpose. None of the  defendants had any 

formal t i e s  with the  NCHA by t h e  t i m e  they were subpoenaed 

before the  grand jury i n  1977. Final ly ,  t he  a f f idav i t  of 

Bishop Milton L. Wood (annexed as  exh ib i t  G )  lays t o  rest 

once and for  a l l  any claim of p r iv i l ege  o r  re l igious 

jus t i f i ca t ion  on the p a r t  of any of these defendants. 

In addit ion t o  funding the  purchase of the 

missing typewriter and equipment found i n  the Queens bomb 

factory,  the defendant Cueto1s misuse of other NCHA funds 

c a l l s  i n t o  question the function of t h e  NCHA-FALN l ink .  

Cueto's dupl ic i ty  i n  making misrepresentations t o  the 

Episcopal Church t o  ge t  authorization t o  disburse one 

hundred thousand dol la rs  ($100,000) i n  1975 and 1976, t h e  

award and payment of expenses f o r  t r a v e l  of the defendant 

Ricardo Romero, Oscar Lopez and Luis Rosado a t  the  time of 

the  f i r s t  FALN bombings i n  N e w  York i n  1974, and a grant  of 

twenty-five thousand dol la rs  ($25,000)  paid t o  FALN member 

Roberto Caldero, provides subs tan t i a l  evidence t h a t  the  

NCHA was used as  a source of funds f o r  the  FALN. 



The Search of t h e  Defendant Maria Cuetots Apartment 

On March 10, 1977, Maria Cueto moved out of an 

apartment located a t  192 Lincoln Place, Brooklyn, New York. 

On March 22, 1977, agents of t h e  FBI and members of t h e  

Bomb Squad (NYPD) searched the apartment w i t h  the  consent 

of the  landlord. A dog named "Brandy," who was special ly  

t ra ined i n  the detection of explosive residues and had 

proven r e l i a b l e  many times i n  t h e  p a s t ,  accompanied the  

o f f i ce r s .  Upon entering the  apartment, a c lose t  was 

observed i n  t h e  bedroom, secured by a heavy duty hasp and 

padlock which had been i n s t a l l e d  by Cueto. The i n t e r i o r  of 

the  c l o s e t  contained several  shelves,  only two of which had 

not been painted and had not been placed i n  the  c lose t  by 

the  landlord. A l l  the  shelves, including those painted and 

the two unpainted, were removed from the  c lose t  and 

examined by Brandy, who then gave a pos i t ive  response t o  

the unpainted shelves, but  not  t o  the  painted shelves. 

T h i s  response was consis tent  with dynamite residue on the  

unpainted shelves. 

Thereafter,  the unpainted shelves were submitted 

t o  the  FBI Laboratory for  fur ther  analysis .  Laboratory 

t e s t s  proved inconclusive, i n  p a r t ,  because Brandy's nose 

was more sens i t ive  than the s t a t e  of the  a r t  equipment then 

avai lable  t o  the  FBI. According t o  experts  a t  the FBI 



Laboratory who have personally worked with Brandy, bomb 
! 

I dogs, par t icu lar ly  t h i s  one, a r e  espec ia l ly  good a t  

1 . detecting dynamite a s  opposed t o  o ther  explosives. Also, 
I 

E it was not a t  a l l  unusual f o r  bomb dogs t o  be able t o  

I detec t  dynamite residue which was beyond the detection 

i l i m i t s  of laboratory equipment. Further,  i n  the  opinion of 

I FBI explosive experts ,  fo r  Brandy t o  have detected dynamite 

I on those c lose t  shelves, dynamite must have been present 

ins ide  t h a t  c l o s e t  approximately within the  two months 

3/ p r i o r  t o  the search.- 

I 
I According t o  the  landlord, the  defendant J u l i o  

Rosado was a regular v i s i t o r  t o  the  apartment and had h i s  

own key.' After the  search, Rosado complained t o  the  

landlord for  permitting a search of the  apartment by the  

FBI. 

Sentences Received by Convicted FALN members 
. , -  

In addit ion t o  those a f f i l i a t e d  with the NCHA, 

o ther  FALN members have been convicted and sentenced as 

follows: 

NAME CONV I CTED SENTENCE (YEARS) 

Marie Haydee Torres explosives v io la t ion  l i f e  i m -  
causing death (SDNY) prisonment 

Dylcia Pagan sedi t ious  conspiracy eight (8)  ( s t a t e )  
Hobbs Act, weapons f i f ty - f ive  (55)  
offenses, robbery ( federal  ) 

Ricardo Jimenez e igh t  (8 )  
ninety (90 )  



Carmen Valentin 

Elizam Escobar 

Adolfo Matos 

Luis Rosa 

A 1  fredo Mendez fI 11 

Ida Luz Rodriguez t I  I t  

Alicea Rodriguez 

eight  (8) 
ninety (90) 

e ight  (8)  
s ix ty  (60) 
e ight  (8 )  
seventy (70) 

thirty-one (31) 
seventy-f ive (75) 

e ight  (8)  
seventy-f ive (75) 

eight  (8) 
seventy-five (75) 

t h i r t y  (30) 
f i f ty - f ive  (55) 

ACTS OF TERRORISM ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE FALN 

The FALN publicly emerged on October 26, 1974, 

. w h e n  the group claimed c red i t  for  f ive  bombings t ha t  

occurred i n  downtown New York City. The defendant Ricardo 

Rornero and convicted FALN member Oscar Lopez travelled t o  

New York on October 24, 1974 from Denver and Chicago 

respectively. They each returned t o  those c i t i e s  on 

October 27th, the  day a f t e r  the  bombings. In its next 

bombing, on December 11, 1974 the FALN ambushed a police 

off icer  of the  City of New York. 

The Ambush of Police Officer Anqel Poqqi 

On December 11, 1974, rookie Police Officer Angel 

Poggi was performing h i s  first day of duty w i t h  the  23rd 

Precinct, located i n  East Harlem. During their tour of 
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duty, Officer Poggi and h i s  par tner  received a c a l l  t o  

invest igate  a purported dead body a t  336 East 110th S t ree t ;  

When the  o f f i ce r s  arrived,  they could f ind  no evidence of 

t h i s  body, so  they departed the  building.  Later, a second 

c a l l  was received which directed t h e  o f f i ce r s  t o  the f i r s t  

f loo r  of the  building. Officer Poggi and h i s  partner 

returned i n  order t o  conduct a. more thorough invest igat ion 

and, when Officer Poggi pushed open a door, a booby t r a p  

device armed by a t r i p  wire-clothespin t r igge r  exploded i n  

h i s  face causing permanent in jury  which has required 

Officer Poggi t o  serve i n  a l imited duty s t a t u s  since t h a t  

date.  According t o  Sergeant Wells of the  Bomb Squad, t h i s  

clothespin t r igge r  was s imilar  t o  other booby t r a p  devices 

used by the  FALN, some of which were found i n  the  Queens 

bomb factory and Milwaukee safehouse described l a t e r .  

NCHA t r ave l  records indica te  t h a t  on December 8, 

1974, the  defendant Ricardo Romero flew t o  New York City, 

i . e . ,  th ree  days before the  ambush. These same records 

a l so  r e f l e c t  t h a t  L u i s  Rosado t r ave l l ed  from New York t o  

San Juan on December 18, 1974, then returned on December 

21,  1974. 

Fraunces Tavern 

The F A L N t s  next a s a u l t  on January 24,  1975, 

demonstrated i ts  capacity for  mass slaughter.  Four deaths, 

over s i x t y  serious i n j u r i e s  and extensive property damage 
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resulted when the FALN detonated a bomb i n  h is tor ic  

Fraunces Tavern during the lunch hour. Any notion of 

a l t r u i s t i c  motive and the use of bombs for  t he i r  symbolic 

value was dispelled by the placement of t h i s  bomb under a 

stairway adjacent t o  the main dining area. The photographs 

of the carnage a t  Fraunces Tavern (annexed as exhibit  H )  

make c lear  the cost of the s i lence of these defendants.q 

The most serious in jur ies  resulted,  not from the  b l a s t  

concussion, but from shrapnel produced from the victims1 

pla tes  and silverware as depicted i n  the  autopsy x-ray of 

one of the victims (also annexed). The attack on the  

innocent a t  Fraunces Tavern was followed several months 

l a t e r b y ' a t t a c k s  on four New York City buildings i n  April, 

1975. 

The FALN Broadens Its Attacks 

The FALN f i r s t  appeared i n  Chicago, I l l i no i s ,  on 

June 15, 1975, when they claimed responsibil i ty for  two 

powerful bombs tha t  detonated i n  the downtown Loop area. 

In  October, 1975, the FALN displayed a capabili ty for  

coordinated attack by simultaneously exploding bombs i n  New 

York City, Washington, D.C., and Chicago. During the 

following year, the FALN detonated several more devices i n  

New York and chicago, causing property damage and injuring 

innocent bystanders. For some unexplained reason, however, 

the  FALN did not claim responsibil i ty fo r  these incidents. 
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rather than explosive devices in the downtown Chicago 

Marshall Field Department Store. 

In late June, 1976, the FALN resumed making 

claims for its terrorist actions which were, during the 

subsequent years, to include both explosive and incendiary 

devices. One of these attacks was on the Hilton Hotel in 

New York City in September, 1976, and resulted in an 

estimated $300,000 in damages. Another target was the 

Merchandise Mart in Chicago which suffered an estimated 

$1,335,000 in damages from a February, 1977, bombing. An 

incendiary device placed in New York City's Gimbel's 

Department Store on October 11, 1977, resulted in a fire 

that caused damage estimated at $125,000. Perhaps the most 

violent of these attacks which occurred between June, 1976 

and July, 1978 was directed against the Mobil Oil Company 

employment office in New York City. On August 3, 1977, a 

powerful bomb detonated inside of this office during the 

busy morning rush period, killing one man and injuring 

several other bystanders. The bomb had been placed inside 

of an umbrella and left on a coat rack. 

On November 3, 1976, based on a tip from a drug 

addict, Chicago police discovered a I1bomb factoryvt in an 

apartment building located at 2659 West Haddon Street, 

Chicago, Illinois. This discovery led to the 
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identification of Carlos Alberto Torres, his wife Marie 
:*' 

Haydee Torres, Ida Luz "Lucyq1 Rodriguez, and Oscar Lopez as 

being involved in the criminal activities of the FALN. All 

four individuals immediately vanished, thus ending the 

double lives they had been leading for several years. The 

four had masqueraded as law abiding community members and 

had assiduously avoided doing anything that would have 

drawn attention to them. Indeed, nLucytt Rodriguez was 

working in an executive position with the federal 

government when the llbomb factory" was uncovered. Dynamite 

found in this apartment was identical to that used by the 

FALN in the bomb murder at the Mobil Oil building in New 
. . 

York City. 

In May, 1978, the FALN again mounted a 

coordinated attack by simultaneously placing devices in New 

York, New Jersey, and Washington, D.C., and threatening to 

bomb Chicago targets. A month later the group placed 

incendiary devices in three department stores in the 

Chicago suburb of Schaumburg. 

The Queens Bomb Factory 

On July 12, 1978, William Morales was severely. 

injured when a pipe bomb which he was constructing exploded 

in what can only be described as an FALN bomb factory 

located at 26-49 96th Street, Elmhurst, Queens, New York. 



Except t o  note t h a t  t h e  Queens bomb factory 

contained sixty-six (66)  s t i c k s  of dynamite and f i v e  

thousand (5,000) rounds of ammunition, the  extent  of the  

munitions seized is simply too extensive t o  d e t a i l  here 

(see - inventory annexed a s  exh ib i t  I ) .  However, two 

carbines, a r i f l e ,  a sawed off  shotgun and one handgun, the  

l a t t e r  recovered from another apartment i n  which Morales 

resided, have important l inks  t o  the  defendant Ricardo 

Romero who resides i n  Colorado. In f a c t ,  one of the  

carbines was purchased by Romero on October 6, 1974, a t  

Kent Sporting Goods, 3985 Tennyson, Denver, Colorado, and 

was shor t ly  thereaf te r  reported s to len  by him. The second 

carbine recovered from the  Queens bomb factory was reported 

s to len  i n  1974 by a Ronald Cochran a s  a r e s u l t  of a 

burglary a t  9900 East 25th S t r e e t ,  Aurora, Colorado. A .22 

ca l iber  Arminus revolver found i n  Moralest apartment was 

l a s t  owned by one Thomas Anthony of 303 Colorado Avenue, 

Grand Junction, Colorado, who reported a .22 ca l ibe r  

revolver s to len  on o r  about February 16 ,  1974. Some of the  

ammunition found i n  the bomb factory was i n  i t s  or ig ina l  

packaging which bore s t i cke r s  from Dave Cook Sporting 

Goods, where Romero had purchased two carbines other  than 

those found i n  the bomb factory.  Romero also reported 

these other  carbines s to len  from h i s  home i n  Colorado on 

April 1, 1975. They have never been recovered. 



There is more than the weapons and ammunition 

from the defendant Romero and the Gestetner copying machine 

paid for with NCHA funds by the defendant Cueto which links 

these defendants with the Queens bomb factory. The 

fingerprints of the defendant Julio Rosado were found on 

various items including an explosive ordinance disposal 

manual and a tool and die set manual for a die set found in 

the bomb factory. A die set is used to reload spent shells 

from fired ammunition. Hundreds of rounds of ammunition 

recovered from the bomb factory, in fact, had been 

reloaded. The fingerprints of the defendant Julio Rosado 

and William Morales were also found together in a "Lyman 

Reloading Manual". The fingerprints of the defendant 

Andres Rosado were found on an Army manual recovered from 

the bomb factory. By more than mere coincidence, one of 

his (Andres') fingerprints was found on a page of text 

which concerned the Geneva Convention, a matter of some 

significance to the FALN which will be discussed later. A 

concern for the integrity and ultimate success of this 

investigation prevents us from disclosing whether or not 

other fingerprints of any of these defendants were found in 

other places and on other items inside of the Queens bomb 

factory . 
In the opinion of Sergeant Wells of the Bomb 

Squad, the explosives and incendiaries, including sticks of 



constructed at least twenty-eight (28) explosive devices 

and two thousand six hundred and thirty-two (2632) 

incendiary devices of a type even more powerful than that 

customarily used by the FALN. 

Morales Escape 

On May 21, 1979, after his convictions in this 

District and Queens County, William Morales escaped from a 

Bellevue Hospital prison ward which was observable from'the 

apartment window of Andres Rosado, a former Bellevue 

employee, who then resided at apartment 30F, 444 Second 

Avenue, New York City. After Moralesl escape, a pair of 

bolt cutters and an ace bandage were recovered, and there 

was observed a rectangular cut in the steel security screen 

on a cell window through which Morales had escaped. 

The last and only contact visit that Morales had 

was with Susan Tipograph, one of his attorneys and, here, 

the "legal advisor" to the defendant ~ulio Rosado. This 

visit occurred between 6:20 p.m. and 7:10 p.m., on May 18, 

1979, after a search of the prison ward for contraband. 

For a few weeks prior to the date of the escape, Tipograph 

became increasingly vehement in asserting that the 

attorney-client privilege protected her from a search by 

correction officers. On one occasion, when correction 

officers denied her request to be exempted from a search, 
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she surrendered a knife  only a f t e r  repeated questioning. 

On t h e  day of her l a s t  v i s i t  with Morales, her bag was not  

searched, nor did she go through a metal detector,  nor was 

she physically searched. 

Jus t  before the evening meal on May 18th, Morales 

asked another inmate t o  t i e  a s e r i e s  of shoestrings around 

h i s  waist  so t h a t  a metal hook hung between his  legs.  

Morales was v i s i t e d  by Tipograph almost immediately a f t e r  

the shoestrings were t i e d  around h i s  wais t .  Morales t o l d  

the inmate t h a t  h i s  at torney,  " S ~ s a n , ~  and he were comrades 

and t h a t  she would do anything t h a t  he wanted. 

A t  about 9:30 t o  10:OO p.m., on May 18, 1979, 

Morales was observed with b o l t  c u t t e r s  concealed under h i s  

robe with an ace bandage. During t h e  next  two nights, 

Morales used t h e  b o l t  c u t t e r s  on the  screen through which 

he l a t e r  escaped. Various inmates a s s i s t e d  him i n  this 

through diversionary t a c t i c s .  Morales t o l d  one inmate t h a t  

he had or ig ina l ly  obtained the b o l t  c u t t e r s  from a v i s i t o r  

and t h a t  he could use the  b o l t  c u t t e r s  by tying them t o  t h e  

stumps of h i s  hands which had been severely injured during 

the Queens bomb factory explosion. 

A f t e r  h i s  escape, Morales' paramour, Dylcia 

Pagan, to ld  Alfredo Mendez t h a t  a female attorney strapped 

the b o l t  cu t t e r s  t o  her leg and smuggled them in to  Morales. 

She a l s o  s t a t ed  t h a t  Susan Tipograph helped a great  deal 
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with the escape. Mendez was advised of the  same f a c t  by 

Elizam Escobar, another incarcerated FALN member, and was 

fur ther  informed t h a t  the May 19th Communist Organization 

helped with t h e  escape, as  did  the  Black Liberation A m y  

which had armed teams i n  t h e  area of Bellevue Hospital a t  

the  time of the  escape. 

Before h i s  escape, one I f J .  Rosadovt, lfRosadovf and 

"Luis Rosadolt a l so  v i s i t e d  Morales, according t o  Department 

of Corrections records. These same records r e f l e c t  t h a t ,  

before h i s  escape, William Morales ca l l ed  the defendant 

J u l i o  Rosado on May 13, 1979, and a l s o  ca l led  the  defendant 

Maria Cueto twenty-five ( 2 5 )  t i m e s  from Bellevue Hospital 

during the period January 24, 1979 through April 20, 1979. 

FALN Bombings Continue 

In October, 1979 explosive devices detonated i n  

New York and Chicago i n  conjunction with a ser ies  of 

bombings on the  is land of Puerto Rico. Communiques issued 

both i n  the  United States  and Puerto Rico claimed 

respons ib i l i ty  for  these incidents  i n  the  names of the  FALN 

and three  other island-based groups. The jo in t  communiques 

a l so  informed the  world t h a t  a t  l e a s t  four Puerto Rican 

independence groups were now working i n  cooperation w i t h  

one another. In November, 1979 t h e  FALN struck again i n  

Chicago with t h e  placement of bombs a t  two mil i tary 

r ec ru i t ing  o f f i ces  and an armory. 



In mid-March, 1980, the FALN engaged in a new 

terrorist tactic when members of the group simultaneously 

seized the Carter-Mondale Presidential Campaign Office in 

Chicago and the George Bush Campaign Office in New York. 

Campaign workers were held hostage at gunpoint at each 

location while FALN members ransacked the facilities and 

stole supporter name lists. Shortly after the takeover, 

threatening communiques, in some instances accompanied by 

photos of their residences, were mailed to approximately 

two hundred (200) Carter-Mondale supporters including 

Democratic National Convention delegates living throughout 

the State of Illinois. 

FALN members were responsible for other armed 

confrontations. On December 24, 1979 armed FALN members 

conducted the well-planned armed robbery of an armored 

truck in Milwaukee,  isc cons in. On January 14, 1980, 

heavily armed FALN members attempted to rob the Oak Creek, 

Wisconsin National Guard Armory of machineguns and other 

weapons. The attempt was thwarted when the personnel on 

duty at the armory convinced the gunmen that the vault 

could not be opened and that the weapons had no bolts. 

The Arrest In Evanston 

On April 4, 1980, Evanston, Illinois police, 

during a routine patrol, arrested eleven (11) FALN members 

who had assembled for the purpose of robbing an armored 
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. . .$ truck making a pickup at Northwestern University. Seized k 
with the arrestees who included Alfredo Mendez were a 

stolen truck, stolen van and cars, thirteen (13) weapons, 

various disguises and articles of false identification. 
f 

B Investigation stemming from these arrests led to 

the discovery of FALN llsafehousesll in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, 

Jersey City, New Jersey, and Chicago. 
$C 

Following the arrests on April 4 ,  1980, state and 

federal indictments naming all of the arrestees were 

returned. Haydee Torres was extradited to New York where 

she was convicted and sentenced to life imprisonment for 8 
$ the August 3, 1977 fatal bombing of New York City's Mobil 
'Y 
1, 
$ Oil Building. The case against Torres consisted primarily 
$ 

of eyewitness identification and her fingerprint found at 
." 
7. the scene. The remaining ten (10) defendants were 

convicted in Illinois state court of armed violence and 

weapons offenses. On December 10, 1980, those ten (10) 

defendants were indicted in the Northern District of 

Illinois for seditious conspiracy, Hobbs Act armed robbery, 

interstate transportation of stolen motor vehicles and 

various weapons offenses. All were convicted by a jury and 

were sentenced on February 18, 1980 to terms of 

incarceration ranging from fifty-five (55) to ninety (90) 

years consecutive to the state sentences previously 

imposed. 



Following the Apri l ,  1980 a r r e s t s ,  other FALN 

re la t ed  armed robbery attempts took place i n  the  Chicago 

area. On November 19,  1980, a heavily armed group of 

approximately e ight  individuals took over a Texaco Service 

S ta t ion  located a t  6140 North Broadway, Chicago, ~ l l i n o i s ,  

apparently i n  an e f f o r t  t o  rob an armored truck t h a t  was 

due t o  stop there short ly .  The truck was delayed and the 

invaders departed, leaving t h e  service s t a t i o n  personnel 

bound with rope. The modus operandi i s  s imi lar  t o  other 

FALN armed robberies and armed robbery attempts. Alfredo 

Mendez has advised agents of t h e  FBI t h a t  during v i s i t s  a t  

t he  Chicago Metropolitan Correctional Center during ear ly  

1981, he was to ld  by FALN member Roberto Caldero t h a t  the 

FALN committed the  Texaco robbery. 

On December 10, 1980, a few hours a f t e r  the  

I l l i n o i s  federal indictment was returned, FALN members t i e d  

up an employee and a t  gunpoint s t o l e  a van from Highland 

Park Ford, Highland Park, I l l i n o i s .  FALN members Felix 

Rosa and Luis Rosado were a r res ted  a f t e r  a high speed chase 

on the  Edens Expressway involving cars  from numerous police 

agencies. Rosa is current ly  serving a twelve ( 1 2 )  year 

t e r m  i n  prison for  h i s  p a r t  i n  t h a t  robbery. Luis Rosado 

jumped bond and i s  current ly  a fugi t ive  on t h i s  and other 

charges discussed below. 



On December 21, 1980 two bombs utilizing the 

propane gas tanks typical of FALN devices exploded in 

. lockers at Penn station in New York City. A telephone 

caller and a written communique claimed responsibility in 

the name of the previously unheard of Resistencia Armada 

Puertorriquena (Puerto Rico Armed Resistance). The devices 

have numerous similarities to the devices contructed and 

claimed by the FALN. 

On May 16 and 17, 1981, a few days after the 

Glenview, Illinois arrest of fugitive FALN leader Oscar 

Lopez, a series of bombs were planted in various locations 

in the crowded Pan American Airways Terminal of John F. 

Kennedy Airport in New York City. The first device 

exploded in an occupied washroom killing one person. A 

second device was found in a zipper bag placed under a seat 

in what had been a crowded terminal area. It was 

deactivated by the New York Bomb Squad before it could 

explode. A third device was found hidden in a wall-mounted 

trash receptacle. This bomb as well as two bombs which 

were mailed to the Honduran Consulate and to the United 

States Mission to the United Nations were not equipped with 

timing devices, but rather appear to have been designed to 

detonate while being dismantled. Two of the three devices 

exploded in that fashion. A11 of these devices were 

claimed by the Puerto ~ican Armed Resistance, although 



, 
striking similarities to FALN techniques of bomb con- 

struction were observed. 

On February 28 and March 1, 1982 four powerful 

dynamite bombs detonated in New York City's financial 

district. FALN members claimed credit for these explosions 

in a five page communique. The language of that communique 

expresses solidarity with and support for persons involved 

in a number of other violent criminal activities. A copy 

of the communique was found in a telephone booth on 

Riverside Drive and 91st Street in Manhattan, only a few 

blocks from the apartment shared by Silvia Baraldini and 

Michelle Miller, leaders of the May 19th Communist 

Organization. 

On September 20, 1982, a powerful bomb exploded 

outside Bankers Trust in New York City causing extensive 

property damage. An individual telephoned the New York 

office of United Press International and claimed 

responsibility for this bombing on behalf of the FALN. 

INVESTIGATION OF FALN SAFEHOUSES 

As a direct result of the arrest of the eleven 

(11) heavily armed FALN members on April 4, 1980, FALN 

safehouses were discovered in Chicago, Illinois, Milwaukee, 

Wisconsin, and Jersey City, New Jersey. Others were dis- 

covered in Pittsburgh, ~ennsylvania and New York City 



during the investigation of the Brinks robbery in Nyack. 

New York. 

The Jersey City Safehouse 

This safehouse was rented in the name of James 

and Doris Bonk, names utilized by FALN fugitives Carlos 

Alberto Torres and Marie Haydee Torres. 

A thorough search of this apartment on April 8, 

1980. revealed the following items: blasting caps, pipe 

bomb components; a military booby-trap simulator, 

detonation timers made from altered watches, jeweler's 

tools used to alter the watches, propane gas tanks, 

batteries and electrical components, firearms ammunition, 

four pairs of handcuffs, makeup and disguise books; 

newspaper articles regarding FALN perpetrated bombings. 

paper bearing the F A W  logo. copies of the threatening 

communique sent to the Carter-Mondale delegates, diagrams 

and documents relating to potential FALN targets, and 

extensive intelligence files and dossiers compiled on 

prominent Americans in the public and private sectors. 

The Milwaukee Safehouse 

The Milwaukee safehouse was a single family 

residence which had been purchased in the name of Camen 

Ayala and Alexander Gonzalez, names utilized by FALN 

fugitives Ida Luz Rodriguez and Oscar Lopez, respectively. 

According to Alfredo Mendez, the Milwaukee safehouse was 



used extensively as a planning and training site by the 

FALN during the period January 1980 through April 4, 1980. 

There is substantial evidence that the defendant 3ulio 

Rosa& participated in these activities which we recount 

now. 

After arriving at the Milwaukee safehouse for the 

first time in December 1979 or January 1980, Mendez was led 

to a basement workshop where Oscar Lopez told him that the 

dayts purpose was to instruct Mendez in the proper 

construction of various types of explosive and incendiary 

devices. As is described in great detail in Mendezt trial 

testimony against Oscar Lopez, Mendez spent several hours 

being schooled in the tools and techniques of bomb 

manufacture. Lopez described and demonstrated the 

techniques and watched while Mendez practiced. Mendez 

learned how to alter watches to serve as time delays, and 

learned how to build firing circuits. Lopez also described 

the circumstances which led to the New York incident in 

which William Morales blew off his hands in an FALN bomb 

factory in Queens, New York. Lopez described how the watch 

on that particular pipe bomb had been incorrectly altered, 

thereby causing premature detonation. Throughout the day's 

instruction, Lopez had Mendez construct approximately ten 

(10) timing devices and firing circuits. 



On January 13, 1980, Mendez again travelled with 

Lopez to the Milwaukee safehouse, where they joined eight 

or nine other individuals. All present except for Lopez 

wore masks. Everyone but Lopez and one female wore gloves. 

After dinner, all present went to the basement to 

discuss the plans for the armed robbery of the Oak Creek, 

Wisconsin, National Guard Armory. Carlos Torres and FALN 

fugitive leader ~illiam Morales, did most of the briefing. 

A detailed discussion of the surveillances both inside and 

outside the armory took place. Sketches were displayed and 

explained. Torres utilized a chalk board in this briefing, 

and explained that hand grenades, mortars, machineguns, 

M-16, rifles, and bazookas would be obtained. The raid 

plan was discussed and assignments made. Either Carlos 

Torres or William Morales stated that New York people were 

expected to bring with them two machineguns. The decision 

was made, however, to conduct the raid without the 

machineguns because the New York people never showed up. 

The meeting lasted until 1:00 a.m. when the participants 

went to sleep with their masks on. 

The Oak Creek raiders including Mendez left the 

Milwaukee safehouse on January 14, 1980, at approximately 

6:00 a.m. They proceeded to the Oak Creek Armory, where 

they conducted the raid. Following the raid, they returned 



to thesafehouse where they again wore pillowcase-like 

masks. 

~t the Milwaukee safehouse, Mendez carried on a 

discussion with a woman he believed to be FALN co-defendant 

Lucy ~odriguez, who questioned him about his success in 

finding safehouses in the Chicago area. Mendez discussed 

his need for funds for a security deposit, at which time 

Lopez indicated that money was no problem. Lopez and 

Rodriguez produced a box and a bag crammed full of ten, 

twenty and fifty dollar bills, for which Lopez gave Mendez 

five hundred dollars ($500). Mendez estimated that the box 

and bag contained tens of thousands of dollars. 

On April 3, 1980, Mendez and FALN co-defendants 

Dick Jimenez and Carmen ~alentin along with Mendez, using a 

roundabout route, drove to the Milwaukee safehouse, picking 

up Lopez on the way. Upon their arrival, Mendez donned a 

pillowcase-like mask, entered, and observed William Morales 

talking with a group of masked individuals about firearms 

and other military topics. Morales discussed a number of 

things on this occasion, including his time in jail before 

his escape. 

At one point, Mendez walked to the upstairs of 

the house, where he observed what appeared to be two sticks 

of dynamite wrapped with tape lying on the floor. Mendez 

noticed a large, multi-band radio which Lopez advised had 
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Mendez a lso  observed various 

walkie-talkies and what appeared t o  be police band radios. 

Between 1:00 and 2 : 0 0  p.m. on April 3,  1980 a l l  

the p o p l e  i n  the  house proceeded t o  the  basement, where 

they conferred u n t i l  night-time about t h a t  "actionu planned 

f o r  the next day. Lopez and Morales and others explained 

t h a t  the  t a r g e t  was an armored truck carrying money from 

Northwestern University, Evanston, I l l i n o i s .  Handguns and 

shoulder weapons would be used. A l l  were t o  regroup a t  a 

hote l  on Chicago's northwest s ide  a f t e r  the  robbery. 

Many questions and comments regarding the  robbery 

took place throughout the  meeting. The plan, however, 

remained basical ly  as  Morales and Lopez had i n i t i a l l y  

out l ined it. They made c l e a r  t h a t  they had done this type 

of job before and knew how it was done. They bragged i n  

p a r t i c u l a r  about a big armored truck job t h a t  they had done 

i n  New York. During the  evening, Lopez advised t h a t  three 

people from New York who were supposed t o  pa r t i c ipa te  and 

br ing  two machineguns and c r y s t a l s  for  walkie-talkies had 

n o t  arrived because of a t ranspor ta t ion  problem. Lopez 

f e l t  t h a t  the  action could s t i l l  be accomplished because 

t h e  group had su f f i c i en t  manpower and various other 

weapons. Although the d i f f i c u l t i e s  of communicating 

without the radio c rys ta l s  w e r e  discussed, Lopez made c l e a r  

t h a t  the plan would go forward. Early the  next morning, 



Mendez and the individuals who would be arrested later that 

day, departed the Milwaukee safehouse and proceeded to 

Evanston, Illinois. They were arrested later that day. 

The search of the Milwaukee safehouse on April 

8-9, 1980 yielded a number of items stolen in armed 

robberies, including citizen's band radios and radio 

scanners, a rifle, military gear and files stolen in the 

National Guard armory raid, files stolen during the 

Carter-Mondale raid, and items of personal identification 

stolen from a number of victims. Also recovered were army 

fatigues believed to have been used in the armory raid and 

a postal carrier's uniform believed to have been used in 

connection with the Milwaukee armored car robbery 

perpetrated by the FALN on December 24, 1979. 

Other items of physical evidence recovered from 

this safehouse included: pipe bomb components, blasting 

caps, numerous altered watches, jewelers tools, a 

bulletproof vest, weapons ammunition, a makeshift 

soundproof weapons firing booth with target range, four 

pair of handcuffs, extensive disguise paraphernalia, a 

shotgun hidden in the false bottom of a dresser, and the 

barrel of a sawed-off shotgun recovered in the Evanston 

arrest. Also recovered were communications gear, FALN 

literature and the stencil used to produce the 

Carter-Mondale communique. 



A large  number of weapons, l a r g e  quan t i t i e s  of 

cash,  survei l lance  diagrams and photos, a s  well  a s  a l a rge  

album containing photographs of law enforcement o f f i c e r s  

( a l l  a s  described by Alfredo Mendez) had been removed by 

t h e  time of the  search. Mendez l a t e r  learned from h i s  

co-defendants t h a t  Lopez had narrowly escaped a r r e s t  i n  

Evanston and had hur r ied ly  c a r r i e d  away what he could, 

The f i nge rp r in t s  of t h e  defendant J u l i o  Rosado 

were found ins ide  of t h e  Milwaukee safehouse, on pages of 

newspapers from Puerto Rico - - La Nuevo Dia - - dated March 

1 3 t h  and March 16th, 1980. One of these  same newspapers 

a l s o  bore the  f i nge rp r in t s  of FALN member Adolfo Matos, who 

was a r res ted  i n  Evanston on Apri l  4, 1980. Fingerprints  of 

o t h e r  convicted FALN members including Marie Haydee Torres,  

Oscar Lopez, Carlos Torres,  Lucy Rodriguez, Dick Jimenez 

and Carmen Valentin were a l s o  found i n  t h e  Milwaukee 

safehouse. 

The Shore Avenue (Chicago) Safehouse 

Apartment 2-E,  1334 West North Shore Avenue, 

Chicago, I l l i n o i s ,  was rented i n  t h e  name of one Maria Ruiz 

who has advised the  FBI t h a t  she never res ided a t  t h i s  

l oca t ion ,  although, her  personal  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  had been 

s t o l e n  p r i o r  t o  t he  r e n t a l  of t h i s  apartment i n  her name. 

The search of t h i s  safehouse on Apri l  9 ,  1980 

revea led  the  following i t e m s :  b l a s t i n g  caps, wire,  and 



I bomb components, a radio, rubber gloves and disguise 

paraphernalia. 

The Ainslie Street (Chicago) Safehouse 

At the time of his arrest on May 29, 1981, Oscar 

Lopez was driving a vehicle registered in the fictitious 

name of Gilberto Escribano, 3151 West Ainslie, Chicago, 

I Illinois. Lopez also had in his possession a variety of 

stolen and forged identification. 

L A search of Apartment 1-B, 3151 West Ainslie on 
f 

May 30, 1980 produced a host of terrorist related 
I 

paraphernalia. Advised by Mendez to scrutinize the walls 

for hidden compartments, agents found three plastic bags of 

dynamite hidden behind a panel in the hallway. Also found 

in the safehouse were blasting caps, a .22 caliber 

automatic pistol and ammunition, disguise paraphernalia and 

a bomb timing device. Also found were FALN documents, 

which included sheets of white paper bearing the FALN logo; 

a pamphlet titled "Assaults on Bank UnitsB1 and a document 

concerning Cadre development pages of the ItAnarchist1s 

Cookbookv1 which deal with electronics, sabotage and 

surveillance. Also found was a handwritten rough draft of 

the Carter-Mondale communique. 

Two other extremely significant documents were 

found. The first consisted of seven pages of an internal 

FALN manual entitled ''In This We Trusttt. The seven pages 



recovered are the most important of the entire manual for 

they describe in exact detail the particular method by 

which FALN members construct their explosives and 

incendiary devices. "In This We Trustbb was first located 

in the Queens bomb factory searched subsequent to the 

explosion which maimed FALN fugitive leader and bomb maker 

William Morales. Pages were later recovered during the 

search of Marilyn Buck's East Orange, New Jersey apartment 

in connection with the Nyack, New York armored car robbery 

investigation. The training in bomb making which convicted 

FALN member Oscar Lopez gave FALN recruit Alfredo Mendez 

tracks these diagrams exactly. 

'The 50th Place (chicago) Safehouse 

Investigation resulting from the discovery of a 

scanning radio repair receipt in Oscar Lopez's car led to 

Apartment 13-A, 607 East 50th Place, Chicago, Illinois, 

which was leased in the name of Harry Barren. 

On September 29, 1981, discovered during a search 

consented to by the management were three radios, timers, 

and disguise paraphernalia. 

One latent fingerprint of FALN fugitive, Luis 

Rosado, was identified on the toaster in this apartment. 

As previously indicated, Rosado is currently a fugitive for 

both the Highland Park, Illinois Ford dealership armed 



robbery and the New Year's Eve New York bombings which 

maimed three police officers of the City of New York. 

The Pittsburgh Safehouse 

On March 3 and 6, 1982, during the investigation 

of the Brinks robbery in Nyack, New York a search warrant 

was executed in a safehouse located at 350 Omega Street, 

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, used by a cross-section of 

terrorists. The fingerprints of defendant Julio Rosado and 

Michael Deutsch, attorney for the defendant Andres Rosado 

I and William Morales, were found inside of the safehouse 
5 
$ along with the fingerprints of the following other persons: 
3 
9: Nathaniel Burns - a member of the Republic of New 
i Afrika, indicted in the SDNY on racketeering charges, 

including the Brinks robbery and other crimes. 

Donald Weems - a member of the Black Liberation 
Army, currently under indictment in Rockland County for 

murder as a result of the Brinks robbery. 

Yvonne Thomas - Thomas, now a government witness, 
was the wife of Samuel Smith, a participant in the Brinks 

robbery who was killed in a shoot-out with police officers 

in Queens, New York, on October 23, 1982. Smith's prints 

were also found in the safehouse. 

Joanne Chesimard - a leader of the Black 
Liberation Army, currently a fugitive after having escaped 



D 

49, 

from custody where she was serving a l i f e  sentence f o r  t h e  

murder of a po l i ce  o f f i c e r .  

Tyrone Rison - an admitted p a r t i c i p a n t  i n  t h e  

planning of the  Brinks robbery and o the r  robberies,  who is 

now a cooperating government witness.  

Ceci l io  Rodrigo Ferguson - a member of the  

Republic of New Afrika, cur ren t ly  under indictment i n  t he  

Brinks case i n  t h e  SDNY during which t h e  ~oGernment expects 

t o  prove that Ferguson ac tua l ly  p a r t i c i p a t e d  i n  the  Brinks 

murders with an M - 1 6  r i f l e .  

J e r a l  Wayne Williams - a member of the  Republic 

of New Afrika, cur ren t ly  under indictment i n  t h e  Brinks 

case i n  the SDNY. Williams is one of  t h e  FBI's t e n  most 

wanted fug i t ives .  

Susan Rosenberg - a member of t h e  May 19th 

Communist Organization, cur ren t ly  i nd ic t ed  i n  t h e  Brinks 

case i n  t h e  SDNY; Rosenberg is cu r ren t ly  a fug i t ive .  

Anita Louise Hearn - a former r e s iden t  of 245 

West 139th S t r e e t ,  i n  which was loca ted  an acupuncture 

c l i n i c  used by t h e  Black Liberat ion Army and the 

Revolutionary Armed Task Force a s  a communications center .  

Robert Vickers - incarcera ted  member of t he  Black 

Liberat ion Army. 
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Raymond Ol iver  - a  member o f  t h e  Republic of New 

Afrika,  who admitted p a r t i c i p a t i n g  i n  an armored t ruck  

robbery and who has t e s t i f i e d  a s  a  Government witness.  

Marilyn Buck - as soc i a t e  of  t h e  Black Libera t ion  

Army, cu r r en t l y  an i nd i c t ed  f u g i t i v e  i n  t h e  Brinks case  i n  

t h e  SDNY. 

Jesse  Dixon - a  l e ade r  of t h e  Provis ional  

Government of t h e  Republic of N e w  Af r ika ,  a  support group 

of t h e  Black L ibera t ion  Army. 

Anthony Laborde - a  member of  t h e  Black 

Libera t ion  Army; charged with murder of  one N e w  York Ci ty  

po l i ce  o f f i c e r  and the attempted murder o f  another ,  Laborde 

was found g u i l t y  of  t h e  attempted murder i n  Queens County 

and i s  awaiting r e t r i a l  on t h e  murder charge. 

Yaasmyn Fula - presen t ly  i nca rce r a t ed  f o r  c i v i l  

contempt f o r  r e fu s ing  t o  t e s t i f y  be fore  t h e  grand jury i n  

t h e  SDNY i n v e s t i g a t i n g  t h e  Brinks c a s e  

Susan Rautenberq - a  former roommate of  Susan 

Rosenberg and Susan Tipograph, l e g a l  adv i s e r  t o  defendant 

J u l i o  Rosado and a t to rney  f o r  S i l v i a  Bara ld in i  and Michelle 

Mi l l e r ;  Bara ld in i  i s  on t r i a l  a s  a  defendant  i n  t h e  Brinks 

case  i n  t h e  Southern D i s t r i c t  of  N e w  York. 

Winston P a t r i c k  Paterson - a s s o c i a t e  of  the 

Republic of New Afrika;  a s s i s t e d  i n  t h e  escape of  Joanne 



I Chesimard and participated in the reconnaissance of the 

armored car robbery in Inwood, New York, on April 22, 1980. 

The Baraldinimiller Apartment 

I This series of fingerprints provides clear 

evidence of an operational alliance among various terrorist 

groups. Many questions for these defendants literally jump 

t to mind from the Pittsburgh safehouse fingerprints alone. 

I Silvia Baraldini extolled this alliance when, on February 

2, 1983, she made the following statement to Judge Eugene 

Nickerson at the time she was adjudged in civil contempt 

along with Michelle Miller: 

We believe and we want to make it clear 
that the Puerto Rican people, the 
Puerto Rican nation, and the 
revolutionary movement has a total 
right to engage in armed struggle, to 
achieve their political goals ... one of 
the things that's demonstrated is that 
the FALN is existing, and it's still 
continuing to act in a political 
fashion, to further the demands for 
Puerto Rican independence. 

In the Matter of ~araldini and Miller, docket no. -- - 
CV-83-0833, Tr. 2/2/83, pp. 75, 77-78 (E.D.N.Y.). 

Baraldini and her roomate Michelle Miller refused to be 

questioned about an exact carbon copy of an original FALN 

I communique, found in her apartment, which claimed 

1 responsibility for the four bombings which occurred in 

W Manhattan on February 28, 1982. The communique (annexed as 

1 exhibit J) makes clear that the FALN bombings of 



February 28, 1982 were executed in support of incarcerated 

members of the Black ~iberation Army. Even more ominous is 

a document seized from the person of Baraldini on November 

9, 1982, which suggests the development of new tactics: 

We should also consider new tactics - for 
example, a campaign that targets 
individual U.S. Attorneys or grand jurors 
and holds them accountable for the impact 
of their actions. This type of campaign 
can be taken to their neighborhoods and 
places of work, as well as to other areas 
where we are organizing, and,can serve to 
demoralize these agents of imperialist 
strategy. 

No collaboration with the Grand Jury! 
Support the armed clandestine movements! 
Free all political prisoners and 
prisoners of war! Defeat U.S. 
Imperialism. 

The importance of pursuing the interconnections 

between terrorist groups is underscored by the contempt of 

Baraldini, an admitted member of the May 19th Communist 

Organization who is now on trial, along with members of the 

Black Liberation Army, on RICO and other charges in the 

Southern District of New York. Along with the communique, 

the search executed in her apartment on November 9, 1982 

uncovered folders labelled llFALN" and llMorales escape1' as 

well as photographs of William Morales (annexed as exhibit 

K) obviously taken before his arrest in the Queens bomb 

factory on July 12, 1978. Also recovered from the 



Baraldini - Miller apartment was a photograph of Pedro 
Archuleta, a receipt f0r.a money order dated July 19, 1982 

made out to the defendant Romero by Baraldini, instructions 

explaining how to fill out birth certificates as well as 

blank birth certificate forms and a receipt for a charge on 

a credit card held by the defendant Julio Rosado. 

Despite the intensive investigation by the 

government into the activities of the FALN the only 

instances where arrests have been made were a result of 

circumstances unrelated to any ongoing investigation. For 

example, discovery of FALN safe houses in Chicago resulted 

from a tip from a narcotics addict who burglarized one of 

the safe houses and stole dynamite. In New York, the 

Queens bomb factory in 1978 was discovered only because of 

the premature explosion of the bomb while William Morales 

was in the process of constructing the device. The April 

4, 1980 arrests in Evanston, Illinois were a result of 

local police being notified that the defendants were acting 

~~suspicious1y~~ . 
The silence of these defendants and others leaves 

unanswered important questions regarding the criminal 

partnership among various self-styled revolutionary groups, 

whose tactics include concerted and direct physical attacks 

upon those sworn to uphold the constitutional process. 



The Arrest of Defendant Julio Rosado 

At about 11:OO p.m. on June 16, 1981, Police 

Officer Barbieri (NYPD), while serving on an anti-crime 

patrol, observed the defendant Julio Rosado spray painting 

the letters F.A.L.N. on the wall of a Teamsters Union local 

located at 615 4th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York. Rosado was 

then arrested for criminal mischief and searched incident 

to this arrest. A briefcase carried by Rosado was found to 

contain photographs of William Morales, 

counter-surveillance photographs of members of the Joint 

Terrorist Task Force, directions on completing birth 

certificate and blank birth certificate forms. In addi- 

tion, the brief case contained a slip of paper bearing 

the following notations: 

Motorola 2 way radio 

Crystals FM 43.060 8 each 

5 /  43.560- 

Also, Rosado carried a photograph of himself, Juan Antonio 

Corretjer and Chicago FALN leader Jose Lopez. This 

triumvirate, consisting of the defendant Julio Rosado, 

Corretjer and Lopez, functions as the FALN Central Command 

according to Alfredo Mendez. 

The Defendant Steven Guerrats Trip To Puerto Rico 

On June 16, 1982, the defendant Steven Guerra 

travelled to Puerto Rico where he attended a meeting of a 



cross section of terrorists led by Juan Antonio Corretjer. 

Corretjer introduced Guerra as one of the leaders of the 

resistance in the United States. Guerrals connection with 

the Episcopal Church and its activities was described as a 

front for the pro-independence movement. !Y 
The discussion at the meeting included detailed 

plans for the ambush of police officers and the destruction 

of dams through the use of explosives. The meeting also 

focused on the murder of a police officer who was killed 

even though he wore body armor, because he was shot with an 

Israeli-made Uzi automatic weapon, several of which are in 

the hands of the Puerto Rican underground. 

The New Year's Eve Bombings 

The latest claimed action by members of the FALN 

was the tragic series of events which took place last New 

Year's Eve in New York City. Four powerful bombs were 

planted in the area of New York City Police Headquarters, 

the Federal Buiding housing the New York FBI Office and the 

buildings housing the United States Attorney's Office and 

the Courthouse for the Southern District of New York (the 

buildings are closely situated). One of these devices was 

rendered safe by Sergeant Charles Wells of the Bomb Squad 

(NYPD) who testified at the trial of this case. The other 

three exploded, causing extensive property damage and 

grievous personal injury. One police officer conducting a 



perimeter search of po l i ce  headquarters a f t e r  t h e  f i r s t  

bomb detonated approached a f r i e d  chicken container  placed 

near  an entrance. A s  he approached t h e  package, the  bomb 

i n s i d e  exploded, causing severe i n ju ry  t o  h i s  l e f t  f oo t  

which required amputation and i n j u r i e s  t o  h i s  eyes a s  well  
.* , 

a s  c u t s  and fragmentation wounds. Less than one hour 

l a t e r ,  two New York Bomb Squad o f f i c e r s  attempted t o  render 

s a f e  a device discovered a t  t h e  nearby bui ld ings  housing 

t h e  Court and United S t a t e s  Attorney's  Off ice  fo r  the  

Southern District of  New York. A s  t h e  o f f i c e r s  approached 

i t ,  the  device detonated, causing grievous i n j u r i e s  t o  both 

o f f i c e r s .  One was bl inded,  l o s t  four f ingers  from one 

hand, received two broken eardrums, l o s t  most of h i s  t e e t h  

and received se r ious  cu t s  from fragmentation and 

concussion. The second o f f i c e r  suf fe red  extensive eye 

damage causing poss ib le  l o s s  of s i g h t  i n  one eye, e a r  

damage and cuts .  Both o f f i c e r s  probably would have been 

k i l l e d  had they n o t  been wearing p ro t ec t ive  bomb s u i t s .  

The four th  device was rendered s a f e  and was recovered 

i n t a c t .  A f i f t h  device exploded ou ts ide  of t he  Federal 

Building housing t h e  Federal Court and t h e  United S t a t e s  

Attorney's  Office f o r  t h e  Eastern ~ i s t r i c t  of New York, 

causing extensive damage. Inves t iga t ion  and examination of 

bomb components l eads  t o  t he  conclusion t h a t  these  devices 



have similar components and are similar in construction to 

previous FALN devices. 

Responsibility in the name of the FALN was 

claimed by an individual who telephoned the following 

message to New York radio station WCBS as the bombs were 

exploding : 

This is the FALN. We are 
responsible for the bombings in New 
York City today. Free Puerto Rico. 
Free all political prisoners and 
prisoners of wars. 

The conversation was recorded and the tape played for a 

number of individuals familiar with the voices of persons 

known to participate in unlawful FALN related activities. 

The voice has been positively identified by Alfredo Mendez 

and other persons, as that of as Luis Rosado, the brother 

of the defendants Julio and Andres Rosado. A written 

communique from the FALN was reprinted in full in the 

Winter issue of ll~ibertadu, a publication of the National 

Committee to Free Puerto Rico Prisoners of War as follows: 

The Angel Rodriguez Cristobal Commando 
of the FALN assumes full responsibility 
for the coordinated armed attack against 
United States repressive agencies in New 
York City on December 31, 1982. 

This is the response of the Puerto 
Rican people in exile to the fascist 
repressive actions of the FBI, U.S. 
courts and police against our people in 
Puerto ~ i c o  and the U.S. 



* * *  

The FBI ,  cour t s ,  p o l i c e  a r e  our enemy 
and a r e  responsible f o r  implimenting the  
s t r a t egy  of  repress ion  and t e r r o r  agains t  
our people. Be prepared t o  accep t ' the  
consequences. 

FALN CENTRAL COMMAND 

On December 17, 1982, the defendant J u l i o  Rosado 

t r a v e l l e d  t o  Puerto Rico where he was observed by FBI 

s p e c i a l  agents and o f f i c e r s  of t h e  San Juan pol ice  meeting 

wi th  Juan Antonio Cor re t je r ,  Federico Cintron and Carlos 

Noya. Noya and Cintron a r e  scheduled t o  be t r i e d  on June 

12 ,  1983 fo r  cr iminal  contempt a r i s i n g  from t h e i r  r e f u s a l  

t o  t e s t i f y  before t h e  grand jury .  According t o  Alfredo 

Mendez, t h e  bombings of New Year ' s  Eve i n  New York Ci ty  

would have required t h e  sanc t ion  of Juan Antonio Cor re t j e r ,  

s ec re t a ry  general of the  Liga S o c i a l i s t a  Puertorriquena 

(Puer to  Rican S o c i a l i s t  League; h e r e a f t e r  ItLSPn).  

The defendant J u l i o  Rosado returned t o  New York 

on December 30, 1983, t h e  day before  t h e  New Year's Eve 

A 1  fredo Mendez 

Alfredo Mendez was a r r e s t e d  i n  Evanston, I l l i n o i s  

on Apri l  4 ,  1980 along with t e n  FALN ucomradestt who were on 

the way t o  rob a t  gunpoint an armored t ruck  which was soon 

t o  a r r i v e  a t  Northwestern Univers i ty .  On February 14,  

1981, a f t e r  h i s  convict ion i n  t h e  Northern D i s t r i c t  of 



Illinois for seditious conspiracy, Hobbs Act armed robbery, 

interstate transporation of stolen motor vehicles, and 

various weapons offenses, but prior to his sentencing, 

Mendez initiated contact with the government. Subsequent 

to his sentencing, Mendez agreed to cooperate fully and 
. 

completely with the government in an effort to halt future 

acts of violence and terrorism. Between May, 1981 and the 

present, Mendez has been extensively debriefed by Assistant 

United States Attorneys in the Northern District of 

Illinois and the Eastern District of New York, agents of 

the FBI, and by personnel of a variety of agencies involved 

in the investigation of terrorist acts. The information 

which Mendez has provided during hundreds of hours of 

debriefing has been painstakingly reviewed and evaluated. 

Wherever verification has been possible, accuracy and abso- 

lute reliability have been proven. Mendez testified for 

the government at length for the government at the trial of 

Oscar Lopez, and was cross-examined by Lopez personally, 

enroute to the jury's guilty verdict. 

The Operation Of The FALN 

Mendez was recruited into the FALN in 1979 while 

he was an active member of the Movimiento de Liberacion 

Nacional (the above-ground FALN support group or MLN). He 

was questioned repeatedly by Jose Lopez, brother of 

convicted FALN member Oscar Lopez, regarding his degree of 



dedication t o  the l i b e r a t i o n  of Puerto Rico. In  September 

o r  October, 1979 Lopez provided Mendez with a  folded note 

t e l l i n g  him t h a t  it contained inst ruct ions  on what t o  do 

and where t o  meet t o  join t h e  armed s t ruggle .  This meeting 

took place a t  the  Puerto Rican High School (MLN 
.+  . 

headquarters i n  chicago) i n  the  pr ivate  o f f i c e  of Jose 

Lopez. A t  t h a t  time Mendez was given t h i s  note, Lopez 

o r a l l y  instructed him t h a t  he should dress neat ly  on the 

day of the  meeting, and t h a t  he should ge t  a  ha i rcu t  before 

going. He fur ther  ins t ruc ted  Mendez t o  use public 

transportat ion t o  t r a v e l  t o  t h i s  meeting and t o  take a  

couple of hours t o  Itget los t1 '  for  a  while before going. 

Mendez was also spec i f i ca l ly  inst ructed not  t o  t r ave l  

d i r e c t l y  t o  the meeting. Lopez to ld  Mendez t o  use d i f fe rent  

buses and t r a i n s  i n  t h i s  t r a v e l  and t o  be carefu l .  Mendez 

explained t o  Lopez t h a t  he knew nothing about clandestine 

operations. Lopez responded t h a t  lltheyl' would t r a i n  him. 

Mendez s t a t ed  t h a t  he par t ic ipated i n  

approximately twenty (20 )  clandestine meetings during the 

t i m e  he was a  member of t h e  FALN. He was provided with 

manuals i n  the Spanish language, which d e a l t  with the a r t  

of disguise and makeup, various methods of detecting and 

evading sunreil lances,  and the  use of dead drops for  

passing messages and information. 



Four of these defendants are members of the 

MLN purports to be a legitimate political organization 

the MLN serves as the training ground for FALN membership. 

In the MLN, the members receive their first taste of 

clandestine meetings, are trained in countersurveillance 

techniques, and are tested by the F A W  as to the strength 

of their political beliefs and their willingness to commit 

themselves to "armed strugglett. It is from the ranks of 

the MLN that Alfredo Mendez was recruited into the FALN. 

Mendez testified in the trial of Oscar Lopez regarding the 
I 

5 money laundering function of the MLN as follows: 

So, anyway, we were discussing about the 
above ground MLN getting into real estate 
and housing and everything. We were 
discussing bringing in money that we 
appropriate or, you know, from armed 
robberies and using that money to buy 
buildings and, you know, we can use that 
money to, you know, put it into work for 
the struggle. Oscar Lopez said, "Yes, we 
done that before. We've been discussing 
it. But we want you to do it because you 
are a perfect person for that. You have 
been involved and you know a little bit 
about that. That would be great, you 
know.tt What we do is we take money -- 
again, we rob in the underground -- or 
they rob nationwide and in Puerto Rico 
and we bring it here and buy buildings. 
we were going to buy big complexes, you 
know, apartment buildings with ten or 
fifteen apartments in each. The purpose 
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of t h a t  was t o  develop a p o l i t i c a l  
=limate i n  those apartments s o  they could 
support t h e  Puerto Rican l i b e r a t i o n  
s t ruggle  and t h e  armed s t r u g g l e  and could 
a l so  use those  apartments t o  h ide  our 

' 7  . . . weapons and dynamite. Also w e  could use 
those houses money i n  t h e  f u t u r e  fo r  
l ega l  access t o  b a i l  ou t ,  you know, 
anybody t h a t  g e t s  busted i n  t h e  fu ture .  

' Oscar s a i d ,  "Yeah, we're going t o  submit 
t h a t  proposal t o  t he  nationwide 
organizat ion and t o  Puerto Rico." he 
sa id ,  "1 '11 push f o r  it. There shouldn l t  
be any problem. I t  should g e t  approved.I1 

Maria Cueto 

Alfredo Mendez m e t  Maria Cueto only twice. 

However, Mendez s t a t e d  t h a t  he was t o l d ,  a t  d i f f e r e n t  

t imes,  by Jose Lopez, Carlos Torres,  Steven Guerra and 

Roberto Caldera t h a t  the  NCHA was an FALN Itfront1l used t o  

provide FALN members with a l eg i t ima te  cover and t o  launder 

monies nappropriatedlt  by the  FALN. The NCHA a l so  provided 

s a l a r i e s ,  t r a v e l  expenses, equipment and funds fo r  FALN 

a c t i v i t i e s .  Mendez was t o l d  by the  defendant Steven Guerra 

t h a t  Maria Cueto con t ro l led  t h e  funds of t h e  NCHA, and 

would a l l oca t e  funds fo r  use i n  t he  "armed struggle1I. 

Mendez himself was t o  become a member of a group 

a f f i l i a t e d  with t h e  Episcopal Church t o  provide himself 

with a l eg i t imate  f ron t ,  bu t  was a r r e s t e d  beforehand. 

Spec i f i ca l l y ,  Mendez was t o  help  i n  w r i t i n g  a proposal 

request ing a s u b s t a n t i a l  sum of money from the  Episcopal 

Church t o  cons t ruc t  a housing p r o j e c t  i n  Chicago. The 



income generated from that project would then be siphoned 

off to support the struggle." 

Ricardo Romero 

Alfredo Mendez met Ricardo Romero on at least 

three occasions in chicago, and traveled once to Romerols 

house in Colorado. The defendant Steven Guerra told Mendez 

that Ricardo Romero supplies dynamite and weapons for the 

"armed struggleu. On one occasion, Guerra told Mendez 

about an incident where the police in Colorado went to a 

house where Romero was staying, and Romero crawled out from 

under the house with the dynamite.u Guerra also told 

Mendez that Romero also supplies weapons to Mexican 

terrorist groups. 

FALN member Roberto Caldero told Mendez that 

Romero is a leader of the Chicano underground, and that 

Carlos Zapata, who was killed, on March 22, 1978, in 

Denver, Colorado when a bomb he was setting down exploded 

prematurely, was one of Romerol s "guysIr. 

Mendez has been present when Romero advocated 

Itarmed struggle1I for both Chicano and Puerto Rican 

political groups. On several occasions, Mendez was 

deliberately excluded from conversations among Romero, Jose 

Lopez, Steven Guerra and others. 



Steven Guerxa 

Alfredo Mendez, who grew up with Steven Guerra, 

knows Guerra t o  be a member of the FALN i n  Chicago. 

In l a t e  1976 o r  ea r ly  1977, the  defendant Steven 

Guerra t o l d  Alfredo Mendez t h a t  he had been approached by 

two males-'who took him for  a r i d e  i n  t h e i r  car  and during 

the  r ide  asked Guerra i f  he wanted t o  join t h e  armed 

struggle. Mendez, being a member of t h e  Puerto Rican 

Soc ia l i s t  Party a t  the time, t o l d  Guerra t o  refuse,  s ince 

Mendez believed that these men probably were police o r  

Central Inte l l igence Agency agents. Guerra apparently took 

Mendezt advice. Later, i n  October of 1979, Guerra 

'recounted t h i s  s tory  t o  Mendez and advised Mendez t h a t  one 

of t h e  men who had made this approach t o  him had been Oscar 

Lopez, a convicted FALN member. 

During 1979, Mendez became more arid more involved 

i n  the work of t h e  MLN and spent much t i m e  working on MLN 

projects  at Borinquena College i n  Chicago. He also 

'attended MLN meetings with groups of about twenty (20 )  t o  

twenty-five (25) people, during which t i m e  discussions 

revolved around the need fo r  armed s t ruggle  i n  order t o  

l i b e r a t e  Puerto Rico. Those at tending these  meetings 

included Steven Guerra, Jose Lopez and, on occasion, Robert 

Caldero. The meetings, held a t  various apartments, led 

Mendez t o  grow closer t o  Lopez and Guerra as the months 

passed. One one occasion, Guerra impressed Mendez by 



2 showing him a CRP communique shortly after that group had 

bombed something in Puerto Rico. Mendez also recalls 

seeing a FARP booklet in Jose Lopez' house on a visit 

there. The CRP and FARP are other Puerto Rican terrorist 

groups. 

Mendez now believes that during late 1978 and 

early 1979, MLN members, particularly the defendant Guerra 

and Jose Lopez, were "feeling him out" for potential 

membership in the FALN By giving him tasks to do at the 

school and by watching the way in which he conducted 

himself, although he was unaware of this at the time. It 

was not until the early summer of 1979, possibly in July, 

that Mendez came to suspect that something more was 

involved. At the time, the MLN was sponsoring a meeting at 

Northwestern University, and Luis Rosado had come into 

Chicago from New York to address this session. Mendez went 

to Northwestern in the belief that the group might need 

someone to distribute leaflets or set up a sound system. 

On arriving, Jose Lopez and the defendant Guerra told him 

to go home because they wanted him to do them a favor. 

Later in the day, Guerra and Lopez brought Rosado to 

Mendezl, house and handed him a sheet of paper on which 

were instructions for him to drive Rosado around town until 

3:00 p.m. that date, at which time he was to bring him to 

the Greyhound bus station in downtown Chicago. 



. The note informed Mendez t h a t  he was t o  avoid 

being followed and indicated t h a t  no one must know what he 

was doing. The men then burned the note, a f t e r  which they 

l e f t ,  leaving Rosado a t  t h e  Mendez residence. Mendez 

subsequently drove Rosado around the c i t y  during which time - , 

Rosado spoke out about t h e  PSP (Puerto Rican Soc ia l i s t  

Par ty)  and noted how the  group had been defeated i n  the  

Puerto Rican elect ions  because t h e i r  leadership had been 

a f r a i d  t o  support armed s t ruggle  i n  the  independence 

movement. Mendez was given t h e  d i s t i n c t  impression during 

t h e  afternoon t h a t  Rosado was t ry ing  t o  f e e l  him out a s  t o  

h i s  p o l i t i c a l  be l i e f s ,  espec ia l ly  as regards t h e  PSP. A t  

3:00 p.m., Mendez dropped Rosado o f f  a t  the  bus s t a t ion  and 

returned t o  h i s  residence. H e  never saw Rosado again t h a t  

day, and nei ther  Lopez nor Guerra ever mentioned the 

incident  again. 

In l a t e  August, 1979, Steven Guerra asked Mendez 

i f  he wanted t o  become involved i n  the  clandestine 

movement. Although the  FALN was not mentioned by name, 

Mendez understood t h e  FALN was the group t o  which Guerra 

re fer red .  Guerra explained t h a t  the  group was recru i t ing  

many people a t  t h a t  time and was doing a l o t  of tes t ing .  

H e  indicated t h a t  money was not  a problem fo r  t h e  group and 

s p e c i f i c a l l y  s t a t ed  they had recent ly  done a job on the 

East Coast t h a t  net ted them one hundred thousand dol la rs  



($100,000). He told Mendez that he had to have his 

response within a month. 

Following this discussion, Mendez began thinking 

about the clandestine movement, especially in regard to how 

it could help poor people. Although he did not want to 
. . 

hurt anyone, Mendez began to think about the "Robin Hood1' 

aspect of what Guerra had said, i.e., robbing the rich to 

help the poor. With this in mind, Mendez informed Guerra 

that he would accept his offer. Guerra said that he would 

convey the word and that someone else would talk to him in 

the future about the situation. 

Shortly after the conversation with Guerra, Jose 

Lopez asked Mendez if the answer was I1yestt. When Mendez 

concurred, Lopez asked him if he was aware of the 

consequences. When Mendez again concurred, Lopez stated 

that someone would be contacting him. He told Mendez that 

from then on he was to limit his contact with him (Lopez). 

He also cautioned Mendez not to tell his wife about his 

decision. 

During the latter half of 1979, Mendez spent a 

lot of time with the defendant Steven Guerra, and became 

deeply involved in the struggle. On one occasion when 

discussing with Guerra the financial difficulty of the 

struggle, Guerra told Mendez not to worry about money. 

Guerra then stated that money was not really the problem 



it seemed to be, and that all funds did not come from fund 

raising, but rather that some of it comes from llThis", 

gesturing with his thumb and index finger as if pointing a 

gun 

While lodged in Cook County Jail in 1980, Mendez 

was visited by Guerra. Guerra told Mendez that the FALN in 

Chicago had received one hundred thousand dollars 

($100,000) from groups in Puerto Rico which had been used 

for purchase of weapons and renting of new safe houses. 

Guerra further indicated that several new people had been 

recruited into the FALN. During another conversation in 

1979, Guerra hinted that the New York FALN had robbed an 

armored truck sometime in 1978. 

Through Guerra and other sources, Mendez was told 

of a breakout that was planned for the FALN members when 

they were housed at the Dwight, Illinois prison facility. 

This plan was quite elaborate and included floor plans, 

maps and intelligence information regarding the number and 

location of guards. Mendez was told the only reason that 

the plan was not executed was because some of the females 

hesitated. As a back-up to the plan for an actual 

breakout, plans were also discussed to demand release of . 
the FALN by hijacking a plane or kidnapping either a 

politican or a politically connected millionaire. Mendez 

stated that, while in prison, both Guerra and Alex Torres 



continuously t o l d  him t o  be  p a t i e n t ,  t h a t  he would g e t  out .  

On one occasion, Guerra handed him a s l i p  of paper which 

bore t h e  word ltunderground't. 

Guerra a lso  t a lked  t o  Mendez about p lans  having 

been made t o  break Haydee Torres ou t  of prison,  s t a t i n g  

t h a t  t h e r e  were Chicanos working on it. Guerra was a l s o  

supposed t o  pa r t i c ipa t e  i n  t h e  Apri l  4 ,  1980 armored c a r  

robbery which led  t o  Mendez ' a r r e s t .  However, ~ u e r r a *  was 

unable t o  pa r t i c ipa t e  due t o  h i s  impending marriage, and 

Mendez was u t i l i z e d  a s  a replacement. Guerra a l so  t o l d  

Mendez t h a t  he (Guerra) helped ttcasell  Bellevue Hospital  

p r i o r  t o  t h e  escape of William Morales. 

Andres Rosado 

Alfredo Mendez has  had only l imi ted  con tac t  with 

t h e  defendant Andres Rosado. However, Andres Rosado t o l d  

Mendez t h a t  he supported t h e  "armed s t ruggle t t .  Rosado a l s o  

expressed h i s  approval fo r  the v i o l e n t  ac t ions  of t h e  

llMacheterostt a t e r r o r i s t  group based on t h e  i s land  of 

Puer to  Rico. 

J u l i o  Rosado 

Alfredo Mendez met t h e  defendant J u l i o  Rosado a t  

l e a s t  f i v e  times, one of which l a s t e d  f o r  approximately one 

week. The defendant Steven Guerra l e d  Mendez t o  be l ieve  

t h a t  Rosado was a member of  t h e  FALN i n  various 

conversat ions including one i n  which Mendez r e f e r r ed  t o  



Rosado as a lldown guytf. Mendez has also observed Rosado 

meet in private conversations with Jose Lopez, Ricardo 

Romero and Juan ~ntonio Corretjer, a leader of the "armed 

~truggle'~ in Puerto Rico. 

Convicted FALN member Adolfo Matos told Mendez 

while both were incarcerated that Julio Rosado lfis still 

taking care of business - he's still recruiting". Mendez 

understood this to mean that the defendant Julio Rosado is 

a recruiter for the FALN. 

Membership In The FALN 

According to Mendez members of the group are 

trained not to acknowledge membership even to other known 

members. However, because of his training, Mendez can 

recognize other members by what they say, how they act and 

with whom they meet in secret. Accordingly, based on his 

training and experience in the FALN, his observations of 

meetings between the five defendants and others known to be 

FALN members and based on statements made to him by 

admitted FALN members, Mendez believes that the defendants 

Julio Rosado, Andres Rosado, Ricardo Romero, Steven Guerra 

and Maria Cuerto are members of the FALN. Physical and 

other evidence unknown to Mendez, but recounted here, 

proves him correct. 



The Defendamts Ricardo Romero and Steven 
Guerra Advocate The Violent Overthrow 
Of The United States Government 

The FBI has received information from a person 

who was spoken to by a person actually present that, on 

April 14, 1983, after receiving permission to travel to 

speak at City College and Santa Clara College in San 

Franciso, the defendant Ricardo Romero was a guest speaker 

at a meeting of approximately seventy-five (75) persons. 

The purpose of the meeting was to commemorate the arrest of 
- 

the eleven (11) FALN members arrested in Evanston and to 

honor all Puerto Rican terrorist groups, in particular, the 

FALN. Romero was introduced as the National Coordinator 

for the ~exican Commission of the MLN and as a grand jury 

resister. 

Romero traced the history of non-collaboration 

with the grand jury to 1898 when an individual refused to 

testify before a grand jury which was investigating a 

secret group known as "The White Hatstt. Romero told the 

assemblage that the struggle against United States 

imperialism had begun in 1898, when forty-seven (47) 

Mexicans were indicted by the grand jury before which this 

individual had refused to testify. Because of the winter 

conditions in the Southwest during that year, a judge was 

not available to try the case until the Spring. Romero 

told the crowd that three witneses who had testified 



against the forty-seven (47) were executed before Spring, 

which drew sustained applause from his audience. At one 

point, Romero advocated ~tdismemberment~t of the United 

States, a goal he shared with the Republic of New Afika and 

those who . .seek . independence and socialism for Puerto Rico, 

which explains their common tactics. Romero expressed 

solidarity with Michelle Miller, who also refused to 

testify before the grand jury, calling her actions 

internationalism in action. Romero concluded his remarks 

explaining how the integrity of the organization could be 

achieved with this exhortation to the crowd: 

Long live the FALN! 

Long live the armed clandestine 
movement ! 

Long live independence and 
socialism for Puerto Rico! 

At the conclusion of the defendant Romero's 

vitriolic speech, the defendant Steven Guerra described the 

path to independence for Puerto Rico advocated by those 

present in even more graphic terms. Guerra told the 

audience that Jose Lopez, founder of the MLN, had taught 

him many things. According to Guerra, Lopez, who was also 

a guest speaker, taught Guerra that: 

The right of our country to its 
independence, was not to be 
discussed with words, but with 
bullets. For believing this, w e  
came to be branded as terrorists. 



In San Francisco, then,  t h e  defendants Romero and 

Cuerra, a f t e r  t h e i r  conviction of cr iminal  contempt, have 

explained t h e i r  r e fusa l  t o  t e s t i f y  before  the  grand jury 

with a force and c l a r i t y  which can n o t  be matched by any 

argument advanced by the  government. 



ARGUMENT 

A SENTENCE OF SUBSTANTIAL IM- 
PRISONMENT IMPOSED UPON EACH 
OF THESE DEFENDANTS WOULD NOT 
CONSTITUTE CRUEL AND UNUSUAL 
PUNISHMENT 

. Acceptance and implementation of the government's 

recommendation that each of these defendants receive a 

sentence of a substantial term of imprisonment should 

result from an analysis of, first, factors generally 

relevant to sentencing in criminal contempt cases 

and,second, the Eighth Amendment prohibition against cruel 

and unusual punishment as it applies in this case. 

Given that the role of criminal contempt is the 

"protection of the institutions of our government and 

enforcement of their  mandate^,^^ Bloom v. Illinois, 391 U.S. 

194, 201 (1967), the factors now before this Court in 

regard to the sentencing of these defendants have been 

described by the Supreme Court as follows: 

The interests of orderly government 
demand that respect and compliance be 
given to orders issued by courts 
possessed of jurisdiction of persons and 
subject matter. One who defies the 
public authority and willfully refuses 
his obedience, does so at his peril. In 
imposing a [sentence] for criminal 
contempt, the trial judge may properly 
take into consideration the extent of the 
willful and deliberate defiance of the 
court's order, the seriousness of the 
consequences of the contumacious 
behavior, the necessity of effectively 
terminating the defendant's defiance as 



required by the public interest, and the 
importance of deterring such acts in the 
future. Because of the nature of these 
standards, great reliance must be placed 
upon the discretion of the trial judge. 

United States v. United Mine Workers, 330 U.S. 258, 303 

The Historical Context 

Before turning to a discussion of each of these 

sentencing factors, it would do well to place in some 

context the criminal contempt of these defendants, who 

trace their own contemptuous conduct within a historical 

context extending as far back as 1898, including a 

tradition of tlnon-~ollaborationw with the grand jury 

beginning in 1936 (484, 500). As the defendant Julio 

Rosado sees it: 

And this is at the very heart of our 
contentions that what is at issue here is 
a political question, more properly 
handled by representatives of the 
government of the United States and the 
representatives of the Puerto Rican 
National Liberation Movement that may be 
discussed in depth, and which may lead to 
a settlement involving an act of 
decolonization on the part of the United 
States, and thereby resolve all conflicts 
between the Puerto Rican people and the 
government of the United States. 

Mr. Harmon says if only the bombings will 
stop, there will be no Grand Juries. 

Well, if only the government of the 
United States committed itself to a 



political dialogue that will help 
establish the framework for 
decolonization, then there would be no 
violence; there would be no Grand Juries, 
and there would be absolutely no reason 
for standing here in opposition (1161). 

(Tr. 1/19/83, pp.22-23; 1161). We accept as valid the 
. . 

defendants1 contention that their criminal conduct here 

should be viewed in the context of other events. 

ItTerrorism on behalf of Puerto Rican independence 

currently poses the most serious problem for the United 

States." Terrorism -- in the United States. The Rand 

Corporation, p.6476 (May 1980), p. 14 annexed as exhibit M. 

The FALN is a successor organization to other terrorists 

whose activities have plagued this country for many years. 

The role of the FALN has been and continues to be the 

importation and conduct of armed revolution in population 

centers of the mainland United States in furtherance of an 

attempt to overthrow the government of the United States in 

Puerto ~ico. Although the defendants surely have some 

specific reason for tracing their history 

non-collaboration to 1936, a complete picture of any events 

in 1936 must include the conviction of eight persons in 

Puerto Rico for conspiring "to overthrow, put down and 

destroy by force the Government of the United States and to 

oppose by force the authority of the United States . . . by 
force and violence . . . [utilizing] firearms, ammunition, 



other weapons, and military equipment." Albizu v. United 

States, 88 F.2d 138, 139 (1st Cir.), cert. denied, 301 U.S. 

707 (1937). A ten-year prison sentence did not deter the 

defendants in the Albizu case. The First Circuit noted 

that: 

[Alfter having served his sentence in a 
federal penitentiary [Albizu] and his 
associates promptly resumed their 
incendiary program. 

At the appointed hour of noon on October 
30, 1950, the nationalist conspiracy 
erupted into violent action in various 
places on the island. 

In the town of Jayuya, four carloads 
of young nationalists arrived at the 
police station, opened fire and killed or 
wounded three of the four policemen on 
duty and then burned the police station. 

Home Insurance Company of New York v. Davila, 212 F.2d 731, --- 
734 (1st Cir. 1954). Ultimately, Albizu and his cohorts 

took the cause of Puerto Rican independence to the highest 

levels of government, first, by attempting to assassinate 

the President and killing a security guard in the process, 

then by shooting five Congressmen in the House of 

Representatives. See, United States v. Lebron, 222 F.2d 

531 (2d Cir. 1955). The Lebron case is instructive also 

because it describes the coordination among New York, 

Chicago and Puerto Rico revolutionaries, an operational 



t r a d i t i o n  continued today by t h e  FALN. Also, the  f a c t  t h a t  

four Lebron defendants pleaded g u i l t y  and t e s t i f i e d  f o r  the  

government makes the point  ( a s  does Alfredo Mendez) t h a t  

even the  most committed zea lo ts  begin t o  think i n  p rac t i ca l  

terms when faced with the p o s s i b i l i t y  of a substant ia l  j a i l  

sentence. 

Perhaps, the  s ignif icance of the  year 1936 may be 

found i n  the iden t i ty  of one of the  spectators a t  t h e  t r i a l  

- of t h i s  case -- Juan Antonio Corre t je r  who was one of the  

defendants convicted i n  the  o r i g i n a l  Albizu case i n  1937, 

and who met with the  defendant J u l i o  Rosado i n  Puerto Rico, 

only days before the  New Year's Eve bombings i n  New York 

City. The h i s t o r i c a l  l i nk  between these f ive  defendants 

and f i f t y  (50 )  years of armed violence is stronger s t i l l  as 

evidenced by the  f ingerpr ints  of t h e  defendant Ju l io  Rosado 

found, on March 6 ,  1982 upon an MLN document i n  the  

Pit tsburgh safehouse apparently used by both the  FALN and 

t h e  Revolutionary Armed Task Force. (See, - Statement of the  

LSP and MLN before the United Nations Committee on 

Decolonization annexed as  exh ib i t  N ) .  This document, 

bearing the  MLN logo, t rans la ted  t h e  words of Juan Antonio 

Corret jer  t o  a United Nations committee on August 31, 1978, 

which the  committee transcribed verbatim as follows: 

The most evident and most important 
phenomenon i n  Puerto Rico a t  present i s  
the emergence of an nunderground" 



mentality and the growing organization of 
a clandestine Puerto Rican revolutionary 
movement in Puerto Rico and the united 
States. The Armed Forces for National 
~iberation (FALN) are on United States 
territory; and various clandestine 
organizations operate in Puerto Rico; and 
they operate with the heroism and the 
prudence that Baltasar Gracian advised 
during the Spanish renaissance. They 
have been organized without the knowledge 
of the police and they may perhaps suffer 
some casualties; it will be possible to 
do them damage; but they will not be 
prevented from moving forward and 
developing. 

When I spoke of clandestine Puerto Rican 
independence movements, I was not just 
using rhetoric. A revolutionary worker 
executed Allan Randall, a Yankee lawyer 
sent to destroy the Puerto Rican union 
movement; a guerrilla of the Armed Forces 
for ~ational Liberation (FALN) took by 
surprise the headquarters of the police 
in Montebello, in the western mountains 
of Manati, rendered garrison force there 
helpless, painted slogans supporting 
Puerto Rican independence and the UTIER 
strike, seized arms, munitions and 
communications apparatus and withdrew 
victorious. When I left Puerto Rico 
there was news of armed clash between a 
guerrilla force and the police forces in 
Naguabo, in the vicinity of the great 
Roosevelt Roads imperialist base; and the 
combined forces of the colonial police 
and the Navy were searching in vain for 
the guerrillas. 

It is easy enough to recall the punitive 
actions which were carried out in this 
very city by the Armed Forces of the 
National Liberation Movement. FALN the 
most notable of which took place in the 



well-known Fraunces Tavern, a historic 
place where General Washington took leave 
of this officers. With the passage of 
time, that place has become an enduring 
symbol of the transformation of the noble 
North American leadership into a 
contemptible oligarchy exploiting its 
subjects, and even into "the worst enemy 
of mankind" as it has recently been most 
justly described. From a cell in the 
city, today, a courageous Puerto Rican 
revolutionary, William Morales, whose 
hands have been amputated, defies the 
colonizers of our country. 

(Verbatim record -- of the 1128th meeting, Special Committee 

On The Situation With Regard To Implementation Of The 

Declaration On the Granting Of Independence To Colonial 

Countries And Peoples, held at the United Nations on August 

31, 1978, pp. 7-11), Of some significance was the 

attendance at this meeting of attorney Michael Deutsch 

along with later convicted FALN member Dylcia Pagan, 

paramour of ~illiarn Morales, who, at that time, was 

awaiting the outcome of proceedings following the service 

of a grand jury upon her. 

The defendant Julio Rosado considers the 

appearance before this United Nations committee to be an 

event of some significance (Julio Rosado pre-sentence 

report, p. 9). This might be explained by Rosado's 

position as MW'Eastern Regional Coordinator or by the 

statement of Jose Lopez on behalf of the MLN given 



immediately on the heels of ~orretjer's FALN diatribe. 

Lopez described the MLN in this way: 

The M.L.N. is a Puerto Rico and 
chicano-Mexicano organization founded in 
the United States about a year ago and 
which adyances the principle of 
non-participation in the colonial 
electoral process, the need for clear and 
revolutionary politics in Puerto Rico, 
the need for the emergence of a National 
Liberation Front to build unity among 
independence forces, and the creation of 
an anti-imperialist movement in the U.S. 

(verbatim record, supra at p. 77-90). With a touch of 

logic one can easily read between the line of Lopezt spoken 

words. The hidden syllogism goes like this: The MLN is 

dedicated to non-participation in the electoral process and 

to revolutionary politics. Political change outside of the 

electoral process means revolution. Therefore, the MLN is 

dedicated to change through revolution. Of course, this 

position has been forced upon the FALN-MLN by the people of 

Puerto Rico at least ninety-four percent (94%) of whom have 

always voted to maintain their current status with the 

United States. Terrorism - in - the United States, supra, at 

p. 15. The overwhelming rejection of the ends allegedly 

sought by the FALN-MLN makes almost inevitable further 

resort to terrorist bombs, thus increasing the need for 

significant sanctions to be imposed here. 

Thus the historical perspective from which the 

defendants view their own criminal conduct merely poses 
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estions about the  FALN -- none of which these  

dants would even l i s t e n  t o  before the  grand jury. 

n the  blood of 

f the  City of New 

a s  t he  da te  f o r  

sentence approaches. 

The view of t he  defense t h a t  t h e i r  concerted 

defiance must be  viewed e s s e n t i a l l y  a s  a p o l i t i c a l  matter  

is mirrored by FALN doctr ine  p u t  i n t o  p rac t i ce  regu la r ly  

when FALN members have been a r r e s t e d  and charged with 

crimes. In t h a t  event,  whether i n  Chicago o r  Evanston, 

I l l i n o i s ,  the  Eastern D i s t r i c t  of N e w  York, the  Southern 

D i s t r i c t  of New York, o r  Queens County, Supreme Court, FALN 

defendants have always claimed t h a t  they a r e  p r i soners  of  

war sub jec t  t o  t h e  Geneva Convention, and not  properly 

t r i e d  a s  cr iminals  by any c o u r t  of t h e  United S t a t e s  o r  o f  

the separa te  S t a t e s .  See, e . g . ,  People v. Siegal ,  102 I l l .  - 
App.2d 529, reversed. 94 I l l .  2d 167 (1983). This b izzare  

not ion a l so  expla ins  t he  dea r th  of appe l la te  decisions 

a f t e r  convict ion of  FALN members. Thus, whether charged 

with contemptuous o r  otherwise subs tan t ive ly  criminal  

conduct. t h e  FALN and i t s  suppor ters  have refused t o  

recognize t h a t  t h e  law appl ies  t o  them o r  t o  t h e i r  conduct, 

which i s  we submit, another f a c t o r  which t h i s  Court should 

consider  i n  regard t o  sentence. 



The Routine of Civil Contempt 

Over the years, the conduct of FALN would-be 

revolutionaries and their supporters when served with grand 

jury subpoenas has established a pattern of deliberate 

contempt rather than testimony. At least, fifteen (15) 

persons including Jose Lopez, Roberto Caldero, Lureida 

Torres and these defendants have refused to testify before 

grand juries investigating the activities of the FALN. 

See, e.g., Matter of Archuleta, 561 F.2d 1059 (26 Cir. - - 
1977); JI! re Cueto, 554 F.2d 14 (2d Cir. 1977); -- In the 

Matter of Grand Jury Subpoenas Served on Andres Rosado, 
Julio Rosado -- and Luis Rosado, 441 F.Supp. 1081 ( S . D . N . Y .  

1977) ; J1? the Matter - of Dylcia Pagan, docket no. 78 C 1839 

(E.D.N.Y.); -- In the Matter of - Baraldini - and Miller, docket 

no. CR 83-00116 (E.D.N.Y.); -- In the Matter - of Cintron - and 

Noya, docket no. CR 83-152 (E.D.N.Y.). Eight of these 

persons -- Julio Rosado, -Ricardo Romero, Andres Rosado, 
Maria Cueto, Cintron, Noya, Archuleta and Baraldini -- have 
twice refused to obey court orders to testify. A grand 

jury in Puerto Rico investigating a terrorist attack on a 

Navy bus in which two persons were murdered was deprived of 

evidence from a person who chose contempt rather than 

cooperation with the grand jury. In re Pantojas, 628 F .2d 

701 (1st Cir. 1980). We have prepared a chronology of the 

bombings and other crimes of the F A W  (annexed as exhibit 



0 )  into which has been woven specific acts of the 

defendants which link them to the FALN. The relationship 

in time between the contemptuous conduct of these 

defendants, and other acts done by them and/or the FALN, 

raises many additional questions which they have refused to 

answer before the grand jury. 

The epidemic of contempt cases arising out of 

terrorist investigations is not limited to the F A W ,  nor to 

this district. From the very limited information then 

available, this Court has recognized that "a large number 

of people have taken common steps and are making a common 

effortit to prevent the grand jury from performing its 

constitutional mandate to investigate criminal activity of 

the FALN. (In -- the Matter - of Baraldini and Miller, docket 
no. CV 83-0833, (Tr. 3/4/83, p. 22-23). This sort of 

combined action represents a serious threat to the 

authority of the Court and, if successful, would prevent 

the grand jury from investigating terrorist cases in 

general. In the last eighteen months, at least eleven 

persons have been adjudged in civil contempt in an 

investigation in the Southern District of New York of the 

Revolutionary Armed Task Force, which includes the Black 

Liberation Army, the May 19th Communist Organization, the 

Republic of New Afrika and former members of the Weather 

Underground. - See e.g., In the Matter of Fula, 672 F.2d 279 
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(2d Cir. 1982); -- In re Rosahn, 671 F.2d 690 (2d Cir. 1982); 

In the Matter of Shaheem, Jabbar, Cynthia Boston, Jerry -- - 
Gaines, Richard Delaney, Silvia Baraldini, - Rene Thornton, 

Deborah Buckner, Allan Berkman, - and Bernadine Dohrn, docket 

no. M-11-188 (S.D.N.Y.). The Black Liberation Army has 

been responsible for many murders and armed robberies over 

the years and, in the past, has utilized deliberate ambush 

murders of police offers as a means of making some vague 

political point. 

Likewise, in the Southern District, seven persons 

are currently incarcerated after civil contempt 

adjudications in the investigation of a group known as 

Omega 7 which is dedicated to the overthrow of the present 

Cuban government through violent means used in this 

country. See the Matter - of Pedro Remon, Ramon Sanchez, 

Andres Garcia. Jose Gracia, Alberto Perez, Eduardo Ochoa 

and Eduardo Losada-Fernandez, docket no. M-11-188 - 
(S.D.N.Y.). Omega 7 has taken credit publicly for the 

machine gun murder of two persons one of whom was a 

diplomat and, at least, thirty bombings, some of which were 

intended to threaten law enforcement against investigation 

by the grand jury. 

With contempt at least fashionable, probably - de 

riqueur. in revolutionary circles, the magnitude of the 

problem faced by law enforcement becomes evident. Thus, a 



light sentence in this case would further embolden armed 

revolutionaries by adding to their arsenal a license 

exempting their activities from the scrutiny of the grand 

jury. On the other hand, a stiff sentence reflecting the 

seriousness of this particular contempt would send a 

message to'the FALN and revolutionaries of all stripes as 

did the verdict of the trial jury. That message, in no 

uncertain terms, should be that the law can and will 

respond to acts of terrorism. "The duty to testify has 

long been recognized as a basic obligation that every 

citizen owes his government.ll United States v. Calandra, 

414 U.S. 338, 345 (1973). We ask this Court to make clear 

the importance of fulfilling this duty. 

Sentencing Factors 

Bearing in mind the historical context so 

important to these defendants, we now turn to their own 

conduct by which they seek, for the benefit of the FALN, to 

carve out an exception to the rule of law that the grand 
! 

1 
jury is entitled to 'Ieveryman1 s evidence. l1 Branzburq v. 

I Hayes, 408 U.S. 665, 682 (1971). 
I 

I 

Each of the general sentencing considerations 
i 

discussed in the United Mine - Workers, case supra finds 
I 
I application in this case and may be summarized as follows: 

a .  Extent of the Defiance - Each defendant has 

refused even to listen to questions posed before the grand 
I 
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jury, thereby demonstrating a total lack of good faith 

which might arguably be present if questions were answered, 

even on a selective basis. Their contempt is part of a 

pattern which the defense embraces from the perspective of 

almost fifty (50) years of ttnon-collaborationlt. Even over 

the short term, since 1977, the defendants1 repudiation of 

the authority of the courts of the United States was 

contemporaneous with approximately seventy-eight (78) 

separate FALN bombings. Had any one of these defendants 

testified truthfully in 1977, or had they provided 

fingerprints, voice exemplars or handwriting specimens 

sought by the grand jury in Chicago and New York, then the 

freedom of the FALN to operate would have been severaly 

hampered. Of course, the discovery of the Rosado 

defendants1 fingerprints, the carbine purchased by the 

defendant Romero and the copying machine bought by the 

defendant Cueto in the FALN bomb factory in Queens on July 

12, 1978 (two months after the Rosado defendants were 

released from custody on civil contempt) make clear the 

reason for their recalcitrance then and now. We submit 

that the defiance of these defendants has been total, 

continuous, purposeful and with full knowledge that the 

price of their silence would be paid, not by them, but by 

the innocent victims of the FALN. 



b. Seriousness of the Consequences of the Contempt 

By their contumacious silence, these defendants 

have given the FALN a free hand to engage in terrorist 

bombings with no questions asked and with impunity -- which 
is exactly what they intend. As a result, the grand jury, 

has been completely obstructed from even beginning an 

investigation which will not be 'Ifully carried out until 

every available clue has been run down and all witnesses 

examined in every proper way. lt United States v. Stone, 429 

F.2d 138, 140 (2d Cir. 1970). The investigation of the 

grand jury, so totally frustrated by these defendants, 

would lead inevitably to those who have used, and would 

use, bombs in pursuit of alleged social change -- in this 
case, change rejected repeatedly by the people of Puerto 

c. Public Interest in Terminating 
the Defendants ' Defiance 

Since 1974, the FALN has engaged in approximately 

one hundred forty-six (146) bombings, murdered five people, 

injured approximately one hundred (100) others seriously, 

including four police officers of the City of New York, and 

caused property damage exceeding three million 

($3,000,000). Seizures of FALN munitions, weapons and bomb 

paraphernalia in Chicago and Evanston, Illinois and 

Milwaukee, Wisconsin and New York have resulted in the 



dynamite, three hundred twenty-nine (329) pounds of 

incendiary material, fifty (50) altered watches, 

twenty-nine (29) weapons, several thousand rounds of 

ammunition, sophisticated machinery and other terrorist 
: . 

I materials. The FALN remains undeterred largely resulting 

i 
I from its tight knit organization and myopic zealotry which 
I 

I make even more important the role of the grand jury. The 

recent New Yearts Eve bombings make clear the continuing 

public interest in preventing the F A W  from striking again. 

d. The Importance of Future Deterrence 

The tactics of the FALN taken in conjunction with 

the provable acts of these defendants present a Itclear and 

present dangert1 to the grand jury which has power only 

because it is an narm of the courtu. Levine v. United 

States, 362 U.S. 610, 617 (1960). Little imagination is 

necessary to conclude, as we do, that the New Year's Eve 

bombings were meant to intimidate agents and detectives of 

the Joint Terrorist Task Force, the United States Attorneys 

of the Eastern and Southern Districts and, most important, 

this Court from interfering with the' criminal activities of 

the FALN. Such tactics will not succeed, no matter what 

the sentence in this case. 

William Morales and Luis Rosado, both fugitives, 

the latter being the brother of the Rosado defendants, 



remain at liberty increasing the need for deterrence. Most 

important, is the paramount need forethis Court to 

vindicate the authority of all of the Courts of the United 

States when their authority is repudiated as a matter of 

course by terrorists and their sympathizers. Twenty-nine 

(29) civil contempts in terrorist cases demands a strong 

response from this Court. It is a legitimate goal of 

sentencing in this case to restore civil contempt, "the 

least drastic alternativeIt1 ~hillitani v. United States , 

384 U.S. 364, 371 n.9 (1966), as the primary means of 

securing compliance with court orders. 

For the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit 

that each of these defendants should receive a sentence of 

incarceration for a substantial number of years. As Mr. 

Justice Rutledge once stated, "No man or group is above the 

law. All are subject to its valid  command^^^. United 
L 

States v. United Mine Workers, supra, at p. 385 (dissenting 

opinion). 

Eight Amendment considerations 

The Supreme Court has never found a sentence 

L imposed in a criminal case violative of the Eighth 

Amendment merely because of its length. Carmona v. Ward, 

576 F.2d 405, 408 (2d Cir.), cert. denied, 439 U.S. 1091 

(1979). There has developed a proportionality test for 

i determining whether a particular sentence is so excessive 



/ as to violate the Eighth Amendment consisting of three 

steps : 

1) a judgment on the seriousness of the 
offense; 2) a comparison of the 
punishment imposed with that fixed for 
other crimes within the jurisdiction; 
and 3) a comparison of the sentence 
under review with those authorized in 
other jurisdictions for the same crime. 

Id. at 409. - 
The starting point of our analysis of the actual 

sentence which should be imposed in this case is the 

special verdict of the jury which found that this was a 

serious crime. (136301366). This verdict is of the utmost 

significance "because the [Eighth Amendment] constitutional 

test is intertwined with an assessment of contemporary 

standards." Gregg v. Georgia, 428 U.S. 153, 175 (1976). 

In reaching this unanimous verdict, the jury knew that a 

sentence of more than six months was possible and reached 

its verdict on a record far less complete than the one now 

before this Court. In fact, the jury knew only the nature 

of the crimes under investigation and that the claimed 

motive for the defendants' disobedience included a mixture 

of religious and social elements relating to their alleged 

work in the Hispanic community. "These suggestions [of 

honest motive] . . . were, viewed charitably, misguided. 
They could have only served to patronize the jury and to 

add a distracting element of emotionalism to the 



 proceeding^.^^ united States v. Bagaric, docket no. 

82-1247, p. 25 (2d Cir., decided April 14, 1983). Not only 

was this defense misguided, it was deliberately false as 

described below, thus compounding the defendantst contempt. 

The Supreme Court has analogized contempt to 
. , 

obstruction of justice committed in violation of 18 U.S.C. 

51503, which carries a sentence of five years imprisonment. 

United States v, Brown, 339 U.S. 41, 52 n.15 (1949). This 

Court has observed that the "length of the term of 

imprisonment . . . on criminal contempt appears to be 
limited only by the constitutionts prohibition against 

cruel and unusual p~nishment,~~ (Tr. 1/19/83, p.7). The 

Eighth Amendment provides that: 

Excessive bail shall not be required, 
nor excessive fines imposed, nor cruel 
and unusual punishments inflicted. 

U.S. CONST., VIII Amend. The recognition by this Court of 

an ~ighth Amendment limitation on the imposition of 

sentence, imposed here is derived from the principle that 

there Itis no statutory maximum which governs the power of 

the district court judges to sentence for contempts . . . 11 
United States v. Brown, 247 F.2d 332, 339 (2d Cir. 1957). 

aff9d, United States v. Brown, 339 U.S. 41 supra. 

Other recent convictions of criminal contempt in 

this district provide some basis for comparison of the 

sentence to be imposed in this case. In the companion 
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cases of United States v. Petito, 671 F.2d 68, (2d Cir. 

1982) and United States v. Cavalieri, docket no. 81 CR 

149, (E.D.N.Y.) aff'd 685 F.2d 426 (2d Cir. 1982), each 

defendant received a sentence of four years imprisonment on 

being convicted of criminal contempt after trials by jury. 

Petito and Cavalieri each refused to testify before a grand 

jury investigating labor pay-offs made and received in 

violation of the RICO statute. See, United States v. 

Sanzo, 673 F.2d 64 (2d Cir.), cert. denied, 103 S.Ct. 128 

(1982). Each was held in civil, then criminal, contempt 

and sentenced after a joint sentencing hearing before the 

Honorable Mark A. Costantino, conducted pursuant to United 

States v. Fatico, 579 F.2.d 707 (2d Cir. 1978), affld after 

remand, 603 F.2d 1053 (2d Cir. 1979), cert. denied, 444 

U.S. 1073 (1980). At the conclusion of the hearing, Judge 

Costantino found that the defendants were 'Iinvolved with 

organized crime.n United States v. Cavalieri, Tr. 8/14/81, 

p.3. In another case in this district, a sentence of five 

years imprisonment was upheld when a loansharking victim 

refused to testify at trial after the jury had been 

selected and sworn. United States v. Berardelli, 565 F.2d 

24, 31 (2d Cir. 1977) ("While it is true that the five year 

sentence was severe, it was amply justified by appellant's 

conduct.It) The Court of Appeals concurred in the finding 



of Judge Bartels "that conduct like this really threatens 

the very fabric of the administration of justice." - Id. 

From the Berardelli, Petito and Cavalieri cases, 

we conclude that even in the absence of the aggravating 

factors .present in this case, a sentence of five years 

imprisonment is not barred by the Eighth Amendment. 

Furthermore, this Court retains the discretion to impose a 

sentence in excess of five years imprisonment. The court 
f 

should exercise that discretion in this case and sentence 

these defendants to a substantial term of imprisonment 

because of the special aggravating circumstances present 

here. 

The Defendants' Lack of Cooperation 

The defendants explain their refusal to testify 

as a matter of principle, which it is, although not the 

principle which the trial jury in this case rejected out of 

hand as a transparent sham. Evidence recounted in this 

memorandum establishes that these defendants are clearly in 

a position to provide testimony against members of the 

FALN, because they are the FALN. That each refuses to do 

so is factor in aggravation which this Court should 

consider at time of sentence. United States v. Bradford, 

645 F.2d 115, 118 (2d Cir. 1981); - see -1 also Roberts v. 

United States, 445 U.S. 552 (1980); United States v. Moody, 

649 F.2d 124, 128 (2d Cir. 1981). Of course, each 



under Rule 35, F.R.Cr.P. i n  t h e  event t h a t  he o r  she might 

t e s t i f y  t ru thfu l ly  before t h e  grand jury a t  some l a t e r  

t i m e .  

The Presentation of a False Defense 

In essence, the  t r i a l  jury found t h a t  the reason 

proffered by the defendants f o r  t h e i r  r e fusa l  t o  t e s t i f y ,  

then  and now, should not  mit igate  the  sentence t o  be 

imposed by t h i s  Court. That this could be seen by jurors 

who knew only half  of the s tory  is a t r i b u t e  t o  t h e i r  

common sense and a c l e a r  expression of t h e  des i r e  of th is  

community t o  end the bloodshed caused by the FALN. The 

defense presented t o  t h e  jury, and t h e  way i n  which it was 

presented, demonstrated an u t t e r  contempt f o r  the l ega l  

system, f r ag i l e  i n  a l l  events because it presupposes the  

good faith of par t ic ipants .  The defendants 'knew then, and 

know now, t h a t  t h e i r  re fusa l  t o  t e s t i f y  would only protect  

t h e  FALN from detection,  invest igat ion and apprehension. 

W e  view the testimony of the  clergyman and community 

I 
! workers presented by t h e  defense a t  t r i a l  as a case of the  

not-so-docile sheep leading the  shepherd. We submit t h a t  

the false defense asserted before the t r i a l  jury 

demonstrates t h a t  these  defendants a re  poor prospects for  

r e h a b i l i t a t i o n  which t h i s  Court should consider as an 

aggravating factor. See, united Sta tes  v. Grayson, 438 U.S .  



41, 50-52 (1978); United States v. Hendrix, 505 F.2d 1233 

(2d Cir.), cert. denied;423 U.S. 897 (1975); 

The poor rehabilitative prospects for these 

defendants is made clear by their convicted FALN cohorts. 

At sentencing in Chicago, Luis Rosa boasted: "There will 

be many more Fraunces Taverns and many more Sabana Secas,I1 

where a bus loaded with unarmed navy personnel was ambushed 

by machineguns killing two and wounding nine. His words 

were echoed by Carmen Valentin who issued the following 

threat when she was sentenced: 

[W]e are confident that all those that 
have partaken in this illegal and vicious 
trial will not be exempted for the 
righteous and just revolutionary 
procedure. There will soon be judges, 
marshals, members of the jury, 
prosecutors, agents, all of you - some of 
you will be walking on canes and in 
wheelchairs. Revolutionary justice can be 
fierce. Mark my words. 

In the Eastern District of New York, after his 

conviction, William Morales spoke these prophetic words to 

Judge Nickerson: 

This Court does not [recognize my status 
as a prisoner of war], because it does 
not want to accept the fact that there is 
a state of war between ... [the United 
States and Puerto Rico], and since this 
Court does not recognize that fact, then 
for formal recognition, that war should 
start immediately. 

The Puerto Rican people should start 
to acquire the necessary funds and 



materials to wage war against colonialism 
and for freedom from imperialism. 

Die fighting on your feet. There 
are many ways to fight, from using a 
pencil on a piece of paper to using a 
machine gun and dynamite. . . 
The false defense had a broader significance than 

a mere attempt at "jury nullificationv, a tactic by which 

the defendants sought an acquittal from the jury on 

non-legal grounds. See e.g., Beck v. Alabama, 447 U.S. 625 

(1980). By requesting the jury not to follow the law 

(484-85, 495), these defendants sought to pervert and 

manipulate the constitutional system of law which must, 

above all else, function to protect the truly innocent. 

Had the defense been succesful, the good faith of 

government investigators unjustifiably would have been 

called into question. Only the FALN could profit from such 

a tactic. Although this Circuit apparently has not 

considered the matter of "jury nullificationn, the District 

of ~olumbia Circuit has had some experience with the 

technique, and has described its consequences in this way: 

This so called right of jury 
nullification is put forward in the 
name of liberty and democracy, but its 
explicit avowal risks the ultimate 
logic of anarchy. 

United States v. Dougherty, 473 F.2d 1113, 1133 (D.C. Cir. 

1972); United States v. Gorham, 523 F.2d 1088, 1098 (D.C. 
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C i r .  1975). ~ h u s  , t h e  defendants ' dr ive  towards anarchy i s  h 
I' ; complete, f inding expression both i n  t h e  courtroom and i n  5 

t h e  s t r e e t  -- su re ly  an aggravating f a c t o r  which t h i s  Court 

should consider a t  time of sentence. 

The dogged pers i s tence  of t hese  defendants and 

o the r s ,  contemptuous i n  and of  i t s e l f ,  has l ed  a t  l e a s t  

twenty ( 2 0 )  judges of  t h e  United S t a t e s  t o  consider and 

reject t h e i r  phony claims of improper government motive. 

Among these was t h e  Honorable Marvin Frankel, vouched f o r  

by t h e  defense i n  t h i s  case by of fe r ing  i n t o  evidence h i s  

book, The Grand Jury: ~ n s t i t u t i o n  on T r i a l  (498, 746). who - - 
sa id :  

Now, look, when a woman o r  a person of 
any sex i s  before a grand jury and 
asked about bombings i n  which l i f e  o r  
property have been placed i n  jeopardy 
and t h e  quest ion i s ,  does t h e  
prosecuting o f f i c i a l  have a responsible 
b a s i s  f o r  pu t t i ng  such quest ions  about 
such mat ters ,  o r  i s  he trampling on 
F i r s t  Amendment r i g h t s ,  I th ink  the  
witness i s  adequately p ro tec ted ,  given 
t h e  r i g h t  of appeal i f  a supposedly 
impar t ia l  judge looks a t  t h e  bas i s  f o r  
pu t t ing  such se r ious  quest ions  about 
such se r ious  mat ters  and says t h a t  
t he re  i s  enough b a s i s ,  l e t  t h e  person 
answer. 

Similar ly ,  i f  a p r i e s t  were asked 
d id  he see a murder i n  h i s  ca thedra l  
and t h i s  was asked wi ldly  and 
i r respons ib ly  it might be  an invasion 
of F i r s t  Amendment freedoms t h a t  a 
judge ought t o  be s e n s i t i v e  t o ,  bu t  i f  
a judge then looked a t  the mater ia l s  on 
which t h e  prosecutor swore he was 



asking the questions and it looked as 
though somebody has indeed killed 
somebody in the cathedral and the 
priest had indeed possibly seen it, 
then I don't think anybody's religion 
is hurt or anybody's religious freedom 
is impaired if the priest under oath 
says yes or no, he did or did not see 
the murder. 

In the Matter of ~aisa ~emikin, docket no. M. 18-188, tr. -- - 
2/24/77, pp. 12-13 (S.D.N.Y.). One wonders how Luis Rosado 

kept a straight face as his attorneys, acting either as 

unknowing shills or in complicity with him, argued why he 

should not be held in civil contempt in the Southern 

District in 1977. If not then, then surely on New Year's 

Eve of this year, a smile must have crossed his lips as he 

contemplated the maiming of three police officers on that 

night. 

In sum, the presentation of a false defense, 

repeated many times before other courts, for the corrupt 

purpose of securing a strategic advantage for the FALN 

further compounds the crime of these defendants and should 

be considered as an aggravating factor in the imposition of 

sentence. 

Some Important Comparisons 

~t is our position that the evidence submitted to 

this Court is sufficiently reliable to establish that the 

defendants are members of the FALN.~' United States v. 

~atico, supra. However, the distinction between being a 
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member of m e  FALN and remaining silent so as to protect 

the FALN, matters not at all to the citizens of this 

community. Either way, these defendants have abetted and 

assisted and continue to abet and assist, the FALN by their 

conspiracy of silence and in other ways described earlier. 

From all of the circumstances, then, the criminal conduct 

in this particular case closely parallels a violation of 18 

U.S.C. 52385 (Advocating overthrow of the Government) which 

provides in part: 

Whoever knowingly or willfully 
advocates, abets, advises or teaches 
the duty, necessity, desirability, or 
propriety of overthrowing or destroying 
the government of the United States or 
the government of any State, Territory, 
District or possession thereof, or the 
government of any political subdivision 
therein, by force or violence, or by 
the assassination of any officer of any 
such government; or * * * 
Whoever organizes or helps or attempts 
to organize any society, group, or 
assembly of persons who teach, 
advocate, or encourage the overthrow or 
destruction of any such government by 
force or violence; or becomes or is a 
member of, or affiliates with, any such 
society, group, or assembly of persons, 
knowing the purposes thereof - - 

Shall be fined not more than 
$20,000 or imprisoned not more than 
twenty years. 

The constitutionality of this statute has been upheld where 

there exists "a clear and present danger ... that the 
revolutionists would strike when they thought the time was 
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r ipe"  United S ta te s  v. Dennis, 341 U.S. 494, 505, 510 

(1951), a s i t u a t i o n  ce r t a in ly  ex is t ing  and "abettedn here 

by the  defendants' s i lence,  which gives the FALN a f r ee  

hand t o  operate a t  w i l l .  While the obstruction of  jus t ice  

s t a t u t e  provides some analogy for  the imposition of 

sentence i n  most contempt cases,  f ive  years imprisonment 

' would not be a measure of t h e  defendants1 crime and would 

not  begin t o  punish these defendants, nor deter others who 

would follow t h e i r  lead. Since the  contempt of these 

defendants most c lose ly  p a r a l l e l s  t h e  crime of advocating 

the overthrow of the government, r a the r  than the less 

inclusive obstruction of jus t i ce ,  the twenty year penalty 

is the  more appropriate standard of measure for  the 

sentence t o  be imposed by t h i s  Court. 

The sentence t o  be imposed i n  th is  case should 

a l s o  bear some re la t ionship  t o  sentences actual ly  imposed 

on other  members o f  the  FALN convicted of such serious 

crimes as Hobbs A c t  and explosives v io la t ions ,  and 

sedi t ious  conspiracy. A s  of today, twelve ( 1 2 )  members of 

the FALN have received sentences t o t a l l i n g  nine hundred and 

ninety-four (994) years imprisonment (no t  including Haydee 

Torres1 l i f e  sentence), an average of over eighty-three 

(83) years imprisonment f o r  each convicted FALN member. 

Furthermore, we ask t h i s  Court t o  consider t h a t  

these  defendants a r e  protect ing persons who could receive a 
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ence when convicted, as did Haydee Torres, for 

criminal activity of the most serious sortu. 

1/3/83, p. 19. New York law also carries a 

story life sentence for damaging an occupied building 

evice where the circumstances are such 

as to render the presence of a person inside a reasonable 

possibility. 39 McKinneyls Penal Law 0150.20. Physical - 
injury or death is not an element of the crime because as 

the Governor of the State of New York stated: 

The unlawful use of explosives in an 
occupied building is a dastardly deed 
evincing an extraordinary indifference 
to human life and deserving the maximum 
punishment of life imprisonment . . . 

Practice Commentary, Penal Law 8150.20. - 
The sentencing judge of the Chicago FALN 

terrorists considered the crimes of the FALN even more se rious . 
response to an argument made at the time of their sentence 

by Carlos Torres and Elizam Escobar, District Judge Thomas 

R. McMillan gave his view of the crimes committed by FALN 

brigands : 

And [the death penalty] as a matter of 
fact, is the penalty which should be 
imposed on count one in this case. 
However, Congress has given me a maximum 
of twenty (20) years on which I can 
sentence you to the penitentiary on count 
one, which is seditious conspiracy, in 
violation of our.statute which is Section 
2384 of Title 18. 



At the time he made this statement, Judge 

McMillan had heard an essentially circumstantial case 

consisting mainly of evidence of the Evanston arrest, the 

Chicago and Queens bomb factories, the Chicago and 

Milwaukee safehouses and bombings claimed by the FALN. 

Alfredo Mendez had not yet cooperated with the government. 

The view of Judge McMillan, that the atrocities of the FALN 

warrant imposition of the dealth penalty, is entitled to 

considerable weight in determining the appropriate sentence 

for those who shield their accomplices from prosecution. 

In the states which have borne the brunt of the 

attacks by the FALN and its predecessors, the power to 

imprison for contempt is not limited to any specific term 

fixed by statute or otherwise. Where a violation of a 

court order in the State of New York "consists of an 

omission to perform an act or duty, which is yet in the 

power of the offender to perform, he shall be imprisoned 

until he has performed it". 29 McKinneyts Judiciary Law 
~ 7 7 4 . ~  The law of criminal contempt in the State of 

Illinois recognizes that: 

The power of a court to punish for 
contempt does not depend on 
constitutional or legislative grant, 
but is inherent in all courts as 
essential to proper and effective 
functioning of the courts and to the 
administration of justice. Thus, the 
power of the courts of this state and 
the penalities to be imposed in a 



contempt proceeding, are neither 
created nor limited by act of the 
legislature. 

47th and State Currency Exchange, Inc. v. B. - Coleman Corp., 
56 Ill. App. 3d 229, 371 N.E. 2d 294, 298 (1978). A 

sentence of five years imprisonment, in circumstances far 

less compelling than here, was upheld in another Illinois 

criminal contempt case. People v. Levinson, 75 Ill. ~pp. 

3d 429 (1979). As a result, the law of those states most 

directly affected by the acts of F A W  criminals leaves the 

length of imprisonment to the discretion of the trial court 

in contempt cases, as does federal law. Neither the law of 

New York nor Illinois would bar imposition of the sentence 

recommended by the government in this case. 

The verdict of this jury which echoes the 

judgment of the laws of the United States and the States of 

New York and Illinois, all attest to the seriousness of the 

crime of these defendants. Where the Eighth Amendment is 

at issue, "the judgments of legislatures, juries and 

prosecutors weigh heavily in the balance." Enmund v. 

Florida, - U.S. - , 50 U.S.L.W. 5087, 5091 (decided July 

2, 1982). That unified judgment is that this case warrants 

the imposition of a severe sentence which fits the crime of 

these defendants. 



CONCLUSION 

Under the circumstances of this case, which 

demonstrate the grave threat to our institutions posed by 

these defendants, we submit that the Court should sentence 

each defendant to a term of imprisonment of fifteen (15) 

years. 

Dated: Brooklyn, New York 
May 19, 1983 

Respectfully submitted, 

RAYMOND J. DEARIE 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 
225 Cadrnan Plaza East 
Brooklyn, New York 11201 

JAMES D. HARMON, JR. 
Senior Litigation Counsel 

CHARLES E. ROSE 
Assistant U.S. Attorney 

(Of Counsel ) 



END NOTES 
1/ Carlos ~eliciano, a member of MIRA, was arrested in the 
gronx, New York on May 16, 1970, by officers of the Police 
Department of the City of New York as he placed a bomb 
outside of a military recruiting station. During 1970, 
Felicano was trained in incendiary and bomb making 
techniques by Filiberto Ojeda Rios, alias ltReubenIt a Cuban 
intelligence operative who told an undercover officer that 
he had been trained in sabatoge and explosives in Cuba. 
Feliciano was convicted in New York County on June 19, 
1973. 

2/ The Episcopal Church Publishing Company apparently has 
established a fund of ten thousand dollars ($10,000) to 
support these defendants. This company, with which the 
defendant Guerra is associated, has no official connection 
with the Episcopal Church. In fact, the company publishes 
materials stressing political philosophies not held by the 
Episcopal Church as an institution. The fund for these 
defendants was established with monies from the 
discretionary expense account of Bishop Paul Moore of the 
New York City Episcopal Church Diocese, another defense 
witness. 

As a sign of Brandy's prowess, she was awarded the 
SPCA Medal of Honor and the Steuben Society Distinguished 
Service Medal. 

The dynamite used by the FALN at Fraunces Tavern had 
been stolen in 1968 from the Heron Dam Site in New Mexico. 
Pedro Archuleta, a New Mexico resident and former NCHA 
member, refused to answer questions about this dynamite 
before a Southern District grand jury in 1977 (820). He 
was then represented by Linda Backiel, the self-proclaimed 
expert on so-called grand jury abuse who testified for the 
defense at the trial of this case. 

I/ Radio crystals of these frequencies are not used by 
the FBI nor by the police departments of Evanston and 
Chicago, Illinois or the City of New York. According to a 
representative of Motorola, Inc., these frequencies are 
assigned to telephone maintenance personnel, and power and 
gas utility companies, respectively. 

6 /  A document entitled "FALN, Political Positionu found 
T 

in the Chicago bomb factory in 1976 makes clear that posing 
as a cleric is lthelpful toward confusing and eluding the 
enemytt. The relevant page of this document is annexed as 
exhibit L. 



On April 17, 1973, o f f i c e r s  of the  Englewood 
g o l o r a d o )  Police Department observed a t e n  year old boy 
playing with a .38 ca l .  revolver. The boy t o l d  the 
o f f i c e r s  t h a t  he had s to len  t h e  gun from the home of the  
defendant Ricardo Romero, s i x  days e a r l i e r .  On April 18, 
1973, Englewood pol ice  executed a search warrant a t  
Romerors house where they found f ive  (5)  r i f l e s  including a 
.30 c a l .  carbine and a Russian made 7.62 mm r i f l e .  The 
revolver s tolen by the  young boy, i n  turn, had been among a 
group of twenty-eight (28) weapons s to len  from a s to re  i n  
Galesburg, I l l i n o i s  on January 31, 1973. 

The term Ifmemberlf has no pa r t i cu la r  meaning within the 
parlance of the  FALN and i s  used here as a generic term t o  
include the various functional  ro le s  played by each 
defendant i n  the  FALN. 

9J Under New York Law, c i v i l  contempt c a r r i e s  the  
p o s s i b i l i t y  of open ended commitment without l imi ta t ion ,  
whereas criminal contempt c a r r i e s  a possible  sentence of 
t h i r t y  (30) days imprisonment through d i r e c t  court  
proceedings, o r  four years imprisonment upon indictment. 29 
McKinneyls Judiciary Law 9750; Penal Law 5215.51. The 
unusual consequence i s h a t  c i v G n G p t  provides the 
Itmore meaningful consequences. See prac t ice  Commentary, 
7B McKinneyts - CPLR 02308. 











MOS CODE 112 

Duties 

Commands and controls mortar o r  . Davy 
Crockett squad, section or platoon. Employs 
individual weapons to protect position and em- 
ploys mortar or Davy Crockett in offensive and 
defensive operations in all types of terrain and 
climate. Directs deployment of personnel and 
selects sites for  emplacement of weapons. As- 
signs target areas. Selects ammunition types 
appropriate for  specific targets. Orders, ob- 
serves, adjusts, and coordinates,fires to destroy 
enemy personnel, weapons and equipment. 
Supervises fire direction activities, and com- 
putes firing data. Conducts surveys to deter- 
mine location of emplacements for effective 
fire. Instructs replacement personnel in all 
phases of tactical employment of infantry in- 
direct fire weapons. Supervises or participates 
in construction of hasty field fortifications, 

. . security of unit, preventive and organizational 

.. maintenance of weapons and equipment, and 
receipt, storage, and distribution of rations, 
supplies, and ammunition. Serves as gunner 
and assistant gunner of infantry indirect fire 
crew-seived weapons. Carries and prepares 
ammunition for  use. Prepares rough maps, 
field sketches, and overlays to indicate location 
of critical terrain features and enemy activities. 
Operates radio and telephone to transmit and 
receive messages. 

Skills and Knowledges 

Entry: 

Code 112.0. Must know fundamentals of in- 
fantry tactics to  include principles of fire and 
maneuver. Must know nomenclature, care, and 
employment, to  include capabilities and limita- 
tions ,of individual weapons and indirect fire 
crew-served weapons, such a s  rifle and mortar 
or Davy Crockett. Must know fundamentals of 
mine warfare. Must know how to protect self, 
wezpon, and equipment from chemical and 
other contamination. Must know principles of 
field sanitation. Must know visual signals em- 
ployed within small infantry units. Must be 

able to read maps and aerial photographs. Must 
be able to identify types of ammunition for in- 
fantry indirect fire weapons by markings. 
Must be able to  administer first aid. 

Specialist : 

Code 112.1. Must be qualified as Infantry 
Indirect Fire Crewman (112.0). Must know 
employment, to include capabilities and limita- 
tions, of mortar. Must know use of mortar 
sight. Must know use of firing tables fo r  
mortar. Must know techniques of range esti- 
mation. Must know nomenclature, care, and 
use of aiming circle to include measurement of 
horizontal and vertical angles. Must know how . 
to prepare weapon and ammunition for  firing, 
lay weapon for  direction and elevation, fire 
weapon, prepare range cards, and take in-and- 
out-of-action procedures. Must be able to  pre- 
pare initial data used in computation of firing 
data. Must be able to make corrections caused 
by difference in altitude, meteorological 
changes, weapon deviation, and deflection, and 
to compute firing data. Must know elements of 
fire request, fire orders, and fire commands. 

Code 112.2. Must be qualified as Infantry 
Indirect Fire Crewman (112.1). Must know 
employment, to  include capabilities and limita- 
tions, of the Davy Crockett weapons' system. 
Must know use of firing tables for Davy Crock- 
ett. Must know how to prepare weapons' sys- 
tem and ammunition for firing, lay for direc- 
tion and elevation, fire the system, and take in- 
andsutof-action procedures. 

Code 112.6. Must be qualified as Infantry 
Indirect Fire Crewman (112.2). Must know 
organization and tactical employment of mortar  
or Davy Crockett squad or section. Must know 
use of target-grid method of fire adjustment. 
Must know ammunition supply procedure with- 
in battalion. Must know communication proce- 
dures and use of communication equipment 
organic to battalion. Must be able to command 
and control squad or section. Must be able to 
measure angles using mil relation formula, Ee!d .- - . 
glasses, or map. Must-'tie able to lowte posi- 
tions suitable for emplacement .of indirect fire 
weapons and establishment of observetion 



posts. Must be able to request and adjust sup- 
porting tire. Must be able to supervise receipt, 
storage, and distribution of ammunition. Must 
be able to coordinate employment of unit ve- 
hicles in performance of unit mission. hlust 
be able to supenrise and coordinate fire direc- 
tion activities. Must demonstrate qualities of 
initiative, resourcefulness, and leadership. 

Code 112.7. Must be qualified as Infantry 
Indirect Fire Crewman (112.6). Must be able 
to command and control platoon engaged in 
employment of indirect fire weapons or both 
direct and indirect fire weapons. Must know 
organization and tactical employment of these 
types of platoons. Must know capabilities and 
limitations of other combat arms units used 
in support of infantry units and combined arms 
teams. Must know fundamentals of company 
administration and supply and mess activities. 

Physical Requirements 

Requires clear speech to deliver commands 
to unit personnel. Requires auditory acuity to 
receive oral reports of personnel and to respond 
to commands in field. Requires color discrimi- 
nation to identify ammunition types and to 
perform reconnaissance and observation duties. 
Requires depth perception to obtain optimum 
sensing in adjustment of fires. Requires good 
night vision to perform night combat duties. 

Mental Requirements 

Aptitude Area. IN.  (If aptitude area I N  is 
not available, use aptitude area CO.) Requires i 
verbal and reasoning ability to read and under- 

' 

stand communications received, make appropri-' 
. (  

ate disposition, or initiate necessary action. 
- i 

b t  
Requires memory to recall instructions of t I '  
superior. Requires vocabulary or arithmetic 
reasoning aptitude and pattern analysis apti- . ? 
tude to observe and adjust fires. Requires high , . 
degree of emotional stability to fulfill command I 

responsibilities and to facilitate quick thought L 
: 

and action in fast changing situations involv- i 
ing personal hazard. I' 

Special Requirements 

hlust have natural or  acquired aggressive ! .  

nature and strong sense of loyalty of assigned 
! 

8 

unit. Personnel classified in MOS code 112.2 l 

must be cleared, based upon a National Agency !; 
Check, for access to SECRET information and i 
materials in accordance with AR 604-5, and 
must have emotional stability as  evidenced by c- 

[ 
digit 1 in "S" factor of PULHES. . { .  

I 

Related Civilian Occupations 
DOT elornfiation - 

None 

Federal Civil Srrpicc ckurifiatwn 

None 



A r e  direction chief direction computer personnel. 

direct and direct fire weapons. 



STORAGE SPECIALIST 

MOS Code 411 

nfonitor- Cof  Ord 

Duties 

Receires, stores, issues, a~;:! keeps stock control 
records on carious t ~ p e s  of ammunition, including 
chemical ammunition, nmnlunition components, 
and military esplosires. Inspects incoming and 
outgoing shipments of ammunition to rerif?- cor- 
rectness of quantity and nomenclature, serrice- 
abil i t~,  and conformit to requisition. Stores Am- 
munition and explosives in m qnzines, tvarehouses, 
re~etments, and open storage nreas in conformits 
nith quan t i t~  distance tables and safety regulation 
pert a h h g  to ammunition of all types and to mili- 
t s v  esplosires. h4dies routine risual inspections 
and h~entories of ammunition in storage. De- 
strors or neutralizes unseniceable and irreparable 

, ammunition and explosives in accordance with : prescribed methods. Packs, crates, and loads am- 
? munition on all t_rpos of rehicles, and utilizes 

proper shoring and bracing to assure safe ship- 
men t. Prepares transport at ion orders for issue of 

/ ammunition from supply point to using unit. 

5 .  Establishes, posts, rtnd keeps current ammunition 
stock records used to control requisition, receipt, 
storage, and iss.sue of militnv esplosires, ammuni- 
tion, and ammunition components. Supervises 
and participates in administrative and clerical 
duties to insure eficient operation of an ammuni- 
tion stocli control section. 

i Skills and Knowledges 

Specialist : t 
Code 41 1 . l .  %lust h o \ v  how to apply AR and 

other DA publicat.ions gorerning propertF ac- 
couritnbilit~, responsibility, and amuni t ion sup- 

- pl_r procedures. Must l i n o ~ ~  how to use the DA 
supplr manual to determine correct nomenclature, 
ammunition identxcation code s3-mbols and mark- 
ings, stock numbers, and other pertinent storage 
data. Must kno\\- types of ammunition to include 
chemical urnmunition, ammunition components, 
and military explosires. &.lust general rnis- 

sion nnd operation of an ammunition compmy, 
ammunition depot, and supply point. Slust. Emom 
t.echuiques for destrojing and neutralizing unserv- 
iceable and irreparable ammunition, including use 
and maintenance of equipment. Xiust h o ~  
methods and procedures for receiring, storing, 
and issuing rnrious tj-pes of ammunition, ammuni- 
tion components, and explosires, including utiliza- 
tion of materials handling equipment. 31ust. 
h o w  safety measures nnd precautions to be 
exercised n-hen handling, storing, transporting, 
and destroying or neutralizing rnrious types of 
ammunition, ammunition components, and &I- 
plosi~es. 

Code 41 1 3. Must h o r r  characterist.ics of rari- 
ous t .ges of ammunition, ammunition compo- 
nents, and explosires. Must h o w  techniques and 
procedures for establishing and maintainin, rec- 
ords for stocli control purposes including inven- 
t o v  procedures, storage location sptems, and lot 
number control. Must. h o w  procedures for docu- 
mentation of ammunition supply actirities, in- 
cludin,~ requisition, shipment, receipt, main te- 
nance, disposition, and issue. Must h o w  ammu- 
nition reporting procedures. Must. be able to 
interpret and use supply mnnuals, interchangeabil- 
ity lists, substitution lists, and weapons density 
lists. h4ust be able to prepare graphical analjsis 
of stocli status as required. 

Noncommissioned officer: 
C o d a  411.6 and 411.7. Must laow factors 

involved in selection of sites and layout of a m u ~ i -  
tion storage areas. >lust h o w  principles of 
warehousing. Must know channels of distribution 
for ammunition from ordnance supply points and 
depots to using units. &lust knov charncteristics 
and all identifring markings of ammunition sup- 
plies such as color, code s p b o l s ,  lot, and t lpe  of 
explosi~e or chemical filler. Must know how to 
interpret and apply quantity distance tablcs, stor- 
age and rehicle load dranings, planogmphs, a~ id  
combination storage charts. Xiust know inspec- 
tion and inventory procedures pertaining to am- 
munition storage. Must know cnpabilities of 
personnel and equipment. hlust know how to 
apply safety regulations and procedures to specific 
situations. 



15 June 1960 
. I  

. - . . 
Physical Requirements p l ~  and storage. Requires spatial relationsLip I 

( nbilitr to evaluate and nnalpe storage facility . near  ion ~erform'n'e of utilirotion. ~~~~i~~~ rmotional stabilitr and 
ion. Requires color rision tenti~eness in the handling of high esplosives. 

jut crprct color-coding of ammunition. Must be 
* 

B - ~  .,sicdlv able to en&e in strenuous phjsical Related Civilian Occupations 
%:tirity for prolonged periods. DOT ctorsificollon Cedr 
Y, Inveutory Clerk--- - - -- - ---- . - ---------- 1-01-41 
\ 

: XIental Requirements hlngszine Keeper---- -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - 1-38 03 
Fcdrrol Ciri l  Gcrricr clarsiflcoliun Codc 

.-lpl;t~tclt Arta G31. Requires \-erbal nbi1it.y in hlunitiou Handling ----- ---,------- - WB 6511 
reading regulations pertaining to amuni t ion  sup- Powder Handling ----- - - -- -- -- - - - -- - -- -- T B  6510 







CASH FLOW CHART* 

EPISCOPAL CHURCH 1 
DFMSPEC c 

p k -  (CUETO) 

I 1 
CEDA 

(LUCERO) 

4/11/75 7/23/7 
$50,000 $50,00 

5 

CRUSADE 

JUSTICE 
( ROMERO) 
(ERCF) U 

CRUSADE 
FOR 

JUSTICE 
( ROMERO ) 
( ESTRF) 
I 

Key t o  a b b r e v i a t i o n s :  

\l' \I/ 

NCHA - N a t i o n a l  Commission on H i span i c  A f f a i r s  
DFMSPEC - D o m e s t i c  and Fo re ign  Mis s iona ry  

S o c i e t y  o f  t h e  Ep i scopa l  Church 
CEDA - Colorado Economic Development A s s o c i a t i o n  
ERCF - Economic Research and C o n s u l t i n g  Firm 
ESTRF - Escue la  T l a t e l o l c o  Research Fund 

ERNEST 
VIGIL 

* T h i s  c h a r t  d e s c r i b e s  t h e  d i s p o s i t i o n  o f  t h e  proceeds  
o f  two f i f t y - t h o u s a n d  d o l l a r  ($50,000)  checks  l aundered  
a t  t h e  d i r e c t i o n  o f  t h e  d e f e n d a n t  Maria Cueto.  

NITA 
MARQUEZ 

i 

$50,000 $50,009 
FALN 

? 
i 





LTiVE COUKCiL of ::-.L EP:5COPAL CHURCE 
n i i  \ i i  r ) N l  AVLSUElSLW YOKY. NEW YOKK i lU) i?;  l l l 2 )  I:1,7-04(X) 

r:,~l>i~q hrldri -: FENALONG, N Y .  . 
2G J a n u a r y  1 9 7 5  

C o i o r c d o  Etozomic  
Developmefit A s s o c i a ~ f o n  
63:  Fox Sr:*+st 
3 e r , v e r ,  Z o l o r a c o  3 3 2 3 ~  

_' . 
&; A t = :  3dwsrC R e  L u c e r o  

Deal? M r .  Lucero:  

The N a t i o n a l  Commission oa H i s p a n i c  A f f a i r s  o f  t h e  
E p i s c o p a l  Church o f  t h e  US i s  i n h u g u r a t i n g  a f a r - r e a c h i n g  
27.2 i n t e s i v e  r e s e a r c h  on t h e  s o c i a l  a s p e c t s  of t h e  Ch ican ;  
i n  t h e  US. T h i s  i s  p a r t  o f  o u r  mandate  w i t h i n  o u r  Comr,unit-  
Devclo?r .ent  P rcgr~ i i i .  

Your o r g a n i z a t i o n  h a s  b e e n  recommended t o  u s  as a n  
hgency  t h a t  h a s  xne e x p e r t i s e  and  n e c e s s a r y  c o n t a c t s  t h a t  
w L - 1  make 2 o s s i b l e  a  t h o r o u g h  and  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  r e s e a r c h ,  

Selow a r e  some a r e a s  t o  b e  r e s e a r c h e d :  

P o p u l a t i o n  
S o c i a l  u n i t s  
M i g r a n t  f a r m w o r k e r s  
Employment I 

W e l f a r e  
E d u c a t i o n  ( ~ l t e r n a t i v e s )  
G r a s s - r o o t s ,  f e d e r a l  & r e l i g i g u s  
s o c i a l  s e r v i c e  a g e n c i e s  s e r v i c i n g  
the C h i c ~ ~ o .  
R e l i g i o u s  a f f i l i s t i o n s .  

A member o f  t h e  Commission w i l l  b e  c o n t a c z i - 2  gau 
t o  d i s c u s s  t h i s  p r o j e c t  i n  d e ? t h .  I f ,  a f t e r  meet i r ig  w ~ t h  
O L ?  r e ? r e s e n t a t i v e ,  you  d e c i d e  t o  c a r r y  o u t  t h e  r s sear . i ,  
. , l ea se  send us an  e s t i m a t e  o f  c o s t s  and a  t ime-work s c . . a d , l ~ .  
k!ia wiil s u b m i t  it t o  t h e  Commission f o r  i t s  c o n s i d e r a r : o n  ~i.i 

I n f ~ r m  you as t o  t h e i r  d e c i s i p n .  

With e x p e c t a t i o n s  o f  a l o n g  and s a t i s f a c t o r y  w o r k i ~ g  
r e - a t  i o n s h i p ,  I r e m a i n ,  

C o r d i z l l y  y o u r s ,  

. . IiISPANiC AFFAIRS 
e -.r/) &:-a 4. Lr 

Xari i  T. Zueto 
* p  > - - - - = fits: - -*- /#;?I 



621 FOX STREET 
DENVER. COLORAOO 8 0 2 0 4  
1301) 155-042 1 

February 17 ,  1975 

M s .  Maria Cueto 
Nat iona l  Cornmission on 

Hispanic Af fa i r s  
815 - 2nd Avenue 
New York, New York 10017 

Dear M s .  Cueto: 

We have met wi th  a  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  from t h e  National Commission . 
on Hispanic A f f a i r s  and we f e e l  t h a t  CEDb and i ts  various resources 
w i l l  be ab l e  t o  comply and f u l f i l l  the i tems spe l l ed  out  i n  your 
l e t t e r  dated 1/28/75. We w i l l  need approximately 13  months from 
l larch 1, 1975, i n  o rde r  t o  f u l f i l l  the above mentioned terms. 

Following i s  a  pro-forma budget t h a t  we a n t i c i p a t e  expending 
t h e  $50,000 t o  be received from your o f f i c e :  

A.  Consul tants  $15,000 
B. Travel  and Per Diem L O ,  000 
C. Personnel and Fringe Bene f i t s  20,009 
D. Supportive Serv ices  - Consumable 

Supp l i e s ,  Rent, e t c .  5,000 
T o t a l  sS0,OOO 

S i n c e r e l y  , 

~ d w a r d  R.  Luccro 
D i r e c t o r  



615 SECOsO AVENUEINEW YOUK, NEW YOUK 16017/(212) 867-8400 
Cable Address: FENALONG, N.Y. 

A t t :  E d  Lucero 

Colorado Economic 
Development Assoela t ion  
6 2 1  Fox S t r e e t  
Denver, Colorado 

g . Dear M r .  Lucero: 

Under s e p a r a t e  cove r  we have s e n t  you a check 

i n  t h e  amount o f  $50,000: which was approved by t h e  

$ Nat iona l  Commission on HispaGia Affairs o f  t h e  E ~ i s c o n a l  

Church a t  i t s  l a s t  p l e n a r y  s e s s i o n ,  t o  employ you t o  

c a r r y  o u t  N C H A r s  e d u c a t i o n  and r e s e a r c h  program, 

Our l o c a l  Commission member w i l l  work with you 

i n  t h e  c o o r d i n a t i o n  o f  o u r  program. r 

C o r d i a l l y  your s ,  
I 

N h ' i i J X A L  ZOMMXSSfON OK 
HISPANIC AFFAIRS 

MarSa T ,  Cueto 
Hiepan ic  O f f i c e r  

@. mtctrn 





EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 
of the EPISCOPfi CHURCH 
81q SECOND AVENUE 
NEW YORK, NEW YORK lOOt7 

."r 
Colorado Economic Development Associat ion $ L  

621 Fox S t r e e t  - Denver, Colorado 80204 
"G? , J.  .d & 

- .  
' -j:. ' 

-! . '+ 

STATEMENT OF INCOlliE - EXPENDITURES and CASH-ON-HAND 

For Fiscal Year Beginning April  1 ,  1975 and 

Ending April  1 ,  1976 

Receipts  : 

National Comnission on Hispanic Af fa i r s  $ 50,000.00 

Total  cash Received 

Less: T o t a l  Expenditures: - 
Profess ional  & Technical Services  

Travel 
Of f i ce  Expenses & Operating Supplies  

Publication & Duolica t i o n  Supplies 

Total  Expe9di tures 

Net Income (or D e f i c i t )  

Total Cash-on-Hand, End of F i s r a l  Year 

Chief O p e r a t i n s  cfficerls sigr-L .a c u r e  

P l u s  Total Cash-on-Hdnc? Beainning of Fisczl Year 

Financial  O f f i c e r ' s  signature 
A&> 



EXECUTIVE COUNCIL of the EPISCOPAL CHURCH 
\ / 815 \I* * I N ! )  A \ ' I N U E / N L W  YORK, N E W  YORK 1 0 1 ~ ~ 1 2 1 2 ,  667-8400 * 

.& C,II>I~* I\ddr*. .b: FENALONC,. N.Y. - 

2 July 1976 

!Ira Ed Luccro 
Colora2o Economic 
Dcve1,onnent Asoociation 
621 pox Street 
Do~ver , Colorado 

Dear ?;re Lucero: 

Xn concurrence trith our program, we have decided t o  
go ahead and fund the C.E.D.A. program t o  continue carrying 
out  the  vork i n  research that was i n i t i a t e d  i n  1975. 

Please cont inue t o  send t h e  f ind ings  p e r i o d i c a l l y  
t o  keep as up t o  d a t e  as t o  t h e  r e s u l t s  of  pour work. 

A rna~ber of tha  Commission and our  Chairman, 1%. Vigi l ,  
w i l l  con tac t  you t o  work o u t  tho  d e t a i l s  with reference t o  
budgat and expenditures,  Ile w i l l  anstfor any quoations you 
m a y  have wi th  regard to our expecta t ions .  

Cordially yours, 

mtc :rn 





. . . .  I . . :  (comer Secund Auerme) 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

(1  UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

-aga ins t -  

JULIO ROSADO, e t  a l .  

Defendants. 

AFFIDAVIT 
8 2  CR 25 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
:ss.: 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK ) 

MILTON L. WOOD, b e i n g  d u l y  sworn, deposes  and says :  

1. I a m  a b i s h o p  of  t h e  Episcopa l  Church and t h e  

Execut ive  f o r  Admin i s t r a t i on  of t h e  Execut ive  Counci l  of  t h e  

I Episcopa l  Church ( t h e  "Execu t ive  Counc i l " ) .  The Ep i scopa l  
I i 

11 Church i s  governed, i n  t h e  f i r s t  i n s t a n c e ,  by t h e  Genera l  I 

/ /  by t h e  P r e s i d i n g  Bishop, p r e s e n t l y  t h e  Most Rev. John M. A l l i n ,  I 
I 

/I and t h e E x e c u t i v e C o u n c i 1 .  T h e E x e c u t i v e C o u n c i l  c o n s t i t u t e s  ( 

Convention which is  he ld  every t h r e e  yea r s .  During t h e  

i n t e r s t i t i a l  p e r i o d s  t h e  program of  t h e  Church i s  admin i s t e r ed  

( 1  S t a t e  of New York. I 

1 
i 
I ' 2 .  The P r e s i d i n g  Bishop and Execut ive  Counci l  have ! i I 
I I i 

t h e  Board of Directors of t h e  Church under t h e  l a w s  o f  t h e  I 
I 

t a k e n  no p o s i t i o n  ( a )  i n  t h e  proceedings  be fo re  t h i s  Cour t  o r  1 
I 

i '  b e f o r e  t h e  United S t a t e s  D i s t r i c t  Court  f o r  t h e  Southern  i 
i 



D i s t r i c t  of New York where in  s e v e r a l  members of  t h e  Na t iona l  1 
Commission f o r  H i span ic  A f f a i r s  were he ld  i n  c i v i l  contempt 

i n  1977 o r  (b)  on t h e  s e n t e n c e  t o  be imposed i n  t h i s  case. 

3. On March 3 ,  1983 I met w i t h  L e s t e r  Zorn, I 
United - .  S t a t e s  P r o b a t i o n  O f f i c e r ,  and was in t e rv i ewed  by him, I 
a p p a r e n t l y  i n  my c a p a c i t y  as  a r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  o f  t h e  former I 
employer of Maria Cueto. Although I have n o t  seen ,  and 

unders tand t h a t  under  normal c i rcumstances  would n o t  be I 
pe rmi t t ed  t o  see, t h e  P r o b a t i o n  Report  p repared  by M r .  Zorn, I 
I r e f e r  t h e  Court  t o  t h a t  r e p o r t  f o r  a n  e x p r e s s i o n  o f  my views I 
w i t h  r e s p e c t  t o  h e r  r o l e  i n  t h e  a f f a i r s  o f  t h e  Church. 

4 .  The p o s i t i o n  of t h e  Execut ive  Counci l  i n  r e g a r d  I 
t o  t h e  c i v i c  r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s  of  pe r sons  a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  t h e  I 
Church ' s  Hispanic  Commission w a s  i n  my o p i n i o n  f a i r l y  r e p r e s e n t e d  

by t h e  Honorable C h e s t e r  J .  Byrns, a  s t a t e  c o u r t  judge s i t t i n g  I 
i n  S t .  Joseph,  Michigan and t h e n  a member of  t h e  Execut ive  I 
Counci l .  I n  an  a r t i c l e  (annexed a s  E x h i b i t  A h e r e t o  by permis-  

s i o n  of Judge Byrns) which appeared i n  t h e  newspaper f o r  t h e  I 
Diocese of Western Michigan, Judge Byrns s t a t e d :  

I 
i 

[No] competent  and a u t h o r i z e d  Episcopa l  
a u t h o r i t y  h a s  advocated t h e  e s t a b l i s h m e n t  
of a l e g a l  p r i n c i p l e  t h a t  knowledge of 
c r i m i n a l s  and crimes he ld  by a n  employee 
of t h e  Church o u t s i d e  t h e  c o n f e s s i o n a l  
should be  p r i v i l e g e d  from i n q u i r y  a s  a 
m a t t e r  of  freedom of r e l i g i o n .  I n  f a c t ,  



t h e  women w e r e  t a k i n g  a  p o s i t i o n  c o n t r a r y  
n o t  j u s t  t o  t h e  l a w  o f  t h e  l a n d ,  b u t  one  
which i s  n o t  s u p p o r t e d  by t h e i r  Church 
who also w a s  t h e i r  employer .  

The power from C h r i s t  t o  f o r g i v e  s i n s  
: . 

was n o t  g i v e n  t o  Church secretaries or 
i t s  social  workers .  I t  is  r e s e r v e d  t o  
p r i e s t s  and  t h e n  u n d e r  o n l y  c e r t a i n  
c o n d i t i o n s ,  i .e . ,  s o r r o w  by t h e  p e n i t e n t  
f o r  t h e  s i n ;  a r e s o l u t i o n  n o t  t o  r e p e a t ,  e tc.  
C e r t a i n l y ,  . t he  Church d o e s n ' t  h i r e  l a y  
employees t o  h e a r  c o n f e s s i o n s  o f  crime and 
g i v e  a b s o l u t i o n  any  more t h a n  it h i r e s  
them t o  c o m m i t  a crime or a i d  and  a b e t  i n  
i t s  commission or  c o n c e a l  it. A p r i e s t  who 
sees a  c r i m e  or knows o f  it, o t h e r  t h a n  
f rom t h e  c o n f e s s i o n a l ,  c a n n o t  r e f u s e  t o  
answer  p r o p e r  i n q u i r y  a b o u t  s u c h  knowledge. 

I c a n n o t  a g r e e  w i t h  t h e  argument  t h a t  
it i s  i m p o r t a n t  t h a t  o u r  Church 
employees have  a p r i v i l e g e  from answer ing 
l a w f u l  q u e s t i o n s  a b o u t  c r i m i n a l  a c t i v i t y  
o f  which t h e y  have  knowledge so t h a t  t h e y  
w i l l  have  c r e d i b i l i t y  w i t h  t h e  m i n o r i t i e s  
w i t h  w b m  t h e y  work. I d o n ' t  e i t h e r  
b e l i e v e  t h a t  b e c a u s e  t h e  l a y  employees 
h e r e  d e s i g n a t e d  t h e m s e l v e s  " l a y  m i n i s t e r s "  
t h a t  t h i s  g i v e s  them a n y  s p e c i a l  l e g a l  
s t a t u s .  

5. I n o t e  i n  c o n c l u s i o n  t h a t  t h e  P r e s i d i n g  Bishop  

and t h e  E x e c u t i v e  C o u n c i l  were aware o f  t h e  f a c t s  and  circum- 

s t a n c e s  s u r r o u n d i n g  t h e  c i v i l  c o n t e m p t  p r o c e e d i n g s  i n s t i t u t e d  

i n  t h e  S o u t h e r n  D i s t r i c t  of New York i n  1977 and made w h a t  w a s  
I 



bel ieved then  t o  have been an informed dec i s ion  t o  l e a v e  

the mat te r  t o  t h e  due a d m i n i s t r a t i o n  of t h e  c o u r t s .  

Nothing has  changed t h i s  p o s i t i o n  s i n c e  t h a t  t i m e .  

Sworn t o  before  m e  
t h i s / $  day of May, 1983  

I 
I 
I 

CLINTON F. BEST: 
NOfARy FUELiC, STATE OF HCN YORK 

NO. 31 -4559722 
Qualified in N e a  Y ~ r k  ~ " ~ n t y  

C o r n ~ ~ s s ~ o n  Expires h:;,ch 30, 



----. ---_._ 

. . 
ny Cie IlonoraMe ch.mcy. It was this, in c!fcct. 
.ChtstcrJ. llyrus that thc women wcrc s=+~lg in - 8lcnl.rr of Ihe Xalfonal their b b t  bid for rc!=isc. AS 
ExccuUvc Counc3 Judsc Grtcr  notcd. i: mo:~ Uun 
Of Q c  (.:~.bcop:l - .ten nmnllls c o n i i n ~ n a ~ t c d d  not 

Cborcl:ofthc~.s. . makc Utc womcn ~ILCWCT Lhe 
After serving tcn rnmtk f o r  mrw questions. a rcw mmm 

a n u n y l  of court lm hiiir;: to ~ ~ ~ ~ p l r e t . u ~  ~ - d n o t c i * w  
M C r  (r:-:jom about a ~ h j t i s  . b ~  SUCCCSSI~. ijS I ~ J V C  W i i t h  
of a P r c r a  PJcan terruist ~roca in pwious aniclcs. lhk mat@ 
t b t  w!ix i '~  pin: with ~ Z S  nbsorbcd a ge;t Jm-t of 
b % ~  h c t o  & wisa N G ~ J ,  Churc!, time acd motion.  
staff em?lwj+- of w na?iom~ alj.afi tho Residing Bizbop 

rc1-d  jar.^ expressid gratitude that  the 
9 by ~rdcto! US. Dijlrict J;1Sjy womcn were relezsad and . 
R c M  1 W of NW yak .dtkou=h hc and ' lte Executive - 
City. m&y cmld h;m! be:n b- . C+~;mcil o!!ercd qiri:ccl 'and 
carce:a~until3:ay ar*:bic:-. wi!; re;krbl assistance to ~e two. no 
be !h cnd o! lhe t m  o! t !  U.S.. 5Ompc'tcnt and autl?o:ized 
Ccnd  .I-~y investigalrg Ca spiscopal authority has ad-- 
bombin2 of the Frtuncis vowted the esbWhhmenrdf a 
fiaverz i? New York Cia i 1915. le@ principle h t  kaov~lcd~e of 

'Toe h rce ra t ion  of these two enmirwls and crimcs h1M by an 
.:yonng ladies - h!aria was.  wpldyee of F e  Chru& ouade 

Dirzcbro! Cqe Church's Iiisgadc the confess~onal should be - 
Commission and w i z  was hcr . privileed from ' ioquiry as a 
secretory - became somc:i-~nl; cf matter of frcedom of relf,nIoi~. In 
a cause cdebre in church ei:clzs kcl. womcn were hldng a . 
not only r i a  U,e E$s:o;d position contrary aot just to the 
Church but in o&er fjips aid law of the hnd, bxt me vfbicb is 
within the Ka$arwI Co~-&l cf not'su?prtcd by their. Chrch 
Churches which becane the a h  was their employer. 
cham~ion of 3hri3 and Raisa.. . -  . - ; I can't imagine the,.courts or 
'.What was ovcrlcok~d in me. the Congresr or a . state 
m t t f r  was w t  it ws L I  con- . legislature adopting such a 
tinuirlg conkmpl of ~ h:ia for privilege. The priest-pcnitcnt 
rclusal to answer qvcstions ~ r i v i k ~ f  ~ h c r o  m a f i l l i d  . . ccrbinly wclt wiUbin thc ambit o! iLscu m m w l ~  ht-mlcd. ' h a t  
the C& Jury that war lttxigicz J m t  W Y  m v d  w h t  was 
mcm ia jlil. P a r ~ p m  & bld him (her) m confession by 
qutstiaas war: . one. seeking lorgivexess as a 
*DO YOU how wss prm-t does not m- that a 

Torres is?" '?$%en did y w  k s t  . church. m p b p ? . - W b  B' O r  
spcak to b?" -who kanras for fact wbo.Com- 
. morres k primr,wp& in - mUed a crime. may'. refuse a 
ibc Puerto Rican kmr i s t  - re9uest by the Proper a M t i e s  ' 
FAL.N.-bombiep~lldissrilljt to fu* infomatian or 
large. Ilc had k n  a m c ~ k  of ref-e to =Y if he.= she knows 
lhc Church's 1li:;panic Con- anylhig about it. 
mission. (The F.A.L.X. is  -The POWW from Christ loj 

.responsible lor a t  l a s t  65 f0rSive sins was not given to 
bornhirip! ). Church 6ecmWic.s or ils social - W a s  Torres bvolved in the workers. It is reserved to priesh 
R a u n c s  Tavern bontb:?" and tnen under d y  cerlain 

. " C ~ I  you k U  us who W J ~  in- conditions, i.e. sorrow' by the 
'whrcd in h i  bmbing or 60 ycu pcnitect for the sin; a resolution 
twve any ialonnatior. at=-t it?" .not to repeat. ek.  Certainly Ule 

"Were any funds oi ti?c Church doesn't hire loy em- 
Episcopal Hispanic Comr,:W.on p!oyces to De3r corlcnsiocs of 
directly or indirectly give? &e . crime and give rbsolution any 
FdL.N.?" more than it hirzs them to 

At any t h e  had the women commitacrimeor a idadabe t  in 
answered thw oucstios W ~ J C ~  its commission or conceal it. A 
deal wim crime; - not chu:cb pries:wbo sees a crime or knows 
matters they could have beel of it. other than from !he can- 
free. . lcsdonal, cannot rrfise to an- 

h'e:"u h;iu Cuerto or swer props inquiry about such 
Piemikin said Uley had ~ ; l y  howied~e. ' 

know1ed;e sufficient to nmver - 
these q-eslions. Neither we m: 1 cannot agree with the 
.the Grand Jury ns of now v.Ci a rynen t  that it is i m w r . t  
e w  know if they did or a:':. lhzt our Church employe& have 
.The Celeese made by their a privilege from answering 
Iawyc-s was that the k d . ~  r;?- kvlul qucstiom a b u t  &LA 
jwcd ic ~rivilatc because cllt::: zctivity of which L!y h v c  
Caurch employment not a b v e  knowlcdae so that they wiU b v c  
lo ;Y*.cc *QC qwsLio3s. crcdbitity with Uz rnicori5cs - with whom l k y  work. I &ant 

Yany of &c advoe:tr; errher bclicvc that bcc3m h e  
WMflers of UIC two I&;& & k y  crnp!oycor hcre dcsijcce.! 
CL!II~.~I a I ~ ; r l  priccljIe of lh&m%dvc?i '.lay ministers" Lht 
pnriic:e t imi l~r  m *at girm lh6 Giva lhcm any spvi r l  lcgd 
kiowlo.J;la gaiocd in a psict - S ~ ~ U S .  

p:nitr.r.: rclatiax?lip. 1:ie c=:t Intcrrstingly, kh Ihan fivc per 
in [:.is ;.~:e re!usrc! to do $9. She cunl of Puerto Rico waals 
c u r b  :.2vc ~ k c n  scch pas13on in corrrp!ctc iade:,crdccce. Of that 
n.8 ,.- r-..... unatl ccrn.n!acu onlv a ninulc 
m~ rolcasc of thr w n c n  frscliol Scpporl the F;sLhLh'whicS 

*ilrald no: n w  Ire inIcr,~rctcd as  uus an:trchistic wcapaas and 
e:hL:i:.!&:i~;: ony sucl~ >rzcddr.t muAu. Thus. ii h e  two women 
Jcspite al;at 1 w .pcct :u:..e r.-.:~y arc 1ryrn3 to protcci tlicir 
el-iln. Tl.cir c;:iviction of cc;-. crcJib11:ty or U;dr a r a o n  with 
tc:r.:al rllll c ~ c i l s  ~ I C L L ; . . : ~  ihc 1 . u ~ : ~  1lic;ns by rcfcsic:: to 
Cuai:!irsrai L s  LL:~ 1~1, c;.r,-,I. sczrvcr q u e s t i ~ . ~  rclstive IJ CIC 

'I'hc- Wclaen wcrt r-lcs:cd F:\L.V. Iltcy arc. I klicvc, bzic: 
(?!i.r: a 14 pn-c L.:i,ton cf crcdib~lity and rcopccf lor 
I . . . . . .  r ..., , . . , a , -  .,.. t ...- ..-,I .,t-- re- eh., 

be.0 Iticzn$ lo whom wc w e  a 
mir.tl;y. I 

TG lhc extent we support Ibc 
womca in Ihis we destroy our 
minority aLyi?n. . - : 

J a e  6' In his opinid. 
after slating thcrc aro  no 
rr~!igh~5 principles a t  stake. 
e-iprjscs wtut I think is mally 
k d v c d  at prgu 15 and 16 of his 
opinion: . 

*'Perk.;p all &t is being 
arlida!cd and actcd upon by the 
' con tc~dr s  (the wonen) is a 
commo~plcc view among the 
'o~tr' la a'sccial systcm - here 
thc E k ~ . i c  poor among wbdm 
aovats work - thtt onc is being 
a. (ratsr to onc's group il she a 

cooprates with law enfsrcemcnt 
ofiicids." 

I p::ra?ally do not bclievc (and 
never did) that our m i r h t y  to 
minoritis rcquircs IS to too 
buiness with , lhe radical ' and. 
crlmirals who. are always aa 
iolinksfmd percentage of' a 
minority group. During the 
heyday of CCSFI 1 felt wa un- 
wittingly, and real!~ in gcJd bet 
naive faith,' did 'buslncss with 

WmC w p ! ~  and activities in 
minor~ty arocto w h ~  WO:C 
&n;crous and w&o exp'roi'sd not 
only us but lhc m i w t y  wc 
baught lo Idp: 

So h d  did bccomc. b t  
many iu our Church wanted to 
discontinuc such minislics. \Ye 
last ncxk.?;hi? and C1~;-cial 
ru?prt witkim tL.2 Churc!!. The 
Chrreh was 1ojit.g ctcdiUity 
also wilh m M t i c s  who 
rcco~nkcd we and lhcy atex 
Ccing "rtpped. dl". Eopefully 
~ u c b  of :!at b bchind us srtd we 

' havc Icarnd so we can now do 
efiective minisky with ail 
miiioritis a:.d :&t fccl *is in. 
clutos c r i z i i d s  who cxp!oit 
them zed us. 

Uofor:unatdy, the last w;rd 
. hasn't beon 'spoken a t  0.3 

Zxecutivc Co.m:il on this. -re 
will no doaht he discusion on 
conbhui.d en$oyr.leat of the 
womcn and wbzi. if any, of their 
attorney hes  t c  C~SG\ shcui6 
Iceally s r  r?.ora:y pay. M k e s ~  
matters, haweve:, should not 
cloud Ulz r a l  ksuk they rzised 
aed its reso$!ica (corrsct in iny 
judgment) in tk? cwrt. 

- i ani satisfied tkt, wb9e o t  ' 
l i n g  s p i r i b l  znd m~tcrkl. 
comfort to Ulcm ii they zkcd  !or 
i t ,  and a i k i r ~  for clc,mr.r.y. Utc 
Pwiding U&o:> did ra! !:r.ucYc 
' ander b I ~ C I E C : ~ ~ ~  q t a s i ; ~ ~  . . 
within and vtitiw~t cd 
advocate a IegaUy atd. h my 
opinion. a r d i g b f y  indefettible 
position. 











Criminal Court of the City of New York 

...................... ........... PART.. COUNTY OF.. 

Kenneth Cohen m o l d  29255 
I, .......................................... 8 pollee oncer of the Police Department of the 

Cb at 2-9 96th. :it. Cueona, I:.Y. ............................................ . city or NW ~ o r k  have h k ~ n  tram A~nxtw?nt.. 
Barnard Dubin 

pursuant to o search w a m n t  isaued by Hon. ............................... a Judge of the Criminal 

Court ot the Clty of New York the following described property: 

1. One (I) Z i n g  Tong note, fian bathroon. 
2. Cna (I) note fmn to i lo t .  
3. "0 zcnt mceipt. 
4. Gne I Eroun bee. 
5. ono I T-5forn1093. 
6. Or.o I Oal l i s tScs  Lint. 
7. One 1 Suz?oct mater ia l  list, 
8. t=-.ral~o (12) Fiocoa of oanar. 
9. Cicht (0 )  L1iacoa o f  p n x r ,  

10. Euainem c o d e  nnd wmpper. 
11, Oco (I) Xanuel (book). 
12. Three ( 5 )  ? a l l i u t i c o  I'nnunla. 

~ ' C Z ~ Q C O  or nmuols. 
r"cc;:a;;e photo nnd holdor. 

15. V~rioue d a ~ l i u l t m I  bookloto. 
16, Various du.>li-tod. nrt ic lea .  
17, Vnriouo 3.C; Letforhaode and papors. 
18. Loooo Z,\Lfl i h t ~ ~ i n l ~  
19. ollo t1)  r~.cl:at- or ;:XI i b t o r i n l .  
20. Oce 9) r'nckar;o of ? G I  :'aterial, 
21. Cne (1) :'r.cl:a~;o of ? . ' t i  Phtorinl ,  
me nbovo iton9 'o  1 thur 51 vouchored at 714 Pet. Vouchar i 'o  267637 
and 2G7G3. :%3301-ty Clork G 71if1172l. 
22. CCa I tiestctnor Co3y 15?chine 1:d.ol 4C.G. Tnn no noriol  nrz35cr. 
2;. Gno t73 Gosttatnor Color.ChDn~e i.&, l.oCoL 466.1~1.al for tSto ~ M V O  

r'ochine. 
24. h e  (?) Goatotnor Oootcr;rx Icodol 456 coy7 mchino, 4a3 no uor. mt?b. 
25, Ona (1) .;onrs 'c'ypo-mitar iiauual 2 Ibdol ~2i33.526Xl ; ;er ia l  3 

F 4 7 8 w  with block plantfa exto. 
Tho ~bove vouchcrod a t  776 ~ c t .  Vouchor ;# 2C37G3. -%perty Clerlc d 78:,11Sf 
26. One (7) !rC-A lielooding i-'reol. 
27. OEO (I) fu - jn  bullof niainc: preao . v i t h  05zqr die. 
28. 3 8 0  (2) h u l l o t  a i e i s l ~  dioo. 
29. Throe Lpm muld block8 unrl one (I) box. 
30. Cno (3) oot  of moultla with hhndleo. 

Receipt for the above described property wcu: 

0 Given to the person from whom it w u  tnken. 
Check 

% .  One 0 Civcn to the person in whose pascssion it was found- 
. -.. 

0 Left in premises ............................... -, ......................-.. 
Street. County of ..................... where pm~wrty w.lr lound, in abcnsc of 



I) oet: of mulb bandlee. 
6) boxes contalniog xwloadin~ dioa nnd 3Cfhrae) dime 

33, Siva ( boror coatainina eholl ho1dm-n RC%q. 
34. Cno yf : ~ q n  relonJI~: mala wiPb born nnd fianol. 

i 
35. Lne I Zeo c@lt inff  pot :or Iondo 
36. Cno I) mot knn lee& wt, 

S. Sotm (4) boxon of hoi.con b U l e t  lube. 
I) b o ~  contaicirs md&ln~: c ~ c o  luSo UL,, 
1) bottle of hot.fUtt~ cnuo sic* lube. 
1) rsf oadbla,- trq. 

42, Tbme (3) Iced lccmts. 
43. Cna (I) w e t , a m  of Gk-nto ocala aenmrraa, 
44, h e  (1) bmnu >laid udtciwcr r.ntJced r-53. 
L'ho nbovr, it033 26 ti.su *: '14 Vouc!!ornd at 114 2ct. Voaaor 
:itxabsr 'a 367640 nnd 2CI7fA1. 
45. Cno (1) 30 eal, i1;7 tistla r)rrl.(.:or :-' f i l n d )  wr::ad 1:Sj. 
4.6, Cilie (9) 53 Cal. t i rehentor 11U55V I'nrkcd IIW. 
47. C'no (I j a5 ci\l. :.pucRe ;.ran(nor .! Silecl) trrazkod f:SS. 
4& 'fwm (2 )  72 Ga. i'aerzbor~ C l L p  rod bolt net. 2:aciol 

oekod  (Ci? wiCh 22% Inch 13arr02, 
Above lt-.*-~ v'e 45 thrU 43 ~ i a c h n m d  114 i'ct. vou&tr .; Z7W2 

1 56. D s  5ox cant. 50 ~n>d~. t . l  9 ro c t ~ ~  CZ.W %*.d I-. 

I . Cno full box con% 33 -1 ~PI~ZCLI) m v h t  .Yc?. 
w. Cne nrll box ct,loo, 04 nac. turl)ri=d mnao aark%l .CI--10. 

ti r). Cno full bor coat, 47 52 c n l  o?;l;acl. nt,rk:koA, :-I?. 1 . Cno fUl  bo:r eon%. 357 Ihr. Ctans. marto4 ih l r l .  ; i! 
1 

61. Gno ful \>ox coot. 337 r : - ~ .  cfry:;. sm-ked Fb I? ,  
62. On0 box oont. 52 nuto ~1 13 ctpoo. cv~r.znd %la. 
6.3. imo box en!lz, :O ny,l un.,rir:c.-1 c n ~ o n  i'.iked :'-IC,. i 

I 

iso 'box coct. 357 I?SF o r  .'a 021- Sulltnrt rnrteci io-1FJm / (ua bcx 01 M bttl1.t~ c.:rk& 11-17. ! 
cog N l  box of 357 or 3.0 apl .  bu..:efa o.xrkod YiiI3. 

C7. Cns full box cont, .'jO Cp cnl .  CSTQO, a~rkcd 1..-1?. 
9. Onn niZl \mx cant. '*a 3pl m~rice'1 @a mrked Y?ZO, 
69. Coo fu l l  baz cont. 9 m mtrked i b e 7 3 ,  

i 73. Cna ,Cull >ox nuto -5. p r i n h :  caooa I~arlced i"42r 
71. CGO f . 2 ~  LOX c m t .  3 =a 1 ~ - o r  and uuprhua woee B ~ M  Z-3. 
72. CEO mil box 357 c t ~ ; c ~ .  anrked s f f a .  

c, * !  i 
, . ~4 ,o  full .box 44 or 45 prlcore ~ z r k e d  ..-.-5. 

74, (ice $31 box cone, 357 c a ~  un;?ripc~ ~ 3 i - z ~  ~ t r k o d  1 ~ 2 6 .  i : 11 15. ml box w m'I: CC~L". aQzzod )-*. . Cno i r i t l  box coat, d b  rfi~ c t ~ o n .  v.aarkod :-28. 
j I 

37, m u  hoz COZC. ??n ctcae. ms~rod 1 ' 4 9 .  
I 

I/ 73. ijro mi a o ~  rrnt, w anto : m i r t ~  :LS. 
73. Cao n111 b x  cnnt, 357 Ehn. otcoa, ~ - . r l : ~ d  i'F31. I fa. L ~ O  m l  b o ~  cone. 45 .'.(;li bullec~ zirkf%t i i j 2 .  
GI. Cyie 'box cant. 0') (L5 cut0 atron. mrkel !*rj.3. 

I E& 
(:nu flll 'box cone, W enzbho cf  7.o. zir~*!:cd r-p. I 

! 
, 03, c:no ,%ll box cone, 45 n w o  un?-ir.-.aa c'..siann . mslrod . 1%35. I . .. 

(311. (.at. Pull box raw. att:oe. cr.rkct1 ;&?ti, ;I ~ 5 .  t no -X box #>I i h g .  ctt;ou. ~3ntet3 Y-37. 
,i =..:i.21;iu ..-. G: ?&G;* .-.*.--.-- - .. ;..&?LC, 

li : i j.1 i 



86. beice loathor alroaldor Oolstar marked tc38. 
87. One f m  lnatbar n b u l d s r  holntac morktd Pi-39. 
00. G i r  30 cnl carbine alQa vith 30 round@ ia each rarkod 

rr90 t o  K d 5 .  
89. c?ne W caL. c.wbine CUP 7 5  rounds markad Kc46. 
90, Cna 1 2  ea c l i p  w i t h  3 12 go Itam, Bhot eltella -16 e.:nd f 4 7 .  i 
33. Lba 45 -1 c l i p  t o  45 -1 o ~ a c b  :ham ;rut0 rifle with 25 : 

rouldo cmkad rA8. 
92. E5p2t IZILunue i.:om xjr;,haa 8G ahot, 

I 
Above l tone  - o 49 t o  92 wqakemb at 174 i'bt. Youchor P's  2 G W 3 ,  
2676449 E67Ub5. nod S70r6. 
93. Lha 'z'lsntio kag cont. i'spe Pra~;y~ba. 
fjp, One platotio bsg cost. G3096r mFnq crrps. 
35. ~ k e  ~ l n s t 3 . 0  bet; mat. sbeortml ulr?ls. 
76 .  Cine p lant ie  b~ Conto L b l  Slosh 3U;brir 

i 
W. the p1t:atio ?PQ mat. Aaaartcrd urlat watchen. 
93. Cae p l ~ f t i o  ~ n ~ ? t a i n o r  cont~inl!Ig w h i t 0  powor. 

I 
99. clre pIr t%tie  b . ? ~  writ. asmrtcd ratcPas. i 
100. 2ns ?3nstia 3 n ~  cont. d E s t ; l  ~ e o o .  i 
I C I .  tin5 plalt , ic btq cn:~t. :'iw :ong bnlls. I 
IC2. Ccs p ln r t i o  cost. 213% i ' a ; ? ~  bella. 

1 IC3. Cna plnot io  b q  C m t .  f f i l i ta tg  Yjmrela. 
I ICY+, ;:me 32aotio k y  WnE. PJamary 'iaatorom 

105. Cna p1::stfo bng cant. a I:bdwritton soto. 

i 
i 

I9W. Lno p h r t i o  beg cont. buttwy c~r-oceors .  
) 107. Gno plao';ic b g  cont;. alliizotor c l ips .  
'IW. i.r;e plr.n:io 3 n ~  cant, 6saotctd W i m ? r r  

i I 
i ~ m .  3133ti0 D:B =.to ~ O O F * . C I  .WJ:,PS. ( D C ~ V O .  0;10vj. ! 

I 

I 

110. (he ylr.13tic hng aont. e:~sorted tzrpo. . 
??I, Lne p l ~ n t i a  b3!: coat. L'rirrtod :.itoraruM. ! 
112, fno olast ic  b.y; ccr:&t. i ~ i z t e d  note. 
113. Cne p l e t t i o  baq cont. snroeod tattories and holdera. I 

I 

114, iine ?lt;?tfc hcrg coct. :iaud toola. 
I 115. i ne c'lnotic b:.s; coat, errriortcd )bipce. i 

41C.. h e  p l u s t i o  Iwif w 3 C .  ncrcrortcd e q x y  baxoo. 
117. Cns p1:lst.i~ b31: w ~ t .  ~ n c o r t m l  tubaat of e3o.v clue. 

' '112. ;he n i n n t i c  b q j  cont. oaol>rttxJ dinwieoa.  1 I,?. :.Lnot%c b w  cant. ~oo<ina m-as p0at01. 
I 

I 

lrX. Cne piont ic  I n 6  c ~ z t .  srroortni: t.lcars. 
129. f,ao p1ni:ti.o be5 c6r.t. asnertod tooln. 
122. '..W :~1;1:lt bm.3 cont. mi3ry~I ~lt~i:t;$0 ~ O i n U e ~  
123. (%a I::netio baa cast. ?n;Ier ~371 t&dq  Bubber bands. 
124. t'ne plnntio bag c3nt. two nortable mbLoe. 
125, i ~ e  plaat ia  bvj eont. a tnetar. 
qZ6. (39 p l a ~ t i c  bn;: ccnt. ooo3sr tuSd.ng. 
727, CDO =)Lt:fit;ic b n ~  conto two boxen oZ rur.nr. I 
I=, Cno a1nnki.o 8m; cant. coppor tubln~ ond Outtore i 
IZ9. Cna batclo cont. b x q  c lennir i  8 0 l ~ ~ n b 0  
1'9. (.he 3Lnozic h:q cnnt. ~nco~ lr . cooua  horCWar8. 

I 
131. m e  ..ltrstic b c ~  cont. t ~ 9  iatorco% unite. i 
132. C'3e a lna t io  b n ~  ccnt. dny/al+t olectria ttler. I 
133. T t a  plctatio %+:a cont. C i s p d c e  kit. ! 
19. C.ns + l n d t l o  b n ~  cont, plnnt ia  bat$ 02 -pa. I 

Gco ?l,nstio b q  cont. nn:;utrtnd tools. 
t w o  boxnn aont Yb i)ro>oae t.mkn. I 

i ae  plj-.tood work table  w i t 3  d r i l l  p r a ~ s  C, Ylco S f i w 0 c f . d  , 



adrireeeamph Gm?ho type o l d ~ o  350 I"'achiae, I 
Cne C~cndex  rieg -6 xaclrino, ofi UY, ~ o c i o ~  W?O ;;-::'3. 1 
Cne Blnek and 2 3 9 e k a r  Cia maw. 
One work S ~ O D  drill, ! ~ i l s h o v  !cn W i l l ,  code]. 1V0. I 
QtentJI LAW plnotia b a ~ ~ l  containing dXedaed incencli~zy IPix,' 
Ono ~ l n n o  bott le  cont. unhm Liqlf4. 
One 'box aseortml debria. I 
c;me box of blttcexion. 
fho  Xdttle k ? l ~ h  Via@. 

I 
I 

Gne riin~or slectrio motor -1' 73?WE6* 
C m  31rtstio t r ~  cont. mckal fueLn b aaeo&ed pc~,9p11,llar~-~lia, 
.%e acmen, 
Cne ulnatic bar cant. Zm.mnte  o f  -fa* votcb, 9 MI(: I 

bat t td~ ,  photo f3u3h bulb wit11  moe:, ncd black ulrect attncli- 
e d u e c d  with clue taps. 
Ck*  ;rla&io brq: car,tRinln~ PUB dacnls, ? i a o m  of crinlfiD(S 
m$c!dna, ~ i e c s  of  q o p l s n n ,  piaca of blood at:rir.ud ~ l * : n n ,  
c?i?nSmtcd dic1 t%m Voltr.otcr. 
Oas 7 louf i c  b~: oont. frrr:mnta of p i p e  ni>p:a nnO cap anen, 
tr?rt f ; tzrr  pieces netrj dincn. 
One ~ l \ m t b  buy, ~ n t .  rs;~x?nto o f  anvar nvct %ripe. 
Lbo ?l:bscIa b~tl. cnat, tnnmnto o f  oloth nnd fibre raL'ntl31. 
One plsatic  b c ? ~  c3r.t. m::uente yoL1rm rabbcr glnytos ('.'.over , 
CsLe pxnntio bnr; c ~ t .  VRE~OW lu:!;tSa Of t h h  i?f(iCO *it%, 
a rdtmr cork, one mprFz,- clorhsa pin, one urict 
wntc!, am: 7 vol* blttexy nuolm'olod sa t i t o  tillof , oco .\I;-'I 
photo i l n s b  bd.5. 
On6 plz i t ia  bn!t ocnt. iol$ t i : r  pnn, t t a  d r i l l  Sifn,  yallow 
h , d l o d  scmwL-L~or, a h  Sssca3nJr.Jo.l toais, on3 n:;Amo bo*. 
Cno plnotie mat.ana 1miCerrtUiad part-iul Zf:;~er. 
Cnu plas t ic  b.-s c m t .  50 nrup;)OFa fmd h t l a ~  ; ' O W O ~  kTfn~r 
-%&to 3 031976AT. 

?a. &atj nna gi~aqtit~ &ntninerar 
463. Cno ~zccnl csntainer, 
l C 4 .  Cno c?nl:m~rd comninsr, 
1165. Lhe 7lantia b@ cant, ono ~ n ~ m l e  of 5.marLtr, :tern Rtlr !a 

.::'war .rima~ &ns%ito ?A 031576~2 (2 i s~ lcr  takou ,CNn U"z;ln 
ot ick) .  

ICG. C 3 m  p h n t i c  bnq cone. ono s nmle QIC dg?~~P; i ta  SFOR f . t h s  COWCIJ 
)'rimor r:.m&aito .'w 57tiG(:'dnp. tnkan f m m  Ij":4;:n s t i ok )  

'Php,i4x,v~ its!:* +'a 93 thn, 166 nn, v~uchcmd nt; tke 114 Pet. on i 
foa::.::*nra /;'&/KQ?!d&!J&6 #%f598&3 thru tf,53X? onQ PEG5S';a ttux i $$ifJ;q$h/ ;CC.'jL'U 3 
7 ~ 7 .  I;- 8 x c y  w a r  borne. 
ICS. C U ~  ~:nam b o ~ i w  =do box. 1 : 
169. h e  ear- bate 
l p 7 .  5.3 mlln of tn?e. 1 :  
179. Six  p1it:rtio cnntninem ani1 fumela. I 

172. Cne e.*enaion cord. 
173. Cn8 m C  ruhhar hale. 

i . 
I?*. h.3 tab10 lcr%:s. 
175. Ceo i c e  cbeot c3r.t. neaortod debria. 

i ! 1 I 
17G, i.ae box cant. ns'c,riar 
177. IWoa aetrrl patce. 

' Ii'U. 1 ' t o  f oldLnr, bod blood etafood rutcrone. 
t C:.;iZIT;U:-J Gi frAE; 50 



4-. Cno black bae: aaul. rrsaottad toole & h m l w t u w .  
la, P*o Smhn ta'bbe. 
181, Cae mad door. . . 
782. s o  particia1 rd.2 pti%tl?Aana. 
?WJ. frfx pnxS# ful l  boxno of du~l ic i i tere  it&. 
184, the li.5. :orrnble telwLsion aet, 
185. Two boxwe of atonsilo, 
'I%, Gfie l i ~ r o x  alo& radio. I ! 
l87e a l ~ i - :  ~f O!Ur~bar 
1C8. Cna 1)usZr~p hl;. 

1 ;  
?f;9, C,?B black btl: CO*. that) m p t y  borne. 
1W. k~ F~r~rturt i tor tablor 
lf)l. ?our 2L3ces of bxoobstnind wood. i !  
1%. Caa nou;ed bz?'; cent. Oki-ao Btove Inrobe, on0 block herot, : 

two *ltz&r.to tbvm, a&@ ;u~&npa Qp-7 ; > ~ : . : c F ,  0110 p:?iz 
I 

! elof  h Quvea, o ~ e  phir rdbiref IJloveo, one vcod .cl 
ne'iA3 ktir co*. 

133, Z w e  t z , . ~ l X  zlocoe o f  plantar b o n d  confniniap, blao8otci no.: 
aSo-e itcjin i167 t c  193 vouobrrd at l?& kt. raucker .='a 333354 ! 
t'k- 333057. 
7C4. Cne '3mw ~r(ta*j.al EDSW cant. Wonw one kofn. I I ! 

395. C3e piece of %'Ate yapsr with mitci  on It. I 

kbvvw iS-9 ;re m 19-135 ~0aC3erecl at 174 ~ e t .  'Jouchor +' 355053 1 , i 
! 





February 28, 1 982 

full responslbll l t y  for the bamblngs which have 
Inanefa1 sector of Wall S t r ee t  on Sunday, Feb. -28, 1982. 

armed a t t a ck  against-yank1 I m p u i a l l s t  carporatlons and l n s t l t u -  

to the l a t e s t  

ur homeland: t o  culminate the conlzatlon of Puerto Rlco by ab- 

Rlcan nat lonal t ty  forced to abandon our I 
t 

nd s u n l v s  1n the *etched slms ard ghetbes 
w h a t  statebod wally slgnlffed far the Punto Rlcan I 

ple. Ye arm living I t .  Statabed tar h e r t o  RIco oleom g-cide, 
I s  a 11te of serrltuds t o  the lntevets o f  r ptoflt hrtngry, paras l t l c  
~ l t y ,  the total destruction of  arr Identl ty,  18 f tg~g@,  ~ 8 1 u e t .  
l oml l t y ,  c u l t a n  and the plondw .and mpe a0 our land and natural 
wur t  tor th benefit of the yenkt cap1t lJ ls ts .  TMs ro mat rAd 
1 reslot. h a r t 0  Rlco I s  not rrnr ire? will'be part o f  tho 1),S.A. 
to Rlco Imlongs to the PumW Mcan peaple. Thls wa will Yefend 
f lght  f o r  unttl victory o? d a t h ,  
Tha FAU wlthas te b l n g  to  t4e at-tarr o f  tba people o f  hrsrta 
a. t he  &It& States and the werld tha l a b n o  trm-ant t h r t  our 

maradar md m a b a n  o f  our o ~ m l t a t l o n ,  the € h e n  hearto 
car Lopez R l v m  ,. Lucy Rodriguez, Carlos 

dre T o m s ,  Luis b r a  ,Allcla Rodrlgarar, Ricardo 

- . .  

EXHIBIT A 



page 2 

- .  -- : . . m i s  
i&i;ded tb sttwting o f  i b a l l e t  'into th cet11 o f  LUIS msa a d  
denial o f  d l c a l  r t ten t lon  for Huydse Torres a w n  uhn  p l s o n  

ad t)# -pass1 b l l  l t y  o f  her  h v l  rog an car1 y shge  o f  
qna1 and l~Qmat lona1  eorrpelgn whlch mob11 lzed 
and rellglcats orgonlrotioru, warkers, studants 
pressurd. tb yank1 gwerment and I t s  bureau 

mt been rt temlad to. 
n w111 not tolorete any p h y s l c ~ l  o r  mentdl ham : 

eB ta go unar~m)&rd.  YO d-nd t b y  ba treated as 
tatad by the 6mwa Convention a d  the Unltod 

t l o m  Protocols concarnlng freedma t1ghQ a m  In mn of 1 

rat ion. We hold the ~ s n t t  c a p l t r l l s t  class and the sadtstle .' 
ts who  operate and campose I t s  reprasslve tween responsibla Ibr 
hm whlch may befal l  our PPlmners o f  Jar, Pal i t i c e 1  Wmners 

y a t t a c k  afmed a t  crrrshlng and rtpresolng the l e i l t l m t e  
trsplrat lons of our pmpl a for Indopndcnce and soclallsol. This 1s not 
an mpty boast. Yank1 lmperlallsa we11 know that  her to  RIcan 
R ~ o l u t l o n u r l  es do not bluff. T h y  have f e l t  our bu l le ts  ayt  .smelled i 

. tb--ador of aur dynaalte fraar Coloml Rlggs, to B l a l r  House, t)n 
I 

attack on Congress, tho Anglers Club, Sabana Sea. 
The Pn~ttO Rtcrn struggle for lftdependtneii and saclal lsa I s  part 

o f  the rettolutlotl of tho oppressad and axplolted masses o f  b t l n  
Ik#rlco against the ollgarchles, c a p l t a l l a  and fsparlal Ism, I t  1s 

, also part of the 1ntamationol wwhlng class r u o l u t l o n  tor tho des- 
apltallsm a d  the coftstructlon a t  ~ t a l t a n .  As revolution- 

re unltbd with the o p ~ s d  and enploltgd masses o f  *& 
e l m r t y  rrrrdarstan8 *t tb m b  pragmsrlue govern- 
$8 whlch aro being -1dd by brx is t - les r in ls t  prlnclples 

ting r t o e l a l l s t  m c l d y .  free o f  class exploltotlon. 
we re3ect tbe Rypocrlt lar l  'supportm and ' t o l l -  

I c rn  Indeped-B exp~essed by the c a p l h l l t t  
otuolr and Has9to. Uhl l  e supporting Indepmdance 

ruela blatantly s t m q t h a t  the hand o f  tlte 
tYrannlcal and fascist h e r  reghe I n  E l  Salvador by pmvtdlng 
pal l t l c a l  md a r t e ~ l a l  support fw the but81 and cowardly asur ln -  
atton of thousands o f  Salva&reaa peaple. As an a l l y  o f  the p n k i  
l a ~ f a l l ~ t ~  I n  salntalnlnq the o log~rehy  in  p o w  In  El Salvador 

ghwmmt of Vuiezwla i s  puflty o f  mr4gla& g ~ n o c l d ~ *  ~t 1s 
n w a r  Irrcmaslng rggmsslvo role r o  protector and en- 
tha yanH laperla1 1s- plms to oxprnd and tonsel ?date 
In the Carl bboon and Csnt?al ke r l ca .  In  raturn the U.S. 

a9md 0 q u l p  the Venezuelan army c*th madam -pons. p r a l d e  
lmm and capital f o r  the aonmlc apmnslon o f  the Venazurlan up(-. 

> .  

. - 
C - -, 
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'. a 1  fats, ad a1 low there top l ta l l s t s  access t o  neu lerkets ftw I t s  
' pmdPltts. VemzuaIr m i l d  be actlag as e sub-lrpperlallst I n  
.' kaoping ul t h  tha plans of the t r l l a t e n l  Cosatsslon. It rswrtd be- 
* coma acre a t  tha graardlons of Tr l l o t e rp lm  In b t l n  kawlco, M- 
, p s l a l * l y  In th Camlbrn and Cmtrol k m l e a  , rrp.ulng the po~llrr 
.i ,aW rwoktleaary mamenu - 4 m l l y  @ protetlq the 1n-ts 
: of t~potta' l  lsa. 
;i , Tk h l r l u n  povornmt also c l o l r r  t o  su+rt At8v.W R l u n  Id-- 
; Oonca. It bs evon hosttad an tnte?nattorurl cbnfmme. l n  mlldcrr l ty  
,: *&:+A Worto R l c a ~ ~ l n d e p ~ e .  f h l a  W $ e  as ' r ) e ~ e r r d a r  o f  tRo o-sd' 
. .ls 8 fane. It 1s a eww for ttao -st brutal a d  O ~ S O ~ V W  mp101- 
. t i t l o n  o f  the I~povw1rhed malcarr msaes by the #errltan o1lNrchy 
::and. yankt ~ t l a l  lsa. Llke l a  O %lwede+ tbusarrdn o f  Wanlean wrltdlrs, 
:.psrunts, t t u d a t s ,  professionalr, and r a r a l u t l o ~ t i e s  hive biten 
:: u c a s s ~ ~ t o d  or " d 1 t o p ~ r s d a  by tb r a ~ ~ s l v o  rger~ctw and the 

'i d g h t  w l ~ g  death rquadr osgatlized a d  flmrrcd by tho W l t o n  r u q 1 ~  
~ . c l o u .  In Halco law and osdw ts .maln ta lW througb aosastmtlo~, 
': terror and torturr. th taw i ~ t a ~ l t  o f  ngJI1cabs ptogwnslwe fwetqn 
.., m l l c y  1s nothing bu t  r aa~wour  t o  sssk r ~ e s e l m  rt;haw and to 

sowe as 8 stabl l lz lng fwee in ths a-8 a g l n s t  the ~8m'lar and 
' twolut lonory a ~ v w n t s  so that  t h y  do mat rarllog t o  Par tb thr lef t .  

In the strategy of the lmperlatlote t t  appa+a a8 tk nice guy while 
the U S .  l o  the bad, 

Qlr rtrugplo fw pmtlonol l l b r o t l e n  do& net nd t h l s  ' ro t ldo r l tp  
fma oprtdota~a, twturerrr or;d mpf otters. m y  are the emales o f  
*reQolP lovtng ~ # p l o  averyrhsre. Ye do reot nml tu prostitute ow 
~ o l l t t c a ' l  prlrtt lplos t o  ga1n tM m r a r j t  srrpm+t af w class' 
s~astos who wQtt eoeatwlly betray QS rt9rsrr rre ao lowgar bsa8flt them 
o r  SQWI t hc l r  tn taest t .  

To our Chkano-)hxteabo, Black and mttv+herlean h t A a r s  a d  
Ftstws rrho u s  f lghtlng altHrr tho yorrlr-l federal s ta te  to ragaln 
the lands and tc+rltwy sa lon  trare tha wo mtmd our despett 8rrC 
m s t  slncwe rwo1utlonrry oolldPr4ty. T h  F A U  supports tho ruunl- 
fqcation o f  th Chleano-Plleulcam lads I n  the Swthwest and Wst 
ultk Razico and the craatfon o f  a mn-allgnod and soel81 1st ¶Wxlca; 
the lagltl lpate rlga of Blut pmple to tha lard arm i n  the South 

tha trmttaa o t  the natlatr o f  Rar Afbtco: and tha r1gM of the 
Ihtlre-ker4can p a o p l u '  and mtlmr t o  recapture thotr  occupted ~~~~- far w tkms 1s h t y  one m d ?  a d  ok?rgg?a, awl one 
amY: ~ n n k l  lapelrlism. In the oplr i t  of plaletorlan lntgmatlorul-  

the FIO# w l l l  cmtrfbuta to tha dat-tlon a t  the l m p ~ ~ l u l l t t  
mnk* fedoral 8ata by waglnq a r w d  stnrqgl r anti1 Purrto Rfca 
1% *m of yank1 tolonlol lsa and lmtarf'mrnca. 

TQ t h ~  8labck t m M a  f lghtsrr  who are pmsrntly rae4r)ng 
the f u l l  uetght o f  the p a t i  rrpreirlve achlmry a d  uho are 
hlng W l a d  and D r M  by tmm agmts ol death. -)arr-rtnngth. .. . 

. - . -. 
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age and d l1  to f l g h t  bo lnsplred us. We s u p ~ f t  9rn f igh t  
nst the colonial enslevenont o f  p u t  people and f o r  H e w  A4rlco 
w are as cortaln 8 t  .tho I nev l tab l l i t y  o f  your v ic tory  8s w 

press out t o l l du r i t y  with tb t h m  tmrth- 
icans capturdd In th Brlnkq m.prp?jatIon. By l l n k h g  up .  
your Black coarades and mMtq t he i r  struggle you? o m  ybu 

practjce tho t m l n l s t  p+9mlple which states thst 
o f  the wotklw, class a d  9I19 advanced sectors In th 

1st eountries'.ls to actlwoly assbt=:,srrd fight. tbr the 
p i m p s ,  m salute J ~ U  f o r  y ~ u r  

b t a l  euamlttnwnt to mtlona1 llbseatlon 
. warking elass rerral utjon. . . 

dance and melelfsar f o r  herto Wlca dl1 not 
ny sacrltlcos. But tke memy I s  mt 1n- ! +  

raga,  Cube end ROW E l  Salvador heve proven 
w l l l l  do eas~ythlng p ? s i b l e  to dwtrey our 

orgrnfzatims and a t a h  the aspIratiens o f  ow poaple 
ir stra t m ~ ~  egat mt the Idspemtenee mvmnt f s : 

r: on' the o m  kRd thay #I11 t?y to use thelr legal rud judlctal 
aremt lnta cmr t s  and awy f h a  the streets; 

w i l l  use v l e l ~  to Intlaldmte, pav0ka, QrlgMerrn 
k mrk, placing us i i ~  a datenslve positIan In . It i d  I n  t h i s  coataxt tet ua skautd soe 

RS 6f Carl as Wosarle PamtoJas; Carlos 
Intmn Flalld; th *me up o f  Jorge 
t i o m  o f  iir#l& b ~ 1 0  FLamd~, ~ P ~ O S  . . 
trez w i s t o b l  . nPe taklng o f  the core oU 

la  .Bosbn, the I rn lwmask o f  tb yank1 
nlng the s W n f %  o t d k e  a t  .the i h l v ~ ~ t y  

at tmpts  a t  f b r e l ~  our struggle @ tab place .- 

ppa~atus of eho lanpaiallsts. This mnwaur I s  
us and p l n  a I n  a p~sl t ian  there tca rcecogatica 

and a l l  bottles taka place urrdgt corditions 
ee t h s e  ~4rgmstal~tas w9 can only lore. Ya 

e bat t ler  and wRwe they ape to take plrca mt 

It . l s  to rcracad e a t  ba galdad by the straw 
er mr. I n  Order tO do t h l s  we mst h 1 I d  orgonl- 

cannot destroy buauso 1t cannot se+ t h .  
ry arganlzation wlth c lo rdes t l~e  rt+mturas, 

s o f  mrk a n  l a  8 posltdon to  mM1lzo and orgo* 
rt the saae t h e  wage rmd stmgele. thaw Inda- 

lorn mrklng wlthln the CrmrraL: of barrg.els 
ay hare t r l t h  In the s y s t c ,  or kcaus8 they fed 

cMldltlons am not r4ght f o r  th ctandartlm mganlut4on o r  
. - . - -, 
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% a q  c=ier.=rl iegeces s?eb< cf 2 ;&s-ise as ~7 ===e==i -~e  
ze*ce t= ZsiL <isc=ver> by the ssozy .  Z c w ~ o e = ,  = - z = ~ z c s i y  
-,,.-i p-s -r.---=-,. =.-a ==9=iC c=2cef-2cz 24 2 ~ i s ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ e ,  e .  . , . .I- . 
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z-- ,,- hr=, as 3 SEC;L-~ !ssLdie=) . 

Zb-e is no qaesc>=n <?at w h a t  s;le pec?le  say &czt a sr=-.zi:. 
j eha~ la= ' ,  e==. being l i l r ~ l y  f3 zisle3C slss = n e t s  I=ie=Cs 
is a &-qe staremen:; hawever, &sccises are a r.ec=ssi=y f=r 
L=~=-at qesa-ives a d ,  as 2ar as cnel s fzien5.s aas e==c.cp--~.e2, 
*bey ~ f i l  be .taken ih-= of by l d o s ~  people whose %ask 1~ is 
ts &il.ize b3fx3. 

!taking 9acZ use of a d i s ~ & s e  is as esssztizl , as . %be zms t= r l z~  
02 ~ r - 5 ~ e  te=hiqzes t z C  r? iz2iviC-all s ; c l ~ + ~ c a l  ;r=?z=a=ic~. . .  
'20 70se zs 2 :  a irx-c, C-EIX , c ~ + z ~ c ,  fezzpecis, 
etc .  h t s  t u t  cnr reqvezernen=: 5-ie t i s y 2 s e  zcsz  be c s ~ a % i e  
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DECLARACION DE JUAN ANTONIO CORRETJER, SECRETARIO GENERAL DE , . 

LA LIGA SOCIALISTA PUERTORRIQUENA, ANTE EL'COMITE DE DES- 
1 

1 

. . 
COLONIZACION DE LAS NACIONES UNIDAS, EL 31 DE AGOSTO IIE 1978. 

. . 
i . .. 
.'!. 

. . : ' 5 

LA LIGA SOCIALISTA PUERTORRIQUENA lamenta verse obligada 
a comparecer, separada de las otras organizaciones patrigticas, 
ante este cornit&. La carga de conciencia patridtica y revo- 
lucionaria y-de deber fraterno que la obliga, se harg notable . . --,. " 

segdn expongamos nuesfro punto de vista. 
LA LIGA SOCIALISTA PUERTORRIQUENA es una 0r~anizaci.05 

' 

autgnt icamente independiente en su pensamiento y su ac tividad . 
Evidentemente en ninguna otra de las organizaciones fraternales 

< .  - -  
esta conciencia he si es tan determiiriiite de sus ejecutorias'. 
Fundada en enero de 1964, en su torts historia ha asimilado 
experiencias que han necesariamente de jado' huellas en su manera $1; . 

. - . . 
de pensar y actuar. Valga decir, para solo un e jemplo, que en 

- +>-., . 1, 

1969 la totalidad de su ~omit; Central fue detenido*'y en julio $ 
1 .  ' 
: . j. . 

de 1970 en medio el ardor de la grim huelga contra .la General . r, . _ 
h G. 

Electric se atento/ contra la vida de su Secretario General y ,:\I. 

-. . P 
de su esposa. No hay queja. Los jefes somos pararrayos. Fue 3 . .? 
una gran experiencia. Aprendimos .a bati~os.~solos; y el ridfcu- . .. ;' . 
lo grito triunfal del FBI proclamando la dispersi& de la LIGA :,$ 

,i4$ 
SOCIALISTA se redujo simplemente a esor ridicule. Hoy, la '-:;% 

/ .;* .'. .L LIGA SOCIALISTA es una organizacion rnucho m6s fuerte que en- .;$ 
. p,: 

. . tonces. . 

Entre las experiencias aprovechadas y que pesa de manera '. 
muy especial sobre nuestra conciencia est; la larga y fecunda t 

F 
meditaciin que en 10s pasados seis aEos ha ocupado nuestro pen- 
samiento. Es anterior a esos &os en la persona que habla; pues c 

sobre 41 ha llovido todo el agobio del imperialismo, la opresidn 
national y el yugo de clase, de la manera especial en que lo ha 
tenido que resistir un puertorriquefio de su edad y militancia. 
El cuadro de personas jkenes que lo rodean y sostienen aprovechan 
bien esa ezperiencia y la enriquecen con su inteligente y valerosa 
manera de ver el mundo en que vivimos. 

A lo que voy e s  a mencionar el hecho abominable qua es raiz 
de lo qua nos trae hoy ante este comite': la Guerra entre EspaRa 



BEFORE THE UNITED NATIONS' COMMITTEE ON DECOLONI- 

ZATION (COMMITTEE OF 24) ; AUGUST, 1978. 
. . 

Honorable Delegates:  . . ' 

,,. ; 

tJ, 
I would l i k e  t o  t a k e  t h i s  oppor tun i ty  t o  thank you on behalf  

!-: . - 
* - - . - . .  

of our o rgan iza t ion ,  t h e  ~ o v i m i e n t o  de Liberaci6n Naci o n a l  (M.L.N. ) $, .. . + 3 2. ..-- .. ,. '.' 
f o r  g iv ing  u s  t h e  oppor tuni ty  t o  come, before  this augus t  body, t o  . .  

- - 
p u t  f o r t h  t h e  c o n d i t i b n s  of t h e  Puer to  Ricans i n  t h e  U.S. and t h e i r  '- 

. .. - - 
r e l a t i o n s h i p  t o  t h e  ques t ion  on your  agenda todai-- . ... the - .  c o l o n i a l  

case of ~ u e r t o  Rico. The M.L.N. i s  a Puer to  Rican and Chicano- 

Mexicano o rgan iza t ion  founded i n  the  United S t a t e s  abou t  a year  ago 

and which advances t h e  p r i n c i p l e  of non-par t ic ipa t ion  i n  the colon- 
. . 

i a l  e l e c t o r a l  process ,  t h e  need f o r  clear and revo lu t ionary  p o l i t i c s  

i n  Puerto Rico, the need f o r  t h e  emergence of a National  L ibe ra t ion  

Front  t o  b u i l d  u n i t y  among independence f o r c e s ,  and t h e  c r e a t i o n  of 

an  a n t i - i m p e r i a l i s t  movement i n  the U.S, - The  M.L.N. has mandated m e  ,., 

t o  put  i n t o  p e r s p e c t i v e  be fo re  &is honorable body, t h e  dismal, 

wretched, and oppress ive  cond i t ions  which t h e  Puerto Rican people 
. 
.=. 

2.; 
3, 

have t o  d a i l y  l i v e  w i t h i n  t h e  e n t r a i l s  of t h e  monster, as t h e  g r e a t  
:! ., . . . 

a p o s t l e  of Cuban freedom, JOS/ ~ a r t i ,  c a l l e d  t h e  United S t a t e s  more 

than  one hundred yea r s  ago; and how t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  has  i t s  fons  or igo ' .  
-? 

i n  t h e  very i m p e r i a l i s t  domination of  our  homeland. 3 
:j 
'3 . . 

The migra t ion  of Puer to  Ricans t o  t h e  United S t a t e s  is an unique:: 
4 

chapter  i n  t h e  anna l s  of U.S .  immigration, There are s e v e r a l  r easons :  

f o r  this: first ,  t h e  Puer to  Rican migra t ion  has  t o  be understood f n  

t h e  context  of an i m p e r i a l i s t  power's a t tempt  t o  a n n i h i l d t e  a s u b j e c t  

People's n a t i o n a l  i d e n t i t y ;  second, It has  t o  be understood a s  a p l a n '  



' to salvage and to prolong the colonial hegemony over those peoples-- 

the Puerto Rican migration has served as a safety-valve for the 

island's chronic unemployment rate which runs as high as 45%; third, 

it has to be understood as a forced migration of a people in order 

to acquire their labor for U.S. monopoly capital (It should be noted, 

that hundreds -'of thousands of Puerto Ricans , excluded from their 
lands due to an all out attempt, during the first three decades of- 

- -- 
U.S. domination over the island, to transfer it into a sugar emporium, 

had no alternative but to make the journey northwards during, and, 

after the Second World War to fill the jobs no one else wanted. This 

pattern has not ceased, particularly, as far as the agricultural 

workers are concerned; today there are more than 50,000 Puerto Rican 

farm workers in the U.S. who iive under semi-slavery conditions. 

Lured by offers to come to work in the farms of agri-business, upon 

arrival these workers are packed into concentration camps from which 

it is very difficult to leave.); and fourth, it has to be understood 

as a conscious colonialist plan t o  geographically transplant the 

colonized people from the colonial territory to the metropole with - 
out changing the imperialist relationships -- Puerto Ricans are forced 
into the urban ghettos or rural camps of this country to share their 

miserable lot with other oppressed peoples, but not the fortunes of 

the Colonizer. 

It is against the back-drop of these unique characteristics that 

the dynamics of the Puerto Rican situation in the U.S. has to be aria - 
lyzed. According to a recent report of the UbS. Civil Rights Commission, . - 

entitled, Puerto Ricans in the Continental United. States : An Uncertain 



RATION OF JUAN ANTIONIO CORRETJER, SECRETARY GENERAL OF THE 
RTO RICAN SOCIALIST LEAGUE, BEFORE THE DECOLONIZATION COMMITTEE 

OF THE UNITED NATIONS, AUGUST 31, 1978. P 
THE LIGA SOCIALISTA PUERTORRIQUENA, regrets having to appear 

here, separate from thei bther patriotic organizations. The patriotic 
and revolutionary basis, the fraternal duty which makes this necessary, 
will become selfevident as we expound- our position. 

THE LIGA SOCIALISTA PUERTORRIQUENA is an authentically indepen- 
a 

dent organization in both thought &d deed. ' Evidently, in none of . 
the other fraternal organizations does this consciousness play so f 

3 

determinant a role in action. ., Founded in January, 1964, in its .. . 
short history it has assimilated experiences which have necessarily 
influenced its-manner of thinking and acting. It is sufficient as an 
example, to point out that in 1969 the entire central committee was 
detained, and in July, 1970 in the midst of the heat of the great 
strike against General Electric, there was an attempt on the life of 
its Secretary ~eneral-and his wife. We do not complain. Leaders are 
shields. It was a great experience. We learned to fight on our own; 
and the ridiculous, triumphal cry of the F.B.I. announcing the 
dispersal of the Liga Socialista was just that: ridiculous. Today, 
the Liga Socialista is a stronger organization that it was then. 
Among the experiences put to good use, and which weighs in our I 

consciousness in a very special way is the long and fruitful meditation 
of the past six years. For me this consciousness has been developed 
over a great timespan, since he who addresses you has felt the full 
weim of imperialism, national oppression, and the class yoke. Born 
in the particular way in which a Puerto Rican of his age and militancy 
passes. The young people who surround me and sustain me have taken 
in that experience and enriched it with their intelligent and coura- 

r' 
geous manner of seeing the world in which we live. 

What I am arriving at is the abominable act which brings us here, :i 

before this committee: the war between Spain and the United States 
which victimized our country. It is an unnecessarily prolonged debate, 
on a number of tactical an strategic alternatives sadly aimed at the 
prolongation of the Spanish presence in Puerto Rico, were concluded 
and resolved at gunpoint, and not against Spain, but against Puerto 
Rho; and not in favor of Puerto Rico, but in favor of the United 
States. Such was the collapse of emerging liberalism in Puerto Rico: 
we went right into colonialism under the U.S., and today, with the 





LIST OF FALN RELATED BOMBING, INCENDIARY AND OTHER INCIDENTS v 
Bombing/Other 

: t e  & Time Inc iden t  FAW Claim I n j u r i e s  

'16/74 .22 c a l .  revolver ,  
l a t e r  found i n  Queens 
bomb f a c t o r y ,  i s  s t o l e n  
i n  colorado 

a .  

~ o m r o s c h  Park; 
Lincoln Center 

Newark (N.J.) P.D.; 
Newark Ci ty  H a l l  

Romero purchases ca rb ine  
l a t e r  found i n  Queens 
bomb f a c t o r y  

Romero t r a v e l s  t o  NYC 
from Colorado; convic ted  
FALN member Oscar Lopez 
t r a v e l s  from Chicago t o  
NYC 

Communique 

Communique 

Saturday, Midland Marine Bank, Telephone c a l l  None 
10/26/74, 140 Broadway, NYC t o  AP i n  NYC 
2:56 AM I n  Mercury Comet and Communique 

parked i n  f r o n t  

Saturday, Chemical Bank, Exxon Telephone c a l l  None 
10/26/74, Bui ld ing ,  1251 Avenue t o  AP i n  NYC 
2:57 AM of t h e  Americas, NYC. and Communique 

Front  window ledge  
s t r e e t  l e v e l .  

Saturday, Banco de Ponce, Telephone c a l l  None 
10/26/74, Eas t e rn  A i r l i n e s  t o  AP i n  NYC 
2:57 AM - Bui ld ing ,  10 Rocke fe l l e r  and Communique 
3:06 AM P laza ,  NYC S t r e e t  

l e v e l  en t rance  door 

Saturday, Lever House Bui ld ing  Telephone c a l l  None 
10/26/74 390 Park Avenue, t o  AP i n  NYC 
3:36 AM NYC . and Communique 

Garden-f ron t  of 
bu i ld ing .  

Damage 

Unes t a b l i s h e d  



;aturday , Union Carbide 
i.0126174, Building,  270 Park 
3:30 AM - Avenue, NYC Base of 
3:40 AM column i n  P l aza .  

10127174 Romero t r a v e l s  from NYC 
t o  Colorado; Oscar Lopez 
t r a v e l s  from NYC t o  
Colorado .. - 

12/8/74 Romero t r a v e l s  t o  NYC 

Wednesday, Abandoned Bui ld ing  
12/11/74, 336 E a s t  I lO th ,  NYC 
11:20 AM Aimed a t  p o l i c e  

o f f i c e r  . 

Friday,  
1/24/75, 
1:20 P . M .  

Wednesday, 
4/2/75 , 

Wednesday, 
4/2/75, 
11:40 PM - 
11:55 PM 

Wednesday, 
4/2/75, 
11:40 PM 

Fraunces Tavern 
Res taurant ,  101 
Broad S t r e e t ,  NYC 
Hallway t o  
Anglers Club. 

$50,000 CEDA proposa l  
submit ted t o  NCHA by 
LUCERO and CUETO 

New York L i f e  
Bui ld ing ,  5 1  Madison 
Avenue, NYC, Lobby 
S t r e e t  l e v e l  

Metropol i tan L i f e  
Bui ld ing ,  340 Park 
Ave., South, NYC 
Entrance door ,  
S t r e e t  l e v e l  

New York L i f e  
Bui ld ing ,  5 1  Madison 
Avenue, NYC, Lobby 
S t r e e t  l e v e l  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NYC 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  NY CPD 
t o  AP i n  NYC Of f i ce r  
and Communique ANGEL 

POGGI 

Telephone c a l l  4 k i l l e d  
t o  AP i n  NYC 6 3 
and Communique i n j u r e d  

Telephone c a l l  
t o  AP i n  NYC 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  
t o  A P  i n  NYC 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  
t o  AP i n  NYC 
and Communique 

Unes t a b l i s h e d  

Unes t a b l i s h e d  



Wednesday, 
4/2/75, 
ll:40 PH - 
11:~s pn 

Thursday, 
4/3/75, 
12:oo AM 

Thursday, 
4/3/75 
12:12 AM 

Saturday, 
6/14/75, 
12:35 AM 

Saturday, 
6/14/75, 
12:52 AH 

Saturday, 
6/14/75 

Monday, 
10/27/75 
12:48 API 

Honday , 
10/27/75 
1:OO AM. 

Metropolitan Life Telephone call 
Building, 340 Park to AP in NYC 
Ave., South, NYC and Communique 
Entrance door, 
Street level 

Bankers Trust, 280 Telephone call 
Park Avenue, NYC to AP in NYC 
Gate, street level and Communique 

Blimpies Restaurant 
5 West 46th Street, 
NY, In stack of 
garbage bags at curb 
in front 

Hid-Continental 
Plaza Bldg-Monroe 
Street entrance. 
(Device originally 
placed in Plaza of 
the 1st National 
Bank, CG, but moved 
by passersby) 

United Bank of 
America, 1 East 
Wacker Drive, NYC 
Flower box, front 
of bank 

US Fed Bldg., 219 
S. Dearborn St., 
CG , 
THREAT-NO BOMB 
RECOVERED 

Continental National 
Bank, 231 South 
LaSalle St., CG, 
Ill. 
Behind column near 
LaSalle St. entrance 

IBM Building, 233 
South Wacker Drive, 
CG, State Street 
entrance behind 
column 

Telephone call 
to AP in NYC 
and Communique 

Telephone call One injury $240,869.00 
to AP in CG, 
Ill., and 
Communique 

Telephone call None 
to AP in CG, Ill., 
and Communique 

Telephone call None 
to AP in CG, Ill., 
and Communique 

Telephone call None 
to AP in NYC 
and Communique 

Telephone call None 
to AP in NY 
and Communique 

no explosion 



Monday, 
10127175 
1:20 AM 

Sea r s  Tower, 233 
South Wacker Drive 
CG, next  t o  marble 
bench i n  Plaza f ac ing  
west f r o n t  of bldg.  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

None-bomb 
d id  not  
de tona te  

Monday, 
10/27/75 
1:55 AM 

Standard O i l  Bui lding 
200 Eas t  Randolph S t .  
CG , :on s t o n e  bench, 
15-20 f t .  from 
ent rance  t o  CG Bank 
of Commerce 
DEVICE D I D  NOT DETONATE 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Monday, 
10/27/75 
1:43 AM 

National  Westmini- 
s t e r  Bank Limited,  
100 Wall S t . ,  NYC, 
r e a r  of bank, s t r e e t  
l e v e l  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Monday, 
10127175 
2:oo M 

F i r s t  Nat ional  C i t y  
Bank, 111 Wall S t . ,  
NYC, s i d e  of b ldg ,  
s t r e e t  l e v e l  

Monday, 
10/27/75 
2:05 AM 

US Mission t o  t h e  
799 F i r s t  Avenue, 
NYC s t r e e t  l e v e l  
shrubbery 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Chase Manhattan 
Bank, 23 Eas t  57 th  
S t . ,  NYC, o u t e r  
w a l l ,  s t r e e t  l e v e l  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Monday, 
10127175, 
2:20 AM 

F i r s t  Nat ional  C i ty  
Bank, 40 West 57 th  
S t r e e t ,  NYC, 
s t r e e t  l e v e l  near  
bank en t rance  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

Monday, 
10/27/75, 
1:59 AM 

US Department of 
S t a t e  Bldg, 21st  
and "Cn S t r e e t s ,  NW, 
WDC, no r th  s i d e  of 
en t r ance  on 21s t  
S t r e e t  



Monday, Bureau of Indian  
10/27/75, A f f a i r s ,  20th and 
2:03 AM Cons t i t u t ion  Aves., 

WDC, i n  shrubbery 
near  wal l  on Const i -  
t u t i o n  s i d e  

Sunday, F i r s t  Nat ional  
11/9/75, C i t y  Bank, 15 th  
2:05 AM S t r e e t  and I rv ing  

P lace ,  NYC, South- 
e a s t  waLl 

Monday, 
6/7/76, 
10:42 PM 

Monday, 
6/7/76, 
10:45 PM 

Monday, 
6/7/76, 
11:25 PM 

Chase Manhattan Bank; 
Court S t r e e t ,  Brooklyn 

$25,000 NCHA check 
i s sued  t o  FALN member 
Roberto Caldero 

John Hancock Bldg. 
Window ledge of 
Bonwit T e l l e r  S t o r e ,  
875 North Michigan 
Avenue, CG 

100 North LaSal le  
S t r e e t  Bui ld ing ,  
CG, i n  t r a s h  can 
i n  f ron t  of Bank 
Leumi Le I s r a e l  

Corner of Dearborn 
and Monroe S t r e e t s ,  
CG. In  t r a s h  can 
nea r  1 s t  Nat iona l  
Bank of Chicago 
Plaza  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  AP i n  NY 
and Communique 

NO CLAIM None 
(Probably FALN 
based on t a r g e t  
and modis 
operandi)  

NO CLAIM 
(Probably FALN 
based on modis 
operandi ,  ev idence  
and type  of 
t a r g e t s )  

NO CLAIM 
(Probably FALN 
based on modis 
operandi ,  ev idence  
and type  of 
t a r g e t s )  

NO CLAIM 
(Probably FALN 
based on modis 
operandi ,  e v i -  
dence, and t y p e  
of t a r g e t s )  

None 

None $7,000.00 
p l u s  minor 
damage t o  
parked c a r  

Mrs. LEE Unes t a b 1  . 
MARKOVITZ, only  t r a s h  
ALLEN MARK- 
OVITZ, Miss 
SHARON AVERS, 
RICARDO SCHWARZ 
Mrs. FANNIE SCHWARZ 



londay , 
i/7/76 
L1:OO PM 

Saturday, 
5/19/76, 
Soon 

Monday, 
6/21/76, 

Friday, 
6/25/76, 
1 : O O  AM 

Friday,  
6/25/76, 
1:19 AM 

Friday, 
6/25/76, 
1 : O O  AM 
but not  
found 
u n t i l  
7:30 AM 

Chicago Pol ice  Dept. 
1121 South S t a t e  S t .  
CG, i n  t r a s h  can 
near f r o n t  entrance 

Marshall F i e l d s  
Dept Store ,  111 
North S t a t e  S t . ,  
CG, I l l .  incen- 
d ia ry  device found 
i n  woman's appare l  
sec t ion 

Marshall F i e l d s  
Dept Store ,  111 
North S t a t e  St., 
CG, I l l .  incen- 
d iary  found i n  6 t h  
f l o o r  ra incoat  
sec t ion ,  assumed 
t o  have been placed 
6/19/76 

Pan American Bldg. 
45th S t r e e t  and Park 
Avenue, WC, 70 
yards from t h e  45th 
S t r e e t  entrance 

40th Precinct ,  NYC 
Pol ice  Dept, 138th 
S t .  and Alexander 
Ave., Bronx, NY, 
wooden door, r e a r  
yard 

1st National Ci ty  
Bank (CITIBANK) , 
349 East 149th S t . ,  
NYC, near 149th 
S t r e e t  door 

NO CLAIM 
(Probably FALN 
based on modis 
operandi ,  e v i -  
dence, and type 
of t a r g e t s )  

No claim b u t  
assumed FALN 
because of 
cons t ruc t ion ,  
modis operandi  
and d a t e  

No claim b u t  
assumed FALN 
because of 
const ruct ion,  
modis operandi ,  
and d a t e  

None 

None 

None 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Post  and - 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  N? Post  and 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Post  - 
and Communique 

None 

None 

Unes t ab .  

Unes tab1 . 

Unestabl. 



Fr iday ,  
6/25/76 
Discovered 
a t  4:30 PM 
Detonation 
time unknown 

Monday, 
7/12/76, 
12:40 PM 

Monday, 
7/12/76, 
12:45 PM 

Monday, 
7/12/76, 
12:50 PM 

Chase Manhattan 
Bank, 137th  S t r e e t  
and Lincoln Ave., 
Bronx, NY 

Dynamite recovered 
from Queens and Chicago 
bomb f a c t o r i e s  s t o l e n  
i n  Deer Creek Canyon, 
Colorado 

NCHA $50,000 check 
d isbursed  by Cueto 
FROM Episcopal  Church 
funds 

Macyts Department 
S t o r e ,  34 th  and 
Broadway, NYC - 
2 i n c e n d i a r i e s  - 1 
i n  7 t h  f l o o r  f a b r i c s  
and o t h e r  found on 
7/14/76 i n  6 t h  
f l o o r  b l a n k e t s  

Ohrbach' s Depart- 
ment S t o r e ,  5 West 
34th S t . ,  NYC, 2 
i n c e n d i a r i e s  - 1 
on 2nd f l o o r  d r e s s  
s e c t i o n ,  1 on 6 t h  
f l o o r  rug  s e c t i o n  

Cimbel's Department 
S t o r e ,  33rd S t r e e t  
and Broadway, NYC, 
2 i n c e n d i a r i e s  - 1 
i n  2nd f l o o r  men's 
robes d e p t . ,  1 i n  
2nd f l o o r  men's 
spor t sware  dep t .  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY P o s t  
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Pos t  - 
and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Pos t  and 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY - P o s t ,  and 
Communique. 
Also c a l l  t o  
Gimbels i n  which 
FALN was n o t  men- 
t i o n e d  b u t  t h r e a t  
was impl ied .  

Unestabl . 

Unes t ab l i shed  



Monday, Lord and Taylor  Telephone c a l l  
7/12/76, Dept. S to re ,  5 t h  t o  NY Pos t  - and 
1:15 PM & A v e .  and 3 8 t b S t . ,  Communique 
1:25 PM NYC, 2 i n c e n d i a r i e s  - . . .. . . . . , .. .. . . ,: . ., . . . ,-- 

1 i n  5 t h  f l o o r  + f  :. ,: . ', . , .  
County c l o t h e s  d e p t . ,  
1 i n  3rd f l o o r  1-2-5 
dep t  . 

Monday, 
7/12/76, 
1:15 PM 

Monday, 
7/12/76, 
1:15 PM & 
2:00 PM 

Fr iday ,  
9/10/76 
12:45 AM 

Fr iday ,  
9/10/76, 

~ 0 ' ; v i t t e '  s Dept. 
S t o r e ,  1293 Broad- 
way, NYC, 2 incen- 
d i a r i e s  - 1 i n  8 t h  
f l o o r  drapery d e p t . ,  
1. found 7/28/76 i n  
2nd f l o o r  men's 
d e p t  . 

B. Altman's Dept. 
S t o r e ,  361 5 t h  
Ave. , NYC - 2 
i n c e n d i a r i e s  - 1 
i n  bedspread dep t .  - 1 behind o r i e n t a l  
rug  

$50,000 lundered 
through Crusade f o r  
J u s t i c e  (CFJ) 

Nimpex Building,  
734 North LaSal le  
St., CG, Doorway o f  
Commonwealth of 
Puer to  Rico Labor 
O f f i c e  

The Holiday Inn ,  
644 Lake Shore 
D i  rve  , CG , woman' s 
restroom, 33rd 
f l o o r ,  Pinnacle  
Res taurant  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Pos t  and - 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Pos t  - and 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l s  None 
t o  UP1 i n  CG and 
Ohio S t .  Holiday 
Inn  and Communique 

Telephone c a l l s  None 
t o  UP1 i n  CG 
and Ohio S t .  
Holiday Inn and 
Communique 

Unestabl ished 

Unestabl ished 



*riday, 
1/10/76, 
.2:42 AM 

Jednesday , 
)/I5176 

Tuesday, 
9/21/76, 
8:10 PM 

Tuesday, 
9/21/76, 
8:13 PM 

11/3/76 

11/23/76 

12/31/76 

1/4/77 

1/10/77 

Holiday Inn 
Chicago c i t y  
Center, 300 East  
Ohio S t . ,  CG, 
THREAT TO BOMB-NO 
DEVICE RECOVERED 

Marshall F ie lds  
Dept Store ,  111 
North S t a t e  S t . ,  
CG, Ill. incen- 
dia+ found i n  
couch i n  7 th  f l o o r  
f u rn i t u r e  dept . ,  
assumed t o  have been 
placed 6/19/76 

New York Hilton 
Hotel, 24th Floor 
S ta i rwel l ,  53rd 
S t r e e t  and Sixth  
Avenue, NYC 

S t a t l e r  Hil ton 
Hotel,  7 th  Avenue 
and 33rd S t r e e t ,  
NYC-THREAT TO BOMB 
NO DEVICE RECOVERED 

Chicago bomb 
factory discovered 

Archueleta subpoena 
served (Chicago G . J . ) 
Nita Marquez begins 
t o  launder 2d NCHA 
$50,000 ou t  of CFJ 
bank account 

Cueto/Nemkin 
subpoenas issued 

Cueto and Nemikin 
appear before G J  
(SDNY) 

Telephone c a l l s  None None - 
t o  UP1 i n  CG and NO BOMB 
Ohio S t .  Holiday 
Inn and Communiques 

No claim bu t  None None 
assumed FAZ;N 
because of 
const ruct ion,  
modis operandi, 
and da t e  

Telephone c a l l  None $300.000.00 
t o  N? Pos t  and - 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None None - 
t o  NY Post  and - NO BOMB 
Communique 



2/17/77 Opinion of Judge P i e r c e ,  
Matter of Wood (SDNY) 

Friday, The Merchandise 
2/18/77, Mart, Merchandise 
12:55 AM Mart Plaza,  CG, i n  

bank of lockers  
near  Wells S t r e e t  
e x i t  under "L" 
s t a t i o n  

Friday, US Gypsum Bldg., 
2/18/77, 101 South Wacker 
1:05 AM Drive,  CG, i n  plaza 

fac ing  SW s i d e  of 
bui ld ing 

Friday,  
2/18/77, 
11:55 PM 

Friday,  
2/18/77, 
11:55 PM 

Sunday, 
3/20/77, 
11:55 PM 

Texaco Touring O f -  
f i c e ,  Chrys l e r  
Building , 405 
Lexington Ave., 
NYC, near window 
on Lexington Ave. 

Gulf and Western 
Bldg., 61s t  S t r e e t  
and Columbus Ave., 
NYC, plaza ,  south- 
s i d e  of bui ld ing 

Cueto and Nemikin 
remanded (SDNY) 

Defendant Cueto adjudged 
i n  c i v i l  contempt (Pierce ,  
J . ,  SDNY) 

American Bank 
Note Company, 
1241 Lafayette  
Ave., NYC, i n  moat 
on Bar re t to  S t r e e t  
s i d e  of building.  

No d i r e c t  claim None 
however, a t  12:45 
AM, 2/19/77, CBS 
rad io  i n  NY got  
c a l l  d i r e c t i n g  
them t o  Communique 
claiming c r e d i t  f o r  
bombs of  2/17/77 (?)  

No d i r e c t  claim, None 
however, a t  
12:45 AM, 2/19/77, 
CBS radio i n  NY 
g o t  c a l l  d i r e c t i n g  
them t o  Communique 
claiming c r e d i t  f o r  
bombs of  2/17/77 (?) 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  CBS Radio i n  
NYC and Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  CBS rad io  i n  
NYC and Communique 

C i t i z e n  d isco-  None 
vered Communi- 
que i n  phone. 
booth and NY 
Post  received - 
copy i n  ma i l  

Unestablished 

Unes t ab l i shed  



31221 7 7 

3/29/77 

Saturday, 
4/9/77 , 
8:42 PM 

~ a t u r d a ~ ,  
4/9/77, 
8:45 PM 

Saturday , " ,  

:4/9/77, 
8:52 PM 
. y ,  
;.. . ' 6  

L*, 

: r 

$/19/77 6 .. 
4:' , 
4: . 

Whelan Drug S t o r e ,  
3 rd  Ave. and E a s t  
70th S t . ,  NYC, 
i n s i d e  of s t o r e  
b u t  apparent ly  
aimed a t  FBI 
Of f i ce  on upper 
f l o o r s  

Search of defendant  
Cueto 's  apartment 

Archuleta served  wi th  
t h i r d  subpoena (SDNY) 

Bloomingdale's 
Dept. S to re ,  1000 
Third Ave., NYC, 
2 i ncend ia r i e s  i n  
5 t h  f l .  f u r n i t u r e  
dept .  and 1 incend ia ry  
i n  2nd £1. boys d e p t . ,  
1 incendiary ,  8 t h  £1. 
casua l  dept .  

Macy's Dept. S t o r e ,  
151 West 34th S t . ,  
NYC, 2 i n c e n d i a r i e s  
i n  7 t h  f l . ,  rug 
dep t . ,  and 1 incen-  
d i a r y  i n  9 t h  f l . ,  
f u r n i t u r e  dep t .  

Gimbel's Dept. 
S t o r e ,  33rd S t .  
and Broadway, NYC, 
1 incendiary i n  
p i l e  of rugs ,  
5 t h  f l .  and 1 
incendiary beneath 
f u r n i t u r e  on 9 t h  f l .  

Court of Appeals 
op in ion  In re Cueto 

Archuleta incar -  
ce ra t ed  (Chicago; 
Parsons , J. ) 

C i t i z e n  d isco-  N O W  
vered Communique LITTHAN 
i n  phone booth 
and NY P o s t  - 
rece ived  copy 
i n  mail 

No telephone 
claim b u t  
Communique 
d iscovered  i n  
te lephone booth 
i n  NYC 

No telephone 
claim b u t  
Communique d i s -  
covered i n  t e l e -  
phone booth i n  
NYC 

None 

None 

No te lephone  None 
claim b u t  Com- 
munique d i s c o -  
vered i n  t e l e -  
phone booth i n  
NYC 

Unes t a b l i s h e d  
Extens ive  
wa te r  damage 

Unes t a b l i s h e d  
Extens ive  
wa te r  damage 



Saturday, The City-County 
6/4/77, Bldg., 118 North 
12:30 PH - Clark S t r e e t ,  CG, 
1 2 ~ 4 5  PM Ill., i n  5th f l o o r  

hallway near  mayor 
of C G t s  Of f i ce  

Saturday, Threats t o  bomb 
6/4/77 undescribed 
12:47 PM locat ions  

Wednesday, Dept. of Defense 
8/3/77, Office 21s t  F1. , 
9:37 AM 342 Madison Ave., 

NPC - hidden 
behind vene t i an  
b l ind i n  hallway- 
moved i n t o  Defense 
Office where i t  
detonated 

Wednesday, Mobil Building,  
8/3/77 Employment Ser-  
10 :40 AM v ices  Off ice ,  1st 

f loor ,  150 E a s t  
42nd St., NYC, 
device hidden i n  
umbrella i n  employ- 
ment o f f i c e  

Monday, AMAX Building,  
8/8/77, 8 th  F1. hallway, 
9:45 AM 1270 Avenue of 

the  Americas- 
Device f a i l e d  t o  
detonate, found 
in 8th f l .  hallway 
near storeroom i n  
envelope (Probably 
placed on 8/3/77) 

Telephone MANUEL 
c a l l s  t o  CBS COLON $4 

and UP1 i n  DAVE 
Chicago-No SCHIMMEL 
Communiques 

Threats  v i a  None 
telephone 
c a l l  t o  CBS, 
CG, Ill. t o  
bomb undes- 
cr ibed l o c a t i o n s  

2 c a l l s  t o  NY None 
Pos t ,  Communi- - 
que found i n  
Centra l  Park 
i n  NYC 

2 c a l l s  t o  NY 
Pos t ,  - Comrnuni- 
que found i n  
Centra l  Park 
i n  NPC 

2 calls t o  NY 
Pos t ,  - Communi- 
que found i n  
Centra l  Park 
in NYC 

None - No 
devices found 
except f o r  
City-County 
Bldg . 

c-s $12,000.00 
STEINBERG 
Ki l l ed ,  
Injured:  
WALTER 
DAUB, WRETTE 
REID, IVAN 
GERSON, ROBERT 
WILLIAMS, 
PAULINA ADKINS 

None None 
device did 
not detonated 



ednesday , 
43/77,  
, : 40  AM 

Jednesday , 
sf3177 
):40 AM 

Wednesday, 
8/3/77 

Tuesday, 
10/11/77, 
1:SO AM 

Tuesday, 
. 10/11/77, 

2:OO AM 

Threa t  t o  bomb 
245 Park Avenue, 
NYC, no device  
found 

Threa t  t o  bomb 
410 Park Avenue, 
NYC, no device  
found 

~ o r l 8  Trade Center 
NYC, Threa t  t o  
bomb, no device 
found 

Court  of Appeals 
op in ion  Matter  of - 
Archuleta  

Rosados inca r -  
c e r a t e d  f o r  c i v i l  
contempt (S.D.N.Y.) 

Opinion of Judge 
0;en Matter  o f -  - 
Rosado 

Gimbels E a s t  
Dept. ,  125 Eas t  
86 th  and Lexington 
Ave., NYC, 2 incen- 
d i a r i e s  i n  6 t h  £1. 
f u r n i t u r e  dept .  

Macy's Dept. S t o r e ,  
Kings P laza ,  Brooklyn, 
NY, 1 incendiary  
i n  4 t h  £1. f u r n i t u r e  
dep t .  

2 c a l l s  t o  NY 
Post  

None 

2 c a l l s  t o  NY 
- Pos t  

2 c a l l s  t o  NY 
Pos t  

None 

None 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY - Pos t ,  2 
Communiques-1 
Pos t  i n  ma i l ,  1 
i n  phone booth 
i n  NYC 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY Pos t ,  2 
Communiques-1 t o  
Pos t  i n  ma i l ,  1 - 
i n  phone booth 
i n  NYC 

None-no 
device  
found 

None-no 
device  
found 

None-no 
device  

" seve ra l  
thousand" 



Tuesday, Trash  con ta ine r ,  
10/11/77, corner  of Eas t  5 9 t h  
1 : O O  PM S t r e e t  and Madison, 

Ave., N Y C ,  near  
Bank Mel l i  I r a n  i n  
t h e  General Motors 
Bldg. Explosive 
device  "low ordered" 
sometime p r i o r  t o  
11:30 AM, 10/11/77 

Tuesday, 
10/11/77, 
7:50 PM 

. . 
Saturday, 
10/15/77, 
Afternoon 

US Post  Of f i ce ,  
Main Branch, 433 
West Van Buren 
S t . ,  CG, I l l . ,  8 t h  
f l o o r  (device appa- 
r e n t l y  placed i n  
mailbox where home- 
made "b l a s t ing  cap" 
had "low ordered.  I' 
Device then brought  
i n  rou t ine  mai l  pickup 
t o  main p o s t  o f f i c e  
where discovered.)  

Nat ional  Guard 
Armory, 1551 North 
Kedzie Ave., CG,  
Ill., 2 exp los ive  
devices  placed i n  
1st f l o o r  o u t s i d e  
window wells-home- 
made "b l a s t ing  
caps on both dev ices  
had "low ordered. '  
Devices appa ren t ly  
p laced  10/11/77 

Ricardo Romero 
inca rce ra t ed  
(Chicago; Parsons ,  
J .  

Ohrbach' s Dept. S t o r e ,  
35 th  S t r e e t ;  Manhattan 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY - Pos t ,  2 
Communiques-1 t o  
Pos t  i n  ma i l ,  1 - 
i n  phone booth 
i n  NYC 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  NY P o s t ,  2 - 
Communiques-1 t o  
Pos t  i n  mai l ,  1 - 
i n  NYC phone 
booth 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  Ni Pos t ,  2 - 
Communiques-1 t o  
Pos t  i n -ma i l ,  1 
i n  NYC phone 
booth 

None-devices 
low ordered  
i n  open a i r  

None-device 
"low 
ordered" 

None-devices 
"low ordered" 



Friday & 
Monday, 
2/24 & 
27/78 

Archuleta he ld  i n  
c i v i l  contempt 
(Chicago; Parsons ,  
J. 1 

Defendant Cueto and 
Nemikin r e l e a s e d  from 
Custody on c i v i l  
contempt 

P o l i c e  c a r  (NYPD), 
Pol i ce  Academy, 20 th  
S t r e e t  & Third  Avenue, 
NYC 

Con Edison Trash  Can 
I r v i n g  P lace ,  NYC 

Defendant Romero r e l eased  
from custody on c i v i l  
contempt 

Con Edison t r ans fo rmer ,  
H a l l  & Vanderburgh 
Avenues, Larchmont, N.Y. 

116th S t r e e t  & Second 
Avenue, NYC 

Undescribed t a r g e t  FALN Communique None 
(s )  i n  NY t h r ea t ened  rece ived  by UP1 
i n  Communique-No bombs i n  NYC on 2 / 2 7 / 7 8  
exploded o r  found c la iming  c r e d i t  

f o r  "armed a t t a c k "  
postmarked 2 / 2 4 / 7 8  
i n  NYC 

4 /28 /78  F . W .  Woolworth Dept.  
S t o r e ,  441 F i f t h  Avenue, 
NYC 

5 / 8 / 7 8  Rosados, Archule ta  
re leased  from 
custody on c i v i l  
contempt 

None-no 
d e v i c e s  
de tona ted  



Yonda y , 
5/22/78, 
9:50 AM 

Monday, 
5/22/78, 
9:55 AM 

Monday, 
5/23/78, 
9:55 AM 

Monday, 
5/22/78, 
10:05 AM, 
(NY time ) 

Monday, 
5/22/78, 
10: 05 AM 
(NY time ) 

Saturday , 
61241 78, 
12:30 PM & 
12:45 PM 

US Dept. of J u s t i c e  
Bldg., Cons t i tu t ion  
Ave., entrance,  WDC 

Century G i f t  Shop 
Newark I n t e r n a t i o n a l  
Airport ,  Terminal A ,  
Mezzanine Level, on 
shelf  a t  r e a r  of 
s tore-incendiary _. . 
Men's restroom, Main 
Terminal, LaGuardia 
In te rna t iona l  Airpor t  
Queens, NY-incendiary 

Faber Smoke Shop, 
Eastern A i r l i n e s  
Terminal, John F. 
K e ~ e d y  Interna-  
t i o n a l  Airpor t ,  
Queens, NY-incendiary 

O'Hare Interna- 
t i o n a l  Airpor t ,  
CG, I l l . ,  THREAT 
TO BOMB - No 
devices discovered 

O'Hare Hotel,  O'Hare 
In te rna t iona l  
Airport ,  THREAT TO 
BOMB - No devices 
discovered 

J . C .  P e ~ e y  Dept. 
Store Woodfield 
Mall, Schaumburg, 
I l l . ,  2 incendiar ies-  
1 i n  f u r n i t u r e  dept . ,  
1 i n  drapery dept .  

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  UP1 i n  NYC- 
no Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  UPI i n  NYC- 
no Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  UP1 i n  NYC- 
no Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  UP1 i n  NYC-no 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  UP1 i n  CG,  
I l l . ,  and t e l e -  
phone c a l l  t o  
UP1 i n  NYC-no 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l  None 
t o  O'Hare 
Hi l ton Hotel  
and telephone 
c a l l  t o  UP1 
i n  NYC 

Unestablished 

Not es ta -  
b l i shed 

Unestablished 

Unestablished 

None-no 
devices 
detonated 

None-no 
devices 
detonated 

Telephone c a l l s  ROSEMARY $20,000.00 
t o  UPI, CBS and DAVIS 
WCRW-AM a l l  i n  
C G ,  I l l .  and 
Communique 



Saturday ,  
6/24/78, 
12:45 PM & 
12:50 PM 

Sa tu rday ,  
6/24/78,  
12:50 PM 

Wednesday, 
7/12/78, 

Wednesday, 
7/12/78,  
11:30 PM 

Marshall F i e l d s  
Dept. S t o r e ,  
Woodfield Mall,  
Schaumburg, I l l . ,  
2  i ncend ia r i e s -  
both found i n  
s o f a s  i n  t h e  f u r -  
n i t u r e  dept .  

Sears  Department 
S to re  Woodf i e l d  
Mall, Schaumburg, 
I l l . ,  2  incen- 
d i a r i e s - 1  found 
i n  f u r n i t u r e  
d e p t . ,  1 found i n  
b lankets  i n  l i n e n  
dept .  

FALN bomb f a c t o r y  
discovered i n  Queens; 
Morales a r r e s t e d ;  t h r e e  
unexploded p i p e  bombs 
recovered 

Discovery of FALN 
bomb f a c t o r y ,  26-49 
96th S t r e e t ,  Queens, 
N.Y. 

Macy's Department 
S t o r e ,  Herald 
Square,  34 th  S t .  
and Broadway, NYC, 
incendiary  9 t h  
£1. f u r n i t u r e  d e p t .  

Korve t t e ' s  Dept. 
S t o r e ,  Herald Square ,  
34th S t .  and Broadway, 
NYC, 2  i n c e n d i a r i e s - 1  
found i n  8 t h  £1. bedding 
d e p a r t ,  1 i n  2nd f l .  
men's dept .  

Morales a r r a igned  i n  
E.D.N.Y. 

Telephone c a l l  RONALD $1,825.00 
t o  UPI, CBS and P. KRAVITZ 
WCRW-AM a l l  i n  
CG, I l l .  and 
Communique 

Telephone c a l l s  None 
t o  UPI, CBS and 
WCRW-AM a l l  i n  
CG, I l l .  and 

Communique None 
mailed t o  UP1 
i n  NY. Also 
Communique found 
i n  WILLIAM MORALES' 
"bomb fac tory ' '  
found NYC 7/12/78 

Communique None 
mailed t o  UP1 
i n  NYC. Also 
Communique found 
i n  WILLIAM MORALES' 
"bomb fac to ry"  
found i n  NYC, 
7/12/78 

Unes tabl ishec 

Unestablishec 



Tuesday, 
8/29/78 
10: 30 AM 

Wednesday 
10/17/79 
7 PM 

Macy's Dept. S to re ,  
Herald Square Store ,  
34th and Broadway, 
NYC, incendiary 
found i n  sofa  i n  9 t h  
f l .  f u r n i t u r e  dept .  
apparently placed 
on 7/12/78 

Juan Antonio Cor re t j e r  
e x t o l s  t h e  FALN before 
t h e  U.N.  

Morales ' f e d e r a l  
t r i a l  begins 
(E.D.N.Y., Nicker- 
son, J .)  

Morales found g u i l t y  
(E.D.N.Y .) 

Morales' state t r i a l  
begins (Queens County) 

Morales found g u i l t y  
(Queens County) 

Morales sentenced 
( E . D . N . Y . )  

Horales escapes 
a s s i s t e d  by t h e  
BLA, the  May 19 
CO and Tipograph 

I n  Vega Baja, Puerto 
Rico, robbery of 
armored t ruck  was robbed 
by persons wielding an 
M-16 r i f l e  and handguns 

Communique 
mailed t o  UP1 
i n  NYC. Also 
Communique 
found i n  
W I L L I A M  NORALES ' 
"bomb factory" 
found i n  NYC, 
7/12/78 

None 

Republican Committee Telephone c a l l  None 
Cook county Hdqtrs. t o  CBS News and 
187 N. Dearborn, CG Communique 
outs ide  doorway, 2nd f l .  

None-device 
disarmed 



Cook County Building, 
Clark and Randolph 
Street, - 5th Floor 
Washroom 

Telephone call 
to CBS News and 
Communique 

None 

Jednesday 
10/17/79 
11:45 PM 

Great Lakes Naval 
Training Center, 
Outside of Reserve 
Training Center, 
Bldg. 2711 

Telephone call 
to CBS News and 
Communique 

None 

Wednesday 
10/17/79 
11:25 PM 

US Customs Bldg. 
Old San Juan, PR 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/AP 
and Communique 

None 

None Reserve Officers 
Beach Club, Avenida 
Ponce de Leon, Old 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/AP 
and Communique 

Wednesday 
101 17 / 79 
11:30 PM 

Wednesday 
10/17/79 

US Coast Guard Radio 
Tower, Old San Juan, 
Puerto Rico 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/Ap 

None 

None Wednesday 
10/17/79 

Monurnentos A Los 
Primeros Norte- 
Americanos, Guanica, 
Puerto Rico 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/AP 
and Communique 

Unknown 

Wednesday- 
Thursday 
10117-18/79 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/Ap 
and Communique 

Collins International 
Communications Tower 
Isabella, Puerto Rico 

None 

None Thursday 
10/18/79 
2:lO AM 

US Customs House 
502 Union Street, 
Puerto Real, Fajardo, 
Puerto Rico 

Telephone calls 
SJ Star/UPI/AP 
and Communique 

None-device 
disarmed 

Friday International Tractor Telephone calls None . .- None-device 
11/16/79 Bldg. 555, Ft. Buchanan, SJ Star/UPI/Ap disarmed 
(Device prob- Puerto Rico, device and Communique 
ably placed found unexploded inside 

i~ , . 10/17/79) of a tractor 
b;: 
51: 

NY State Democratic Telephone call None 
Committee, Room 1801 UP1 and 
60 East 42nd Street, Communique 
New York 

None-"mock" 
device-no 
explosive 



A l l  f i v e  defendants 
a r e  indic ted  i n  t h e  
EDNY on criminal  
contempt charges 

Defendants ar ra igned 
on the  criminal  con- 
tempt indictment 

Search warrant executed 
i n  Bara ldini ' s  apa r t -  
ment i n  Manhattan; 
carbon copy of FALN 
communique recovered 

Search of Bara ld in i l  
Mil ler  apartment 

Robbery of $350,000 
armored t ruck by 
Hacheteros using 
Russian made AK-47 
and M-16 1 K I A  

Defendants re-subpoenaed 
t o  t e s t i f y  before grand 
ju ry  i n  the  EDNY; super- 
seding Brinks indictment 
f i l e d  i n  the  SDNY 

(High Order) 
FBI and NYPD 
Headquarters; 
U.S. Attorney 
(SDNY); Courthouse 
(EDNYl 

1 KIA 

Phone c a l l  Three Subs tan t i a l  
from Luis pol ice  
Rosado and Off icers  
FALN Communique (NYfD) 
repr in ted  i n  
"De Pie", a 
pe r iod ica l  con- 
t r o l l e d  by t h e  
defendant J u l i o  
Rosado 



Sunday 
2/28/82 
2323 Hrs 
2325 Hrs 
2335 Hrs 
2345 Hrs 

Monday 
9/20/82 
0039 Hrs 

Brinks armored t ruck  
robbery and murder of 
two p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  
and s e c u r i t y  guard com- 
mi t t ed  by elements  of 
t h e  BLA May 19 CO; s e v e r a l  
a r r e s t s  occur  

r e t u r n  d a t e  of t h e  
Rosados, Romero and 
Guerra grand j u r y  
subpoenas; argument 
before  Judge P l a t t ;  
f o u r  defendants  r e fuse  
t o  t e s t i f y  

Cueto subpoenaed t o  
grand j u r y  (EDNY) ; 
Judge P l a t t  den ie s  
motion t o  quash 

Cueto r e f u s e s  t o  be 
sworn be fo re  grand 
j u r y  

(High Order) 

M e r r i l l  Lynch 
Chase Manhattan 
N.Y. Stock Exc. 
American Stock Exc. 

U.S. Navy s a i l o r s  
ambushed i n  Puerto 
Rico 

Defendant Guerra ' s  
t r i p  t o  Puer to  Rico 

(High Order) 

Bankers T r u s t  
280 Park Avenue 

Communique 
Communique 
Communique 
Communique 

1 KIA; 
2 WIA 

C a l l  
UP1 

Unes tab l i s  
Unes tab l i s  
Unestabl is  
Unestabl is  

Unestabl is  
(Glass: 



Nine (9)  A-7 j e t  
a i r c r a f t  of Air 
Na t iona l  Guard 
des t royed  a t  Muniz 
A i r  Base, San Juan 
by Macheteros through 
exp los ives  

Ten FALN members 
sen tenced  i n  Chicago 

Attempted robbery of 
an armored t ruck  by 
BLA i n  Danbury, 
Connect icut  

Macheteros rob an 
armored t ruck  i n  
San Juan 

JEK Airpo r t  
Pan Am depa r tu re  
t e rmina l  (two bombs) 

JFK Airpo r t  
Pan Am te rmina l  
(device  exploded 
wh i l e  being disarmed) 

Honduran Consulate 
18 E .  3 1 s t  S t r e e t ,  
NYC 

Oscar Lopez a r r e s t e d  
i n  I l l i n o i s  

Armored t ruck  robbery 
by  t h e  BLA i n  t h e  
Bronx, New York 

Puerto Rican 
Armed R e s i s t a n c e ;  
Communique 

P u e r t o  Rican 
Armed Res i s t ance ;  
Communique 

1 KIA 

device  
discovered 



Saturday,  
3/15/80, 
9 AM 

Saturday,  
3/15/80, 

Elonday, 
3/17/80 
and onward 

F r iday ,  
4/4/80 

Carter-Mondale 
P r e s i d e n t i a l  Re- 
e l e c t i o n  I l l i n o i s  
Campaign O f f i c e ,  
5 & 6 t h  f l o o r s ,  
109 North Dearborn 
S t . ,  Chicago, I l l .  
Armed invas ion  

George Bush P r e s i -  
d e n t i a l  Campaign 
O f f i c e ,  130 Eas t  
5 9 t h  S t r e e t ,  NYC 
Armed invas ion  of 
o f f  i c e  

Threa ten ing  l e t t e r s  
s e n t  t o  Carter-Mon- 
d a l e  suppor t e r s  
throughout  I l l i n o i s ,  
Also p o s s i b l e  t h r e a t -  
en ing  te lephone c a l l s  

A r r e s t  of 11 FALN 
members i n  Evanston 

Apparent FALN armored 
t r u c k  robbery a t tempt  - 
11 members a r r e s t e d  i n  
Evanston, I l l i n o i s  
be fo re  a c t i o n  took 
p l ace .  

Search of Milwaukee 
safehouse 

Armored t r u c k  robbery 
and murder by BLA i n  
Inwood, New York 

Penn S t a t i o n  
8 t h  Avenue passageway 
NYC 

Communique t o  None-7 Ransacked 
UP1 i n  NY, employees o f f i c e s -  
Telephone c a l l  held a g a i n s t  sp racy  p a i n t s  
t o  t a r g e t  i n  w i l l  w a l l s ,  s t o l e  
Chicago documents 

and $150. 

Communique 
UP1 i n  NY 

t o  None- Ransacked 
employees o f f i c e s -  
held a g a i n s t  sp ray  pa in ted  
w i l l  w a l l s ,  s t o l e  

do cumen t s 

Pue r to  Rican 
Armed Res i s t ance  
t e l ephone  c a l l  
and Communique 

None None 

None None 



Thursday 
10/18/79 

Fr iday  
11/28/79 
11:45 PM 

Saturday  
11/24/79 
11:20 AM 

Saturday 
111241 79 
12:35 AM 

Monday, 
1/14/80 

- - - C i t y  Republican 
Hdq t r s ,  45 Eas t  45th 
S t r e e t ,  New York 

Joanne Chesimard 
excapes  from a New 
J e r s e y  s t a t e  p r i son  

Telephone c a l l  None 
UP1 and 
Communique 

US M i l i t a r y  r e c r u i t i n g  Telephone c a l l  None 
S t a t i o n ,  4654 South and Communique 
Ashland Ave, 
wnd f l o o r  restroom 

I l l i n o i s  Naval M i l i t i a  'I'elephone c a l l  None 
Bu i ld ing ,  401 Eas t  and Communique 
Randolph S t r e e t ,  CG 
Ou t s ide  of s i d e  door 

US M i l i t a r y  Rec ru i t i ng  
S t a t i o n ,  1940 West 
I r v i n g  Park,  Chicago 
I n s i d e  of r e a r  storeroom 

Bus con ta in ing  U.S. 
Navy personnel  ambushed 
by Macheteros using 
M-16 and Russian made 
AK-47 a s s a u l t  r i f l e s  a t  
Sabana Seca, Puerto Rico 

Oak Creek Nat ional  
Guard Armory, Oak 
Creek,  Wisconsin 
Invaded i n  s ea rch  of 
m i l i t a r y  weapons 

Three Army ROTC o f f i c e r s  
ambushed i n  Puerto Rico 
by  Macheteros us ing  M-16 
r i f l e s  

Telephone c a l l  None 
and Communique 

two s a i l o r s  
K I A ;  9 WIA 

None 

None- 
dev i  c e -  
exp 10s i v e  

None-3 men S t o l e  1 c a r ,  
he ld  whi le  gun, w a l l e t  
FALN searched 
b u i l d i n g  


